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JUSTICE CQURT, NORTH LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

| | North Las Vegas Justice Court
TH STATR OF NPVAD S RN 0PN €7 @%f @@@W W

Plaintiff, o=
' Clerk SE NQO: 15FN0939X
_VS_
DEPT NO 7
JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE
47019775, 7

Defendant. - CRIMINAL COMPLAINT

The Defendant above named having committed the crimes of SEXUAL CONDUCT
BETWEEN CERTAIN' EMPLOYEES OR VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL |
(Category C Felony - NRS 201.540 - NOC 51067) and FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING
(Category A Felony - NRS 200,310, 200.320 - NOC 50053), in the manner following, to-wit:
| That the said Defendant, on or between May 14, 2015 and May 28, 2015, at and within the
County of Clark, State of Nevada,

COUNT | - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did on or between May 14, 2015 and May 15, 2015 then and there wilfully, unlawfully,
and feloniously, while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or
volunteering in a position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teacher, at Rancho
High School, Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in fellatio, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant was or previously had beeﬁ employed or volunteering,

COUNT 2 - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING
" did on or about May 20, 2015 wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously, lead, take, entice,

carry away or kidnap M.T., a minor, with the intent to keep, imprison, or confine said M.T,,
from her parents, guardians, or other person or persons having lawful custody of M.T., or with
the intent to hold M.T. to unlawful service, or to perpetrate upon the person of M.T. any

unlawful act, to-wit; sexual intercoutse.

W2015SFNIFOM [ SFN0D3I9-COMP-001.DOCK
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M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or voluntcgring.

All of which is contrary to the form, force and effect of Stémtes in such cases made and |
provided and against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada. Said Complainant makes

this declaration subject to the penalty of perjury.

06/03/15 S T

15FN0939X7id
CCSDPD EV# 150603963

(TK)

W2015FNO\INT SFN093S-COMP-001.DOCXK




JUSTICE COURT. NORTH LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP_ ‘

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

DOCKET SHEET...CRIMINAL

CASE#  15CRNDD0941-0000 15FN093gX

Slate LOFTHOUSE, JASON

7019775 (SCOPEL

DATE, JUDGE, OFFICERS

OF COURT PRESENT

PROCEEDINGS
APPEARANCES - HEARING

EVENTS

June 04,2018

BAIL AMOUNT
Charge #7: CONTRIBUTE TO DELINQUENCY OR
NEGLECT OF MINOR

BAIL AMOUNT
Charge #8: CONTRIBUTE TO DELINQUENCY OR
NEGLECT OF MINOR '

BAIL AMOUNT

Charge #2: SCH EMP/VOLUNTEER IN AUTHORITY
POSITION/AGE 21+ ENGAGING IN SEXUAL
CONDUCT W/PUPIL AGE 18-17

BAIL AMOUNT

Charge #3: SCH EMP/VOLUNTEER IN AUTHORITY
POSITION/AGE 21+ ENGAGING IN SEXUAL
CONDUCT W/PUPILAGE 18-17 -

BAIL AMOUNT

Charge #4: SCH EMP/VOLUNTEER IN AUTHORITY
POSITION/AGE 21+ ENGAGING IN SEXUAL :
CONDUCT W/PUPIL AGE 18-17

BAIL AMOUNT ,

Charge #1: SCH EMP/VOLUNTEER IN AUTHORITY
POSITION/AGE 21+ ENGAGING IN SEXUAL
CONDUCT W/PUPILAGE 18-17

BAILAMOUNT
Charge #5: KIDNAPPING, 1ST DEGREE - SEX
MOTIVATED -

BAIL AMGUNT |
Charge #6: KIDNAPPING, 18T DEGREE - SEX
MOTIVATED '

SET FOR FIRST APPEARANCE

Event: 72 HOUR HEARING {VIDEQ) NLV

Date: 06/05/2015 Time: 9:30 am .
Judge: HOO, KALAN!  Location; DEPARTMENT 1

_Result: FIRST APPEARANCE HELD

- 71912016 5:38 pm

Minutes - Criminal

Page 2 of 7



JUSTICE COURT, NORTH LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
DOCKET SHEET...CRIMINAL

CASE#  15CRN000941-0000  15FNO939X

State LOFTHOUSE, JASON | 7019775 (SCOPE)
DATE, JUDGE, OFFICERS PROCEEDINGS
OF COURT PRESENT APPEARANCES - HEARING EVENTS
Jiine 05, 2075 WMEDIA REQUEST (KTNV) GRANTED PER JUDGE
HOO ~
FIRST APPEARANCE HELD
BAIL SET 250,000

FAD DUE DATE 6-12-15

The following event: 72 HOUR HEARING (VIDEO) NLV
scheduled for 06/05/2015 at 9:30 am has been resulted
as follows:

Resull: FIRST APPEARANCE HELD
Judge: HOO, KALAN| Location: DEPARTMENT 1

MEDIAREQUEST AND ORDER (FOX 5} SIGINzD BY
JUDGE HOO. STATION NOTIFIED.

June 08, 2015 MEDIA REQUEST AND ORDER {CHANNEL 3)
SIGINED BY TERAAMES FOR JUDGE LEE.
ATTORNEY AND STATION NOTIFIED.

SET FOR COURT APPEARANCE

Event: FELONY ARRAIGNMENT NLV

Date: 068/02/2015 Time: 8:30 am

Judge: LEE, CHRIS Location: DEPARTMENT 3

Result: ARRAIGNMENT HEARING HELD

T/8{2M5 5:38 pm Minutes - Griminal - ~ Pagedof7




JUSTICE COURT. NORTH LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
DOCKET SHEET...CRIMINAL

- CASE#  15CRN000941-0000 15FNO938X

Stata LOFTHOUSE, JASON 7019775 (SCOPE)
DATE, JUDGE, OFFICERS PROCEEDINGS .
OF COURT PRESENT APPEARANCES - HEARING EVENTS
June 08, 2015 COMPLAINT SWORN TO AND FILED:
C. Lee, JP ARRAIGNMENT HEARING HELD
V. Villegas, DDA
R. Mayo, CLK INITIAL ARRAIGNMENT
R. Draskovich, ESQ. Defendant PRESENT in CCDC custody
L. Schneider, ESQ. Criminal Complaint filed in open court
JAVS Recording Compiaint presented, advised, waives reading
Louis Schneider and Robert Draskovich confirm as
retained counssl
Recaived discovery
Defense motion for bail reduction $20,000 and house
arrest .
Objection by State.
Defense miotion for bail reduction DENIED
BAIL STANDS at $250,000
COURT ORDERS if bail posted, defendant to be placed
on house arrest, surrender passport and have ro
contact with victim or minor children.
PRELIMINARY HEARING DATE SET
CCDC/$250,000
SET FOR COURT APPEARANCE
Event: PRELIMINARY HEARING NLY
Date; 06/23/2015  Time: 9:00 am
Judge: LEE, CHRIS Location: DEPARTMENT 3
Jdune 10, 2015 MEDIA REQUEST AND ORDER (8 NEWS NOW)
SIGINED BY JUDGE LEE. STATION NOTIFIED,
71912015 5:38 pm Minutes - Criminal " . Pagedof7



JUSTICE COURT. NORTH LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
DOCKET SHEET...CRIMINAL

CASE#  15CRN0Q00941-0000 15ENQO39X

State LOFTHQUSE, JASON 7019778 {(SCOPE)
DATE, JUDGE, OFFICERS . " PROCEEDINGS
OF COURT PRESENT APPEARANCES - HEARING EVENTS

June 23,2015 PRELIMINARY HEARING CONTINUED -

C.lee, JP PROSECUTION REQUEST

B. Schifalacqua, DDA :

M. Howard, CLK THIS 1S THE TIME SET FOR PRELIMINARY

R. Draskovich, ESQ | HEARING

L. Schneider, ESQ Defendant PRESENT in CCDC custody

JAVS Recording Preliminary hearing was called off.

) State's request 1o continue.

Defense is ready, but has no objection.
Motion Granted.
State provided additional discovery to Defense,
Including audio and video statements, DVDs and a
4,000 page report.
The State has four to six witnesses and the preliminary
hearing will be going forward,
PRELIMINARY HEARING DATE SET
CCDC/$250,000 TOTAL BAIL {If ball posted, defendant
to be placed on house arrest, surrender passport and
have no contact with victim or minor children.)
SET FOR COURT APPEARANCE
Event: PRELIMINARY HEARING NLV
Date; 07/09/2015 Time: 9:00 am
Judge: LEE, CHRIS Location: DEPARTMENT 3

July 07, 2015 MEDIA REQUEST AND ORDER (LAS VEGAS SUN}
GRANTED

July 08, 2615 MEDIA REQUEST AND ORDER {ACTION 13 NEWS
KTMV) GRANTED

71912018 5:38 pm Minutes - Criminal Pagie 5 of 7



CASE #

15CRN000941-0000

JUSTICE COURT. NORTH LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
DOCKET SHEET...CRIMINAL

15FND939X

LOFTHOUSE,

JASON 7019775 (SCOPE)

State

DATE, JUDGE, OFFICERS
OF COURT PRESENT

PROCEEDINGS

APPEARANCES - HEARING EVENTS

July 09, 2015

C. Leg, P

R. Scow, DDA

A, Cater, CLK
JAVS Recording

R. Draskovich, ESG)
(Bar #6275)

L. Schneider, ESQ
(Bar#9583)

DISTRICT COURT

ARRAIGNMENT NLV

Date: July 20, 2016

Time; - 10:00am

Location: DISTRICT COURT
ARRAIGNMENT

THIS IS THE TIME SET FOR PRELIMINARY
HEARING: -

DEFENDANT PRESENT IN CCDC CUSTODY
COURT ALLOWS FILING OF THE AMENDED
CRIMINAL COMPLAINT IN OPEN COURT 2 COUNTS
OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS AND AN ADDITIONAL
7 COUNTS SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN
EMPLOYEES OR VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOLAND
PUPIL. COURT RESERVES ANY OBJECTION BY
DEFENSE. STATE NOTES THAT BY
INTERLINEATION, IN COUNT 4, LINE 14, SHE HAS
LINED THROUGH SEXUAL INTERCOUSE AND
REPLACED IT WITH CUNNILINGUS, STATE
FURTHER NOTES THAT SHE RECEIVED
ADDITIONAL DISCOVERY YESTERDAY, WHICH
WAS PROVIDED TO DEFENSE. DEFENSEIS
READY TO PROCEED. COURT INFORMS PARTIES
THAT THE MEDIA HAS BEEN ALLOWED IN THE
COURTROOM AND REFERS TO STATE _
REGARDING AGE OF ALLEGED VICTIM. STATE
MOTION TO CLEAR COURTROOM AND OBJECTS
TO CAMERAS DURING VICTIM'S TESTIMONY AS
SHE IS ONLY 17 YEARS OF AGE. COURT TAKES
MATTER UNDER ADVISEMENT. STATE REFERS TO
NRS 171.204, STATING THAT A MAGISTRATE, IF
GOOD CAUSE IS SHOWN, MAY EXCLUDE ANYONE
FROM COURTROOM.

MATTER TRAILED BY COURT.

CASE RECALLED: :

DEFENSE DOES NOT OBJECT TO COURTROOM
BEING CLEARED FOR TESTIMONY OF UNDER AGE
WITNESS. COURTROOM/CAMERAS CLEARED BY
COURT.

STATE'S WITNESS: MICHELLE TORRES

STATE'S EXHIBITS; 1-4 COPY OF PHOTOS.
EXHIBITS 1, 2 & 3 OFFERED BY STATE, NO
OBJECTION 8Y DEFENSE, EXHIBITS ADMITTED.
EXHIBIT 4 MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION
PURPOSES ONLY, BUT NOT OFFERED FOR
EVIDENCE (STATE HAS CLERK RETAIN EXHIBIT
WITH THOSE ADMITTED).

AFTER DIRECT EXAMINATION OF WITNESS,
COURT TAKES BRIEF RECESS TO RESOLVE
OTHER MATTERS ON CALENDAR,

CASE RECALLED; '

WITNESS RESUMES WITNESS STAND, DEFENSE

71912015 5:38 pm

Minutes - Criminal PageSof 7



CASE#
State

DATE, JUDGE, OFFICERS
QF COURT PRESENT

15CRN000941-0000 15FNO939X

JUSTICE COURT. NORTH LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
DOCKET SHEET...CRIMINAL

LOFTHOUSE, JASON

7019775 {SCOPE)

PROCEEDINGS
APPEARANCES - HEARING

EVENTS

PROCEEDS WITH CROSS EXAMINATION,

COURT TAKES BRIEF RECESS TO ALLOW
CAMERAS AND ANY OTHER REMAINING PARTIES
BACK INTO COURTROOM.

CASE RECALLED:

STATE MOTION TO VOLUNTARILY DISMISS COUNT
8 - GRANTED, '

STATE RESTS

DEFENDANT WAIVES RIGHT TO
TESTIFY/PRESENT EVIDENCE

DEFENSE RESTS ‘

STATE WAIVES OPENING ARGUMENT. MOTIONTO
DISMISS AND ARGUMENT [N FAVOR OF SAID
MOTION BY DEFENSE, ARGUMENT AGAINST SAID
MOTION BY STATE. MOTICN TO DISMISS DENIED.
WITH OMITTING COUNT 8, COURT RE-NUMBERS
AMENDED COMPLAINT TO REFLECT COUNTS 1-14.
THEREUPON THE COURT ORDERED DEFENDANT
HELD TO ANSWER TO SAID CHARGES, A8
AMENDED, IN THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
COURT.

CCDC/$250.00 TOTAL (RESET BY COURT)

SET FOR COURT APPEARANCE

Event: DISTRICT COURT ARRAIGNMENT NLV
Date: 07/20/20158  Time: 10:00 am

Judge; Location: DISTRICT COURT

71912015

5:38 pm

ARRAIGNMENT

Minutes - Criminal

Page7 of 7



- L

e e L v e e e

[e—

[ ] = ] f ot ] [y (g ] [\ f— [ — — e — —r — [a— — '
D R W = O WV oo~ N n AW N~ O W o -3 N W W

27

|

URIGINAL

JUSTICE COURT, NORTH LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

North Las Vegas Justice Gourt
THE STATE OF NEVADE|_ SN CO

Plainti
CASENO; 15FN0939X
..VS-
: DEPTNO: 3

JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE _
#1019775, AMENDED

Defendant. ' :

CRIMINAL COMPLAINT

The Defendant above named having committed the crimes of SEXUAL CONDUCT
BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
(Category C Felony - NRS 201,540 - NOC 51067), OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS
(Gross Misdemeanor - NRS201.210 - NOC 50971) and FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING
(Category A Felony - NRS 200.310, 200.320 - NOC 50053) in the manner following, to-wit:
That the said Defendant, on or between May 6, 2015 and May 28, 2015, at and within the
County of Clark, State of Nevada, | '
COUNT 1 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR,

VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL '

did, on or between May 6, 2015 and May 19, 2015, then and there, willfully, unlawfully
and feloniously, while employed dr volunteering or having been previously cmployed or
vo[unteering in a position ﬁf authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teache;, at Rancho
High School, Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in fellatio, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
COUNT2- OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS |

did, on or between May 6, 2015 and May 19, 2015, willfully and unlawfully commit an
act of open or gross lewdness by said Defendant having the said M.T. rub and/or touch the

body and/or genital area of Defendant and/or said M.T, engage in fellatio with Defendant in &

28 " classroom of Rancho High School.

WAZOLSPANIRIN] SFNOSI9-ACOM-(LOFTHOUSE _JASON)-091.DOCX




| T N T o o e s I o o O I ] e — l
B &t R OW N = S 0 0 oaO ot B ol oN o= O

At R v« O o L V. T - S V" R NG Ry

COUNT 3 - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING

did, on or about May 20, 2015, willfuily, unlawfully and feloniously, lead, take, entice,
carry away or kidnap M.T., a minor, with the inteni to keep, imprison, or confine said M.T.,
from her parents, guardians, or other persdn or persons having lawful custody of M.T,, (;r with
the intent to hold M.T. to unlawful serviee, or to perpetrate upon the person of M.T. any
unlawful act, to-wit: by Defendant engaging in sexual acts with the said M.T which constitute
Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers of School and Pupil, to-wit: sexual
intercourse and/or fellatio and/or cunnilingus.
COUNT 4 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did, on or about May 20, 2013, then and there, willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
whilel'employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of .authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teacher, at Rancho High School,
Clark Courity, Nevada, and whq is over 21 years of age, engage in G Lngus , With
M.T,, who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
COUNT 5 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and felonjously,
while employed or volunteering or having been prcviouély employed or volunteering in a
position of au‘choritjr at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in fellatio, with M.T., who
was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at which
Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering,
/ |
/"
"
/

2
WAZ01 SPAN0GIRI SFN0939-ACOM-{LOFTHOUSE_JASON)-001.DOCK

10




i
. e e e e e

_ [a—
" B W R o= o

16

L= R T N VA N VO SR

COUNT 6 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
- VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL -
did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfuily, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering,
COUNT 7 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL |
_did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,

1 while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a

position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,

Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with

.MT., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or aitending the

school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
8 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intércourse, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant waslor previously had been employed or volunteering.
J |
1
1

N
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COUNTZ - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

3 VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did, on or between May 21, 2015 and May 27, 2015, then and there willfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously, while employed or volunteering or having been previously
employed or volunteering in a position of authority at & public or private schlool, to-wit: a

teach, at Rancho High School, , Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage

" in fellatio, with M.T,, whio was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or

attending the school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
COUNT 40 -%PEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS

did, on or between May 21, 2015 and May 27, 2015, wilifully and unlanully commit
an act of open or gross lewdness by said Defendant having the said MT. rub and/or touch the
body and/or genital area of Defendant and/or said M.T. engage in fellatio With Defendant in a

classroom of Rancho High School.

COUNT% - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING
|
did, on or about May 28, 2015, willfully, unlawfully and feloniously, lead, take, entice,

carry away or kidnap M.T., 2 minor, with the intent to keep, imprison, or confine said M.T.,
from her parents, guardians, or other person or persons having lawful custédy of M.T., or with
the intent to hold M.T. to vnlawful service, or to perpetrate upon the person of M.T. any
unlawful act, to-wit: by Defendant engaging in sexual acts with the said M.T which constitute
Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers of School and Pupil, to-wit; sexual
intercourse and/or fellatio and/or cunnilingus. |
COUNT }Z- SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
/(" VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL |

did, on or about May 28, 2015, then and there wilifully, unIawﬁﬂIy, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in fellatio, with M.T., who

was 16 or 17 years of ége at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at which

4
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Defendant was or previously had been emplﬁyed or volunteering.
COUNT J5"- SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
"% VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did, on or about May 28, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfuily, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit; a teach, at Rancho High School, .,
Clark County, Nevada, 'and who is over 21 years of age, engage in cunnilingus, with M.T,,
who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at
which Defendant was or previously had been emploved or volunteering. _
COUNT M - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

% VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL |

did, on or about May 28, 20135, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or voluntcérin_g or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a.public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant was of previously had been employed or volunteering,
CQUNT X5 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

/ c( VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did, on or about May 28, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in ﬁ
positioﬂ of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school. at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
i
i
/
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STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

STACEY KOLLINS

Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005391

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

CLERK OF THE COURT

Attorney for Plaintiff
1A, 07/20/2015 DISTRICT COURT
10:00 AM CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
SCHNEIDER _ :
THE STATE OF NEVADA, : '
. CASE NO: C-15-307937-1
Plaintiff, : ' .

Ve DEPTNO: XX
JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE,
#7019775

Defendant. INFORMATION

|| STATE OF NEVADA

, 5S.
COUNTY OF CLARK )

STEVEN B. WOLFSON, District Attorney within and for the County of Clark, State
of Nevada, in the name and by the authority of the State of Nevada, informs the Court:

That JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE, the Defendant above named, having
committed the crimes of SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
YOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL (Category C Felony - NRS 201.540 - NOC |
51067), OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS (Gross Misdemeanor - NRS 201.210 - NOC
50971) and FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING (Category A Felony - NRS. 200.310, 200.320

- NOC 50053) in the manner following: _
That the said Defendant; on or between May 6, 2015 and May 28, 2013, at and within

the County of Clark, State of Nevada, contrary to the form, force and effect of statutes in such

cases made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada,
/
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COUNT 1 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL '
| did, on or between May 6, 2015 and May 19, 2015, then and there, willfully, vnlawfully
and feloniously, while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or
volunteering in a position of alitllority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teacher, at Rancho
High School, Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in fellatio, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant was or previously had beenemployed or volunteering. |
COUNT 2 - OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS
"did, on or between May 6, 2015 and May 19, 2015, willfully and unlawfully comumit an
act of open or gross lewdness by said Defendant having the said M.T. rub and/or touch the
body and/or genital area of Defendant and/or said M.T, engage in fellatio with Defendant in a
classroom of Rancho High School. |
COUNT 3 - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING
did, on or about May 20, 2015, willfully, unlawfully and feloniously, lead, take, entice,
carry away or kidnap M.T., a minor, with the intent to keep, imprison, or confine said M. T,
from her parents, guardians, or other person or persons having lawful custody of MLT., or with
the intent to hold M.T. to unlawful service, or to perpetrate upon the person of MJT. any
unlawful act, fo—wit: by Défe_ndant engaging in sexual acts with the said M.T which constitute
Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers of School and Pupil, to-wit: sexual
intercourse and/or fellatio and/or cunnilingus.
COUNT 4 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there, willfully, unlaw(ully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been. previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teacher, at Rancho High School, .
Clark County, NeVada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in cunnilingus, with M.T,,

who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at

2
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which Defendant was or previousl-y had been employed or volunteering.
COUNT 5 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 20., 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in fellatio, with M.T., who
was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at which
Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
COUNT 6 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL _
did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of anthority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering. |
COUNT 7 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed o'r volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the

school at which Defendant.was or previously had been employed or volunteering.

1
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COUNT 8 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
| VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did, on or between May 21, 2015 and May 27, 2015, then and there wiltfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously, while employed or volunteering or having been previously
employed or volunteering in a position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a
teach, at Rancho High School, , Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage
in fellatio, with M. T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or
attending the school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
COUNT 9 - OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS |

did, on or between May 21, 2015 and May 27, 2015, willfully and unlawfully commit

an act of open or gross lewdness by said Defendant having the said M.T. rub and/or touch the

| body and/or genital area of Defendant and/or said M.T. engage in fellatio with Defendant in a

classroom of Rancho High School.
COUNT 10 - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING

did, on or about May 28, 2015, willfully, unlawfully and feloniously, lead, take, entice,
carry away or kidnap M.T., a minor, with the intent to keep, imprison, or confine said M.T.,,
from her parents, guardians, or other person or persons having lawful custody of M.T., or with
the intent to hold M.T. to unlawful service; or to perpetrate upon the person of M.T. any
unlawful act, to-wit: by Defendant engaging in sexual acts with the said M.T which constitute
Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers of School and Pupil, to-wit: sexual
intercourse and/or fellatio and/or cunnilingus. |
COUNT 11 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

' VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did, on or about May 28, 2015, then and there willfully, ﬁnlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a

position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,

" Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in fellatio, with M.T., who

was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at which

4
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Defendant was or previously had been employed or voluntcering.
COUNT 12 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did, on or about May 28, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rahcho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in cunnilingﬁs, with M.T.,
who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at
which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunieering.
COUNT 13 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did, on or about May 28, 2015, then an.d there willfully, unlawfully, ahd feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of anthority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who iS over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or vo}unteeﬁng. |
/"
/"
"
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COUNT 14 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
- VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did, on or about May 28, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,

while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in

a

position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,

Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with

M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the

‘school at which Defendant was or previously hdd been employed or volunteering.

STEVEN B. WOLEFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY /s/ STACEY KOLLINS

STACEY KCLLINS
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005391

DA#15FEN0939X/hjc/SVU
CCSDPD EV#150603963
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STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

STACEY KOLLINS

Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005391

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500 .
Attorney for Plaintiff

CLERK OF THE COURT

LA. 07/20/2015 DISTRICT COURT
10:00 AM CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
SCHNEIDER
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
o CASENO:  C-15-307937-1
Plaintiff,
v DEPT NO: . XX
JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE, , ‘
#7019775 AMENDED
 Defendant. INFORMATION

STATE OF NEVADA %
8S.

COUNTY OF CLARK )
STEVEN B, WOLFSON, District Attorney within and for the County of Clark, State

of Nevada, in the name and by the authority of the State of Nevada, informs the Court:

That JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE, the Defendamt above named, having
committed the crimes of SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPHL (Category C Felony - NRS 201,540 - NOC
51067), OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS (Gross Misdemeanor - NRS 201.210 - NOC
50971) and FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING (Category A Felony - NRS 200.310, 200.320
- NOC 50053) in the manner follbwing:

That the sﬁid Defendant, on or between May 6, 2015 and May 28, 2015, at and within
the Co'unty of Clark, State of Nevada, contrary fo the form, force and effect of statutes in such

cases made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada,
/ |
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COUNT 1 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
YOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL. AND PUPIL

did, on or betwéen May 6, 2015 and May 19, 2015, then and there, willfully, unlawfully
and feloniously, while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or
volunteering in a position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teacher, at Rancho
High School, Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in fellatio, with-
M.T., who was 16 or 17 yeﬁrs of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
COUNT 2 - OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS

did, on or between May 6, 2015 and May 19, 2015, willfully and unlawfully commit an
act of open or gross lewdness by said Defendant having the said M.T. rub and/or touch the
body and/or genital area of Defendant and/or said M.T. engage in fellatio with Defendant in a
classroom of Rancho High School. |
COUNT 3 - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING

did, on or about May 20, 2015, willfully, unlawfully and feloniously, lead, take, entice,
carry away of kidnap M.T., a minor, with the intent to keep, imprison, or confine said M. T,
from her parents, guardians, or other person or persons having lawful custody of M.T., or with
the intent to hold M.T. to unlawful service, or to perpetrate upon the pefson of M.T. any
unlawful act, to-wit: by Defehdant engaging in sexual acts with the said M. T which constitute

Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers of School and Pupil, to-wit: sexual

intercourse and/or fellatio and/or cunnilingus.
COUNT 4 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

~ VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there, willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having lbeen previously employed' or volunteering in a
position o.f authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teacher, at Rancho High School,

Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in cunnilingus, with M.T,,

“who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at

2
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which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteeting.
COUNT 5- SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and therc willfully, unfawfully, and feloniously,

while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position cﬁ" authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
“ Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 yeaﬁ, of age, engage in fellatio, with M.T., who
was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at which
Defendant was or prev‘iously had been employed or volunteering. - '
COUNT 6 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,

while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevﬁda, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.

COUNT 7 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL.

| did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previousty employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,

Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with

M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or atténding the
school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or voluntcéring.
v |
7
H
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COUNT 8 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
© VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did, on or between May 21, 2015 and May ‘27, 2015, then and there willfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously, while employed or. volunteering or having been previously
employed or volunteering in a pos.ition of authority at public or private school, to-wit: a
teach, at Rancho High School, , Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage
in fellatio, with M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or
attending the school at which Defendant was or prevxously had been employed or volunteeri ng.
COUNT 9- OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS

did, on or between May 21, 2015 and May 27, 2015, willfully and unlawfully commit
an act of open or gross lewdness by said Defendant having the said M.T. rub and/or touch the
body and/or genital area of Defendant and/or said M.T. engage in fellatio with Defendant in a
classroom of Rancho High School.
COUNT 10 - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING

did, on or about May 28, 2015, willfully, unlawfully and feloniously, lead, take, entice,
carry away or k_idnep M.T., a minor, with the intent to keep, imprison, or confine said M.T.,
from her parents, guardians, or other person or persons having lawful custody of M.T., or with

the intent to hold M.T. to unlawful service, or to perpetrate vpon the person of M.T. any
unlawful act, to-wit: by Defendant engaging in sexual acts with the said M.T which constitute

Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers of School and Pupil, to-wit: sexual

intercourse and/or fellatio and/or cunnilingus.

COUNT 11 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 28, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private s_choo.l, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in fellatio, with M.T., who

was 16 oi' 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at which

4
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Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering,
COUNT 12 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
" VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about Mé}y 28, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been préviously'empioyed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school,'to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in cunnilingus, with M.T.,

who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at

. which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.

COUNT 13 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did, on or about May 28, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfuily, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public o.r privaté school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
/! |
i
1
/1
/
/I
/
/
/!
/!
/!
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COUNT 14 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL |
did, on or about May 28, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or voiﬁhteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant was or previously had been empldyed or volunteering.
STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar#001565

BY /s/ STACEY KOLLINS
. STACEY KOLLINS
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005391

6
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Names of witnesses known to the District Attorney's Office at the time of filing this

Information are as follows:

ABBOTT; CCSDPD#0199
ALEMAN, MARIA; 2237 DEMETRIUS AVE, LVN 89101

BROWNLEE, BELISA; 3612 SHAWN REYNOLDS CT #203, LVN 89129
BUTLER, VERNON; CANNERY CASINO, 2121 E CRAIG RD, NLV 89030
CASTILLO, ZUREMA,; 6212 CRATERS EDGE ST, NLV 89031

COR or Designee; CCDC

COR or Designee; CCSD

COR or Designee; CCSDPD COMMUNICATIONS

COR or Designee; CCSDPD RECORDS

COR or Designee; RANCHO HIGH SCHOOL

HIBNER; CCSDPD#0243

JONES: CCSDPD#0323

KUZMA, JAMES; 2158 FOUNTAIN SPRINGS DR, HND 89074

LNU, NATHAN; SECURITY SUPER VISOR; ALIANTE HOTEL/CASINO
M.T.; c/o CCDA-SVU/VWAC

MACISZAK; CCSDPD#0308

NORDSTROM, R.; ALIANTE HOTEL/CASINO

PATTY; CCSDPD#0520

PRINCIPAL; RANCHO HIGH SCHOOL

TORRES, ISIDIRO; 5722 COLEMAN ST, NLV 89031

TORRES, MRS. FNU; 5722 COLEMAN ST, NLV 89031

TROXELL; CCSDPD#0373

DA#15FN0939X/hjc/SVU
CCSDPD EV#150603963

7
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DEPARTMENT 3 | | i b s

CLERK OF THE COURT

I DISTRICT COURT CASE NO. C-15-307937-1

IN THE JUSTICE'S COURT OF NORTH LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP

CLARK COUNTY, STATE OF NEVADA

* * * * &

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

CASE NO. 15FN0939X
15CRN000941-0000

VS,

JASON LOFTHOUSE,

Defendant.

RECORDED TRANSCRIPT

OF
~ PRELIMINARY HEARING

BEFORE THE HONORABLE CHRISTOPHER K. LEE
JUSTICE OF THE PEACE

THURSDAY, JULY 9, 2015, 9:00 A.M.

APPEARANCES:
For the State; ' , BARBARA SCHIFALACQUA, ESQ.
o STACY KOLLINS, ESQ.
Deputy District Attorneys
For the Defendant; ' ROBERT DRASKOVICH, ESQ.

LOUIS SCHNEIDER, ESQ.

TRANSCRIBED BY:. .NORMA JEAN SILVERMAN, COURT RECORDER
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INDE X

WITNESSES FOR THE STATE

MICHELLE TORRES _
Direct Examination by Ms. Schifalacqua
Cross-Examination by Mr. Draskovich
Cross-Examination by Mr. Schneider
Redirect Examination by Ms. Schifalacqua

PAGE
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77
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NORTH LAS VEGAS, CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THURSDAY, JULY 9, 2015, 9:00 A.M.

* * * * *

PROCEEDINGS

THE COURT: Good morning, Ms. Schifalacqua. Are we waiting on

defense counsel on your case?

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Yes, judge.

THE COURT: s that the Lofthouse matter?

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: That is. And we will be going forward
today so.... _ o
| THE COURT: Okay. Um, all right. So that - the Lofthouse.
preliminary hearing is going forw ard.

How many -- how many witnesses aré we looking at?

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Um, your Honor, potentially it can be done
with one, but [ do have (indiscernibie).detectives, so one to three.

THE COURT: Okay. Perfect. Then, uh, just let me know when
you're ready get going. Um, | -- | intend on calling your prefiminary hearing as

soon as possible here. Um -

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: And, judge, | do have an Amended. | spoke

- Mr. Draskovich wasn't here (indiscernible) -
THE COURT: Okay.
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: - (indiscernibie).
THE COURT: All right. Good. Then let's wait on that until the

attorney gets here since we're just handling some housekeeping matters. Um,
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okay. _
(Whereupon other matters were heard in open court.)

THE COURT: It's nine o'clock. Let me see if | can call this
Lofthouse preliminary hearing. |

State of Nevada versus Jason Richard Lofthouse, 15FN839X.

MS. SCHI{FALACQUA: _Gbod morning, your Honor. Barbara
Schifalacqua {indiscernible).

THE COURT: Let me, if you can, um, let me ask my bailiff to go
pull-- is it Mr. Draskovich or Mr. Schneider or both?

MS. KOLLINS: Both.

_M'S.' SCHIFALACQUA: Both.

THE COURT: If you can grab the defense attorneys, then we'll see
where we are.

(Pause in proceedings.)

THE COURT: Good morning, Mr. Draskovich, Mr. Schneider.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Good mornihg. '

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (Indiscernible).

| THE COURT: This is on State of Nevada versus Jason Riohard'
Lofthouse, 15FN939X.
| ~ Just wanna take care of a couple housekeeping matters before we
go forward on this matter. I'm in receipt of an Amended Criminal Complaint
this morning.
" Mr. Draskovich, Schneider, have you received that as well?
MR. DRASKOQVICH: Uh, yes, we just received a copy of it.
THE COURT: Al right. So I'm gonna go ahead and allow for its

al
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filing at this time and reserve any objections that you may have to it down the.
road at any point if the preliminary hearing goes forward or after you consult
with, um, the witnesses this morning. |

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: And, your Honor --

THE COURT: Yeah, sure. |

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: - | appreciate it. (Indiscernible) as to
regards to Count 4 so that interlineation, Count 4, line 14, (indiscernible) all the
copies | changed it — instead of - if it's described as a sexual conduct as you
caﬁ see (indiscernible) -- ,

THE COURT: Al right. Looks like you interlineated sexual
intercourse and wrote in cunnilingué; is that correct?

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: (Indiscernible).

THE COURT:  All right.

MS..SCHIFALACQUA: (Indiscemnible) change on all the copies.

MR. DRASKOVICH: And it appears the State is trying to tease out
multiple counts of sexual conduct between certain employees for the same
conduct or the same course of conduct that occurred on the same day so we
are going to object -- |

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. DRASKOQOVICH: -- (indiscernible) we have the State
(ndiscernible). S

THE COURT: Okay. Allright. Sowe'll certainly take up that
argument and slee if the State meets their burden regarding how it's pled.

Currently on -~ according to the Amended Criminal Complaint we

have, um, we have 15 counts in total.

a2
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All r_ight. Um, the State has indicated that they're prepared to go
forward this morning. | |
| Mr. Draskovich, is the defense ready as well? |
MR. DRASKOVICH: We are prepared to go forw ardr as well.
THE COURT:  All right. No 6ther discovery issues or no other

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: (Indiscernible) the last time (indiscernible)
the State - any witnesses that we call today - yesterday | was in receipt of
transcribed -- a transcription of certain statements. | provided all to the
(indiscernible) that | obtained yesterday fo defense counsel this morning.

THE COURT: Okay. Perfect. And as far as the preliminary
hearing goes, um, any audio-visual equipment needed this morning?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No.

THE COURT: Okay. Allright. Perfect.

Um, and | know that -- so -- so | signed and granted the media
request regarding this preliminary hearing. s your - is your alleged_ victim still a
minor? _

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes, sheis, judge.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. S_CHIFALACQUA:_ At this fime obviouély in terms of statutes
I'm gonna ask that the media be (indiscernible), um, the courtroom cleared.

Um, there is another reason why (indiscernible). The main victim in this caseis | .
a minor child, she is only 17 years old. You can imagine that she's
(indiscernible) to be able to come forward and testify here today but more

importéntly she still has another year of high school (indiscernible). This has
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been all over the media. She goes to that same school. She will still attend the
same school, and so for thosé parts it is obviously -- we're not gonna want
specifically cameras in there. |

If your Honor is inclined to let any person stay and not have the

ask to make sure that there is zero cameras that are allowed to be up'at all,
that no one (indiscernible) her voice, nothing, which they're not allowed
anyway, but. that it's not even capable that they record her in any way.

THE COURT:  Just so that | know that we're doing the leést
restrictive access - is that right, the least restrictive means of access possible,
you're -- the rules that you're citinQ would simply be for her portion of the
testimony‘ that the media would be allow ed full access with cameras and
everything for any remaining part of the preliminary hearing?

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: We may potentially have a couple of
witnesses we will call, as | indicated, up {o three witnesses potentially, and the
adults we have no objectiqn to. Obviously our concemn is the minor child.

THE COURT: Okay. And she, um -- is she gonna be testifying on
her own this morning? '

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Allright. So let me take that issue under
advisement and for members of the media we'll make sure that we have some
clear direction on - on going forward on this, um, um, andf State, if you |
wouldn't mind, you know, | know that the statute regarding the, um, the
motion or the request to clear the courtroom regarding sexual assault cases

involving minors, but if you could get me the specific rule for -- that affects the
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media as well and what grammér that they may have I'd appreciate that during
the break. | -

 And then, ufn, we'll get going as soon possible. | only have a few
more cases from the morning calendar to w'rap up so hopefully we'll get.going
on this preliminary hearing by -- by, let's say, $:357

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Okay. And, your Honor, for the record --

THE COURT: Mm-hmm?

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: - pursuant to N.R.S. 171.204,
(indiscernible), um, even specific to.sexual assault, (indiscernible) let them know
that there's one that covers that, but it does indicated that a magistrate may
(indiscernible) anything obviously (indiscernible) continue to go to school, et
cetera, (indiscernible) in this case, judgé, and the nature of those things she's
gonna have to talk about (indiscernible), but (indiscernible) any party, actually
(indiscernible) anyone from the courtroom but for (indiscernible) person, an that
includes (indiscernible) Nevada counsel, defendant, prosecutors, et cetera. So
that's under N.R.S. 171.204. '

MR. DRASKOVICH: And just s0 we make the record clear this is
not a sexual assault case. |

We actually take issue with this girl being referred to as a victim.
She's reached the age of consent; hoWever, we do concur with the State's
request in that we would fike to have the cameras excluded during her
testimony but not for the purposes or for reasons the State has claimed she‘s --
she's some victim of some sexual abuse. She's not. |

THE COURT: Okay. Allright. Just - simply based on her statu's

as a minor?
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|And just so, um, the other members or individuals here in the courtroom can at

MR. DRASKOVICH: As a student, ves.

THE COURT:  Okay. All right. So we'll go ahead and make sure
we, ﬁm, take care of that during the break so we can go forward without any
interruptions. |

Then court'll be in recess and let's plan on getting going at 9:35
then. Court's in recess. Thank you.

THE BAILIFF: Court is in recess.

| (Recess taken.)
(Whereupon other matters were heard in open court.)

- THE COURT: Okay. That takes us to this is the time, day, and
place set for the preliminary hearing in the matter of the State of Nevada versus
Jason Richard Lofthouse, 15FNO39X. |

We'll have Mr. Lofthouse come down and sit next to his counsels

least have a heads-up, State, at what point do you intend on calling your minor
victim? Is it first up or last? |

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (Indiscernible).

MR. DRASKOVICH: And, judge, she's not a victirﬁ.

THE COURT: Okay. Alleged victim.

MR, DRASKOVICH: Well, it's not even that --

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (Indiscemible) the named victim. There's

o (indiscernible) - |
M'R. DRASKOVICH: He's charged with (indiscernible) contact under

N.R.S. 201 540. That's crimes as against decency and moral conduct. [t's not

crimes against a person so it's -
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THE COURT: All right. Okay. So -- so the minor individual |
involved in this case w.iII be first up?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes. The named victim.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. So -

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: She's not a victim by statute.

THE COURT: So what we'll dois, um —

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (Indiscérnibie).

THE COURT: So, uh, the State having made the request to haves
the courtroom cleared for the testimony of the minor, there being no objection
by the defense, we'll have the courtroom cleared once the first witness is called
and then our bailiff will come get everyone and let everybne Know when they
can come back in then. All right?

MR. DRASKOVICH: Thank you.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you.

THE COURT: Okay. If there aren't ahy other preliminary matters
then,-State,— please call your first witness.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Your Honor, the State calls Michelle
Torres. | _

THE COURT: Allright. All right,'then, um, uh, bailiff, | guess
Officer McDowell, | guess we'll have to clear the courtroom since that's the
(indiscernible) - "

THE BAILIFF: May | have everybody leave the courtroom, please.

MR. GARDNER: Your Honor, is it all right if we stay. | -

THE COURT: Yeah, yeah, no, you can.

MR. GARDNER: -- I'm just thinking of my clients. They have

10
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(indiscernible) -- |

THE COURT:  Yeah, no, sure.

Okay. Go ahead and make your way up around hére to the
witness stand, please. Remain standing if you can, raise your right hand for our

bailiff.

MICHELLE TORRES,

having been first duly swom, was examined

‘and testified as follows:

THE COURT: Go ahead and say your name and spell your last
name into that microphone, please. |

THE WITNESS: Michelle Torres, T-0-r-r-e-s. ‘ |

THE COURT: Okay. Thanks. And then, Michelle, uh, if you can,
just to let you know so everything needs to be recorded here so try to talk as

loudly and clearly as you can into that microphone right in front of you. Okay?

Okay?
THE WITNESS: (Inaudible.)
THE COURT: Ineed it a little bit louder than that. Okay?
THE WITNESS: Okay.
THE COURT: Okay. Perfect.
All right, Ms. Schifalacqua.
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Thank your Honor.

11
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BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:
Q.
A.
Q.
A
Q.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

Michelle, how old ére you?
Seventeen.

What's your date of birth?
October 22", 1987.

Okay. And, as the judge says, | know these microphones move all

the way up, but your voice is pretty quiet and i'm gonna need you to speak as

loud as you can. Is that all right?

A.
Q.

a

O S PR

Okay. _

Um, you said that you're 17 years old.

Whe‘re do you go.to school? |

Rancho High School.

Okay. And how long have you gone to Rancho High School?
Three years.

Al three years?

Yes.

So it's obviously July right now. Isit fair to say you're on a

summer break?

A

o = 0 »

Yes.

What year were you in school, this prior school year?
Um, 2014-2015.

Okay. And what were you? Freshman? Sophomore?
A junior.

You were a junior, Okay.

12
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Q.

> p »

And so is it -- you have one more year to go, senior year still?
(No audible response).

Is that -- I'm sorry?

Yes.

Okay. With regard to your junior year, um, you went the entire

year at Rancho; is that right?

A.

o> 0 » 0

Yes.

And do you know a person by the name of Jason Lofthouse?

Yes.

Do you see Jason Lofthduse in the courtroom today?

Yes.

Can you please point to him -

MR. DRASKOVICH: We'll stipulate to I.D. for the purpose of

lipreliminary hearing. |
- MS, SCHIFALACQUA:  That's fine, judge.

BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

Q.

Can you please point to him identify something that he's wearing

here today in court?

A.

Q
A.
Q

Wearing blue.
| couldn't hear you, Michelle.
He's wearing blue.

And can you please point {0 where he's seated.

MR.' DRASKOVICH: We'd object as to relevance. We've stipulated

|to I.D. for the purpose of preliminary hearing.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Judgé, | can obviously prove up my case.

13
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appreciate the stipulation but [ can have her identify for purpose of later on,

whether or not he's observing her, et cetera.

THE COURT: Sure. Il - I'll accept the stipulation, um, but
overrule the objection so you can go ahead and ask your question.
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA: | |
Q. Can you please point to Mr. Lofthouse and identify what he's
wearing today in court? | |
A. He's wearing blue.
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: And, your Honor, let the record reflect the

witness has identified Jason Lofthouse.

THE COURT: Did you -- Michelle, did you point over there who - |

where is he in blue?
THE WITNESS: In the middie between....
THE COURT: | need you to speak up a little bit more for me,
Michelle. What did you say?
| THE WITNESS: - In the middle.
MS. KOLLINS: She said he was in the middle.
THE COURT: Al right. The record will reflect identification of the

defendant.

BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

Q. And how did you know Jason Lofthouse?
A. Hewas my A.P. U.S. history teacher.

Q. And | can barely hear you, Michelle, so if you have to shout that's

what I'm gonna need you to do. Okay?

A. Hewas my A.P. U.S. history teacher.

14
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| year?.

Q. Okay. For your junior year of high school at Rancho 'High School
he was your A.P. U.S. history teacher? |

A, Yes.

Q. Do you remember what, um, hour of the school 'day you héd his
classes? \

A.  Um, fourth period. _

Q. Okay. And so you first met him at the beginning of the school

A.  Correct.

Q. Okay. Does Rancho have a school year where you have the same
classes the entire year or do you have different classes for each semester?

A.  Same classes. o

Q.  Okay. You had first met the defendant Mr, Lofthouse at, what,
August of 2014; is that about right? |

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. Now and you stayed in his class throughout "til June of
2015; is that right? |

A, Yes

Q. When you first met him how old were you?

A.  Sixteen.
Q. Okay. And then when you still had his class throughout the end of

the school year (indiscernible) now you're 177

A, Yes.

Q. Ilwannatalk to 'you about, um, your contact with Mr. Lofthouse.

During that first semester, um, how would you describe your

15
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relationship with him?

A.
Q.
A
Q.

(Indiscernible) beginner teacher-student _relatio.nship.
Okay. And did there come a time where that kinda changed?

Yes.

- Okay. !wanna talk to you again ~ was the student-teacher

relationship the same the whole first semester?

A.

Q.

Um, yes.

Okay. So the first semester of your junior year that relationship

was like a teacher-student relationship?

A,

Q
A
Q

A.
Q.
teacher?

A.

B > P > 0 >0

Yes. 7

What time frame did it start to change?
Um, second semester.

Your second semester?

So did you have a winter break?

Yes.

When you came back from winter break was Mr. Lofthouse your

Yes.

Was there ever a time that he was out on leave?
Yes.

Describe that for the court, please.

Um, he was out 'cause he had -- had a child recently.
| couldn't hear you, Michelle.

Recently had a child.

(Indiscernible) -

16
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A.  Had recently had a child.
Q.  Okay.
THE COURT: Thank you, Michelle. There you go.
BY MS. SCHIFALAGQUA:
Q. And that -- did he have to do that -- and I'm sorry, | know you're
soft spoken -- if -- permission, your Hono'r -- if  can move this up as far as | can
THE COURT: Yesh.
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:
Q. - butwe're gonné have to have you close to the mike. Okay?
A.  Okay.
Q. Okay.' And if you need to lean forward please do so.
A.  Okay. |
Q. Um, you said he had had a child so did you have a substitute

teacher during that time?

A.  Yes.
Q. Was that January of 20157
A.  1think so.

Q. Okay. Um, but then did Mr. Lofthouse come back t.o be your
teacher again?
| A. Yes.

Q. And w.hat time frame was that?

A.  Some time after winter break.

- Q. Um, did you ever have contact -- and | wanna specifically talk about

that winter break time frame -- did you ever have contact, uh, with Mr.
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Lofthouse through any kind of social media?

A.  No, not during winter break.

Q. What was that, Michelle? _
A.  Not during winter break. |
Q. .Not during winter break.
Was there some time after winter break that you did?
A.  Um, yeah.
Q.  Describe that, please, for the court.
A. Um, | started following him on Twitter.
Q.  Okay? And did you ever send messages to him?
A.  Yes.
Q.- What kind of messages?
A. | What do you mean?

Q.  When you first followed him on Twitter what kind of messages did
you send to Mr. Lofthouse? |

A. Um, like tweeted --

Q.  Sure. |

A. - him?

Q. What kind? Explain that for the court, please.

A. L Um, | said-come back, um, from his absence since we didn'f enjoy
the substitute teacher. |

Q. Soit's fair to say you didn't like the substitute teacher when Mr.
Lofthouse was gone? |

A. No.

Q.  Was that just you yourself or were there other friends of yours in

18
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classes (indiscernible)?
A.  There were other rpeople.
| Q. | Okay. Woas that one of the first times that ydu tweeted a message
to Mr. Lofthouse you wanted him to come back to school?
A.  Atwest, yes,
Q. And, um', did you have time where you started talking to him more
than j‘ust with some friends?
A, Yes.
Q. Describe that for the court, please.
A. - Um, we began direct messaging.
Q Okay. Direct messaging?
For thoée of us whao are a little bit older can you explain what diréct
messaging means? |
A.  lt's direct messaging.
So would you send a message'to someone personally?
Yes.
And did you do that with Mr. Lofthouse?
Yes.

Would he do that to you back?

A S

Uh, yes.

Q. Okay. What was the time frame on this when the direct
messaging began?

‘A, Um, pro.bably like-March.

Q. March of 20157

A.  Yes.
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time?

Q. Okay. Was Mr. Lofthouse back. at school teaching during that

Yes.

Q. Okay. And did there bome a point that your relationship changed

from a teacher-student relationship to something else?

Yes.

Can you describe for the court how that progressed?

> o »

Um, we began direct messaging on a daily basis.

Q. Okay. So you would talk to Mr. Lofthouse or direct message to

Mr. Lof.thouse every day?

>0 P P P O FTOr O rOor o

A.  Um, yeah.
[s that a yes?
Yes. | |
What types of things would you tell him about?
Um, anything.
| can't hear you, Michelle, I'm sorry.
Everything.
Everything? Like what?
- Like school stuff.
Okay. Did you ever talk about stuff that wasn't about school?
Yes.
Like what?
Um, like music.
Music? Okay. Anything else?

Um, yeah.
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would talk to him on a daily basis did you tell him your -- like how you're feeling

on that -- every day?

A.

> 0 > 0O

Q. -

talk about muSic.

o > P > 0 > O F

Would you describe that for the court. .
Um, like our.... | don't know.
You don't know? Okay.

When you would talk to him - let me ask it this way. When you

| suppose.

You suppbse or you did?

| sSuppose.

Okay. Did he tell you what was going on in hi‘s day?
I would talk about our days.

Okay. So you would talk about your days and you said you wouid

Um, how old is he?
Thirty-two.

Thirty-two years old?
And is he married?
Yes.

Does he have any kids?
Yes.

How many?

Three.

Um, did ybu ever see pictures of them?
Yes. On Twitter.

On Twitter?
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A,
Q.

Mm-hmm.

Now' you started talking daily, you said that was about March of

2015; is that right?

A.
Q. Okay. Um, did it - you continue to tatk daily with Mr. Lofthouse

About.

through April of 20157

A.
Q.
A.
Q.

Yes.
What about May?

Yes.

Okay. Did there come a point, um, where you started to like Mr.

Lofthouse different than just liking a teacher?

A

o 0 > O >F 0P FOPF

Yes.

Describe that for the court.

~ Describe....

Yeah. How did it change?

Um, I began to like him.

Okay. Did he ever tell you he began fo like you?
Yes.

How did he do that?

Uh, that he was attracted to me.

Okay. Did he tell you anything else?

Like? |

Uh, like your personality --

Yes. |

—- did he tell you anything about that?

22
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Q.

A
Q
A
Q
A
Q
A

Yes.

What would he say?

That | was funny.

Okay. Would he tell you anything about your looks?
Yes.

What would he say?

| was pretty.

Okay. What time frame was it when you told Mr. Lofthouse that

he told you that you guys liked each other? When was that?

A.

a

Q
A.
Q
A

[ believe late April.

April of 20157

Yes.

Okay. Were you still in his class in fourth period during that time?
Yes. |

bkay. Did you end up getting -- did you have Mr. Lofthouse's

phone number?

A.

> 0 » 0 > 0 > P

~Yes.

In your phone?

Yes. |

Was it saved?

Yes.

What was it saved under?

An emaoiji.

An emoji? What kind of emoji was it saved under?

A smiley face.

23

5@



—

[\J[\JI\J..NM[\J_\_x...x_L—\._\._\_;_\_‘
L% B o S = = T« - B R o  SE'S TN U JC S NS

o o [o~] -~ [wp] o = (V] g

> P PO P 0 >0 F» 0P 0P 0 >P

Q.
you said late April or May after Mr. Lofthouse told you he liked you.

Okay; Did you ever have it saved under his name?
Yeah.

What did you.have -- what name did you /have?

Jason. |

Okay. And then at what point did you change it to the emoji?
| don't recall. _ |

Was it after or before the name? Lie which came first?
After.

Okay. Why did you do that?

Um, didn’'t want anyone to see it.

Didn't want anyone to see what?

His name. |

Why?

| didn't want them to find out.

What time frame was this, do you remember?

No.

Okay. Well, | wanna turn ybur attention to then that time frame

THE COURT: Ms. Schifalacqua, ! apologize. Let me, if | can, that
seems like a good stopping point. Let me take - wrap up this one last case and

then we'll continue g'oing on with this. Okay? Do you have it? All right.

So we'll take a brief recess from this preliminary hearing.

(Whereupon other matters were heard in open court.)’

THE COURT: We'll get back on the record. Um, the continuation

of the preliminary hearing in the State of Nevada versus Richard - I'm sorry - in

24
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the matter of the State of Nevada versus Jason Richard Lofthouse, 15FN939X.

some remaining cases -- or a remaining case that | had from an earlier calendar.

We took a brief recess from this preliminary hearing to wrap up

| apologize, Ms. Schifalacqua.

~ If you can, uh, go ahead and continue with direct examination.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Thank your Honor.
THE COURT: Mm-hmm.

BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

Q. You talked about having, um, the defendant Mr. Lofthouse's phone

number saved in your phone with an emoji. Do you remember that?

A.

e > O » O > O > O

Yes.

Okay. And did you text message Mr. Lofthouse?
Yes.

Did he text message you?

yes.

How often?

Often.

Was it every day?

Pretty much.

Okay. |wanna turn your attention in to May of 2015.

And did there come a time where your relationship with Mr.

Lofthouse started to get physical?

A.
Q.
A.

Yes.

Describe the first time it got physical for you.

We kissed.
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Q.

>0 P O P D PO

Where were you when you kissed?

~In his classroom.

At-Rancho High School?

Correct.

And was the door open to your classroom?
No.

Was it locked? -

Probably.

Okay. - And, um, did you guys kiss each other at the same time or

how did it happen?

A.
Q.

Same time.

Okay. And which side of the classroom were you in? Describe it

for the court, please.

A.

o > O »

In the right corner.

Why were you in the right corner?

To not be seen.

What was that?
To not be seen.

To not be seen.

Where -- so you kissed that day. Did you do anything else in May

during that (indiscernible)?

o o O F

Yes. _
Describe it for the court, please.

It began to get more physical.

So at the times that you would on different days have physical
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contact with Mr. Lofthouse in the classroom?

A.

Q.

> 0 » O P O P> O PO

" Yes.

How many times?

" Couple.

Was that -- did that include kissing?

Yes. |

Did it ever include anyth‘ing else?

Yes.

Describe what else did it include?

| gave him oral.

What do you mean when you 'say you gave him oral?
Um, mouth to penis. |

So let's go back. | want you to try and describe where were you

when this first happened?

A.

> 0 P > 0 P O >DO

What first happened?

‘When you gave him oral.

In the classroom.

Okay. Was it Mr. Lofthouse's classroom?
Yes. ' | |

Was anyone else in the classroom?

No.

Was the door shut?

Yes.

Was it locked?

Probabily.
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body?

“Um, and before you gave him oral sex was -- did you kiss him?

O » O > D0 > O > PO > O

~ Okay. What parts of your body did he touch what parts of his

- Okay. So did it include your breast area?

| Yes.

> 0 » O F O PO F O PO P

Were you outside the view of the window and the door?

Yes.

Yes.

Did he kiss you?

Yes.

Did you guys touch each other?

Yes.

Describe that for the court, please, (indiscernible).

We kissed each other and touched each other, exactly like you said.

Um, all over.

Yes.

And j}our vagina?

I don't know . |

No? Okay. What about your (indiscemible)? |
Yes. |

Um, and what about your hands? Did you touch his chest area?

Um, his ge'nital area?
Yes.
Um, his (indiscernible)?

| don't know.
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Q. Okay. Um, when you touched his genital area Was there ~ did he

have clothes on at first?
A Yes.
Q. Okay. And did there come a point in time --
MR. DRASKOVICH: Objection. Leading. |think....
THE COURT: You wanna restate that?

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: | said did he have clothes on ét first so

(indiscernible) --
MR. DRASKOVICH: Every question suggests the answer.
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: - That's not suggesting.

THE COURT: I'll go ahead and sustain for now. I'll allow you to -

to establish little bit more foundation if need be. | understand it's, um....
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Sure.
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:
Q. Did he have clothes on?
THE COURT: (Indiscernible} you go.
THE WITNESS: Yes.
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

Q. Okay. Did there come a point in time where you didn't have

clothes on any more?

A.  Um, pulled down his pants.

Q. Okay. So -
THE COURT: I'm sorry, Michelle, did you only his pants?
THE WITNESS: He pulled off his - he puiled down his pants.
THE COURT: He pulied down his pants. Okay.
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BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

Q.

o > 0 »

S0 his pants were down.
Was he wearing underwear?
Yeah.

Is that a yes, Michelle?

Yes.

Um, and at some point you indicated that his penis was exposed so

did his underwear stay on or off?

A.

SR “EE v

o> 0 > p >

Came down | guess.

Pulled down, is that what you said?

Fulled down | guess.

Okay. And at some point his penis was -- was it outside of --
Yes. |

-- his underwear? Yes? Okay.

~ And then you indicated you gave him oral sex and yolur mouth was

on Mr. Lofthouse's penis; is that right?

Yes.

"Til when?

~ Well, what?

'Til when? How long?

| don't -- couple minutes.

Okay. Why did it stop? |

MR. DRASKOVICH: Objection. Vague. Why did it stop? It's

assuming facts not in evidence, there's a (indiscernible) for stopping.

THE COURT: Um, well, | think -- her last answer was that it --
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MS. SCHIFALACQUA: (Indiscemnibte) -
THE GOURT: But it did stop so | think - | don't think it assumes

|Ifacts not in evidence because her answer -- previous answ er indicated that it
stopped so |'m gonna overrule it and allow it. You can ask it the same way or
you can rephrase it, however you want - _
MS. SCH!FALACQUA: (Indiscérnible) clarify it (indiscernible) .
THE COURT: Okay. |
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:
Q. Did at some point your mouth stop being on Mr. Lofthouse’s pems’?
A.  Yes.
Q. How did that happen?
A. |t stopped.
Q. . Okay. Did he ejaculate?
A. Yes. |
Q  Where?
A.  In my mouth.

Q. Thereafter is that the time frame that your mouth -- that you

remnoved your mouth from Mr. L ofthouse's penis?
A.  Yes. |
Q. After that occurred what did you do next?
A. (Indiscernibie).
Q. . Did you say (indiscernibie)?
A. Probably.
Q.

up?

31
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A Pulted 'em up.

Q. How long did you stay with him in the classroom?

A I don'.t recall. |

Q.' And that day did you continue fo have communications with Mr.
Lofthouse?

A.  Yes.

Q Okay. That was in early May; is that right?
A. 1don't recall.
Q

Okay. Did there come a time where --

THE COURT: Ms. Schifalacqua, I'm sorry to interrupt, so we have

our court recorder here. | think she's indicating that shé picks you up much
better if you- stand behind the table where that microphone is right there or
even move down. |
| MS. SCHIFALACQUA: (Indiscernible).

THE COURT: Yeah.

There you go.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Court's brief induigence.

THE COURT: | guess in a few weeks we won't need this -- we
won't have this problem, right, they all need to be transcribed; is that right?

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: All set.

THE COURT: Okay. Allright. Much better.

And, then, Michelle, you, too, if you can just speak up a little bit
more for us. Okay. Thanks. |

MS. SCHIFALACQUA:
Q. Uh, | wanna direct your attention to May 20" of 2015.
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Michelle.
A.

P ¥ O > 0 P L FP

home?

> 0 > 0 F

D » 0 >0 >

Did you have occasion to go to a hotel with Mr. Lofthouse?

Yes. .

‘What hotel was that?

Aliante.
What?

Aliante'.

Okay. |gonna need you to speak all the way into that mike,

Aliante.

Okay. How did you -~ was there a plan to go to Aliante?

. Yes.

"~ Was that plan with Mr. Lofthouse?

Yes. ,

And describe the plan for the court, please.

He would pick me up and we would go.

Okay. Where was Mr. Lofthouse gonna pick you up?

He picked me up on Ranch House Street.

Okay. And Ranch House Street, where is that in refation to your

Close; nearby.

Okay. Um, what time did he pick you up on May 20" of 20157

Around 7:15.
In the morning?

In the morning.

Did you have school that day?
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Yes.
Did you go to school that day?
No.

How did you normally get to school, Michelle?

LR R PR

My mom would drive me.

Q. And did your - ydur mom obviously didn't drive you that day; is

that right?
A. No. -
Q.  Okay. What did you tell her?
A. lwas gonna get aride --
Q. Aride -
A. --from a friend.
Q. Fromafriend to w herg?
A.  To school.

Q. Okay. Did you ever tefl your mom you were gonna go with Mr.

Lofthouse anyw here?-

A. No.

Q. Did you ever get a permission to not go to school that day?
A. No.

Q. And to go with Mr. Lofthouse to Aliante (indiscernible)?

MR. DRASKOVICH: Objection. Relevant. Her mother's permission

as to whether or not she would be with this gentleman is irrelevant. There's no

element in this crime.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Absolutely there's no (indiscernible) of a

crime. It's called first-degree kidnapping and it's pursuant to statute, um, that

34

.61



—

L e A A T L e L e S I G G G
L L B S L = R (= Y« - T I, SRS S UL JCN e S

S W e~ D T = W N

obVidust he took her, she went with him without permission of fhe legal
guardian and/or parent --

MR. DRASKOVICH: | would -

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: -- and soit's directly relevant.

MR. DRASKOVICH: - | would -- [ would ask the State to point to
which element the statute they're referring to conceming (indiscernible).

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Sure. Court's indulgehce.

N.R.S. 200.310, um, a person who leads, takes, entices, or carries
away or detains any minor with-the intent to hold the minor to either unlawful
surface or perpetrate upon the person of a minor.any uniawful act is guilty of
kidnapping; however, it is with -- excuse me -- uh, the -- away from the minor
from his or her parent”s, guardians, or any other person having the lawful
custody of the minor.

- MR. DRASKOVICH: Once again there is no element of pe_rrhis’sion
of parents.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Right.

MR. DRASKOVICH: Again, too, this case does not involve -- this is
not the victim. This man is charged with sexual conduct between certain
employees or volunteers to school and pupil. It's charged under N.R.S. 201
540, | |

You know, as you know, your Honor, our statutes are broken down
(indiscernible) - )

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Judge, am | gonna be able to finish my

direct examination --

THE COURT: Right, right. Hold on a second, Ms. Schifalacqua.
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Let me -- let me let Mr. Draskovich finish his objection. It sounds like an issue
that we're gonna have to ﬂuSh out here anyways. Go ahead, Mr. Draskovich.

MR. DRASKOVICH: Als your Honor's well aware .thé crimes in this
state, the Nevada Revised Statutes are broken up into categories. There's |
transient public justice, crimes against public sovereignty, crirhes against the
person, and there's also a section concerning crimes against public decency and
good morals. |
| This man is charged for having unlaw ful contact with a pupil and
that's charged under N.R.S. 201 540. Once again that's not crimes against the
person. That's crimes against the public decency.

And the State's trying to make a victim out of a nonvicﬁim -

THE COURT: And, Mr. Draskovich, I'm gonna let you get into that
part of your argument in your case or in any other objection but at this point 1'm
gonna overrUle the objection. | find it relevant as to Count 3. In Count 3 it's
clearly aside from the arguments that you're making right now, is she's the
named victim in Count 3, and that is to a person so i'm gonna go' ahead and
allow that at this point but certainly allow youto have a continuing objection
throughout regafding that.

Okay. Ms. Schifalacqua.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Thank you, your Honor.
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

Q.  Soit's clear you didn't have permission from either of your parents

to go with Mr. Lofthouse on May 20" of 2015; is that right?

A. Correct.

Q. Okay. When you told your mom that you were getting a ride from
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a friend to school on May 20" you didn't get that ride from a friend; is that

right?

e » O >

1| time?

e O >

o > O »

> P > O >

No.

Okay. Um, who picked you up?

Mr. Lofthouse.-

Can you describe what he was driving?
Presumably he was driving a car; is that right?

(Indiscernible).

- Okay. Describe it for me, please.

Blue, four-car -- four-door car.

A blue four-door car.

Do you know about, uh, make of the car?

(Indiscernible).

What?

Toyota.

it was a Toyota. Okay.

When you -- you indicated what street did he plck you up by?

Rancho.

Okay. And was anybody elsé in the car with Mr. Lofthouse at that

No.

Where did you guys go?
Aliante --

Okay.

-- Casino.

37

64



e RN [

—_

£ N o [\ -— [an] oW o =l (8] n W (] - < [de] <o -~ [)] (@] = w N

ro
&

>

o O O F QO

What'd you do when you got to Aliante?

We went to the room.

-Okay. " Did you check into the room with Mr. Lofthouse?

No.

HoW'd you get in if you didn’t check in?

He already had a keys.

Okay. Mr. Lofthouse had already had the keys.
Describe the room for the court, please.

Um, two bed, normal -- basic room.

Basic room?

Did it have a window ?

Yes.

And you said two beds.

Didr it have a TV?

Yes.

~ Let me ask you this, Michelle. Before you went to the room, um,

did Mr. Lofthouse ever send you a picture of the room?

A.

Q
A.
Q

Yes.

How ?

(Indiscernible) message, text message.

Okay.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: And if | may approach with State's

proposed Exhibit 1 which 've previbusly shown to counsel?

THE COURT: Sure. Yeah, you may approach.
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Thank you.
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BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

Q.

Michelle, I've been showing you what's been marked as State's

proposed Exhibit 1. Do you recognize what's depicted in that photograph?

A.

> P > 0

Q.

Yes.

What is it?

The room.

What room?

The one he got at Aliante.

Okay. s that a fair and accurate copy of the photograph the

defendant text messaged you of the room at Aliante?

A.

admitted.

Yes.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: | move for admission of State's Exhibit 1.
"THE COURT:  Any objection?

MR. DRASKOVICH: (Indiscernible).
THE COURT:  All right. State's proposed Exhibit 1 will be

(State's proposed Exhibit 1 admitted.)

BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

Q.

o » 0 >0 >

When you got to the room what did you do?

We had sex.

_Okay. Describe for me where you were when you had sex.

 Um, the bed closest to the window.

What kind of sex did you have?
Um, first oral sex and then penis in vagina.'

Let me go back and take first oral sex.
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that.

right?

e » o >

O >0 » 0o »
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Did you perform oral sex on Mr. Lofthouse?
Yes. |

And so the record is clear was that -- describe what you mean by

Um, penis in mouth,

Okay. So his penis was in your mouth?

Yes.

Is that right?

Did he ejaculate?_

Yes.

Okay. Did Mr. Lofthouse perform oral sex on you?
Yes.

Describe what you mean by thai.

Um, mouth to vagina (indiscernible).

Okay. And it was the defendant's mouth on your vagina; is that

Correct. _

Okay. After that what did you do?’

| think we show ered.

Did you shower together?

Yes. N
And was there any sexuaf contact in the shower?
No.

After you got outta the shower what did you do?

Uh, we had sex.
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again.
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Q' .
intercourse
A.

Q.

A.

Q.
out of your

A.

O X0 P» 0P PO >0

Describe that for the court, please.
Penis to vagina.

Okay. Were you lying on the bed?

~ Yes.

Which bed? |

The one closest to the window.

And, um, did Mr. Loft‘house e}aculate when you had sexual
on the bed?

Yes.

Where?

My stomach. ‘.

Okay. So at some point before ejaculation Mr. Lofthouse pulled
vagina?

Yes. ,

Um, is that the last time you had sexual intercourse?

No.

Okay. Describe for the court what happened next. .-

We had sex again.

Was it back to back or was there time in between?
There's probably time in betw een.

How much time was in between?

| don't recall.

Okay. You had sex again. Describe what type of sex you had

Penis in vagina.
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Okay. Was it still-on the same (indiscernible)?

Yes.

‘And did Mr. Lofthouse ejaculate?

Um, ves.

Where?

On my stomach.

Okay. And what did you do after that?
Um, we talked.

How long did you talk?

Don't recall.

What'd you talk about?

Don't recall.

Did you have -- did you just talk and then leave or was there

anything else that happened?

A,
Q.

| don't recall.

How many times in a total did you have sexual intercourse with Mr.

Lofthouse on May 20™ at the Aliante? And when | say that | mean penis in

vagina.

A.

brief....

About twice.
Twice?
Did Mr. Lofthouse use a condom? |

No. .
THE COURT: Sorry, Ms. Schifalacqua. Sure. Let me take that

(Pause in proceedings.)
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THE COURT:  Go ahead, please.
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Thank you.
THE COURT:  Mm-hmm.

BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

Q. Today, Michelle, you said that you had two sexual intercourses with

Mr. Lofthouse, two times.
Do you recall having an interview with the detective about this
case? |
A.  Yes. |
Q. Do you rémember.tellihg him that you had sexual intercourse with
Mr. Lofthouse three different times? |
A. Maybe.
Q.. Okay. So do you not remember the third time or is --
A.  Don't remember. |
MR. DRASKOVICH: She didn't say she doesn't remember. She
said it was twice. It mischaracterizes her testimony.
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Actually, if twill, your Honor --
THE COURT: Sure. |
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: -- | asked her if sbe remembers telling me

three, she said maybe, so; my follow -up question is do you not remember the

third time or -~

MR. DRASKOVICH: And that's assuming there is a third time and

she already testified today it was twice.

THE COURT: But I'll --1'm gonnaallow this line of questioning

only 'cause it -- it's either a follow-up, a legitimate follow-up, to her previous
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a_n'sw er 6r | believe Ms. Schifalacqua could aiso be bringing up a prior --
~ MS. SCHIFALACQUA: A prior -
THE COURT: - consistent or incons.istent.statement so I'm gonna
allow this fine of questioning.
Objection overruled.
_MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Thank you.
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA
Q. Michelle, you indicated sex two times; you said that you remember
giv'ing an interview where, um, there were three times. | |
Can you describe (indiscernible) the different?
A. | don't remember.
Q. Okay. So you don't remember having sex a third time with Mr.
Lofthouse?
A.  No. |
Q. Okay. Do you remember telling Detective Troxil that you did have

sex three different times with Mr. Lofthouse?

A.  Not really.

Q. How long were you at the Aliante Hotel with the defendant?
A.  Couple hours. | |

Q. But -- well, let me go back.

‘What time did you leave?

A.  The hotel?

Q. Yes, the hotel.
A. Around fwo.
Q. 2pm.?

44

71




wd

g ) ro [ | %) Mo =y — — —_ —_ —- u — - —
(&) Jo wW [ = O CQ_OO | [e)] < N [} o] —_

OO 0 N U, W N

basis?
A.

Q.
1| from May 21 to May 27 did you ever have any other physical contact with
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Yeah.

And he pic'ked youup --it was 7 a.m.?

Uh, past 7.

Okay. What'd youdo-af.ter 2 p.m?

I went home.

Okay. How'd you get there?

He drove me home.

And were you dropped off at your house?
By my house.

What street?

Ranch House.

‘And how far is Ranch House from your actual hbme’?

Couple feet.

I'm sorry?

Couple feet.

Um, that was on May 20" of 2015.

After that did you continue to talk to Mr. Lofthouse on a daily

Yes.

Okay. And did you ever have any -~ let me direct you specifically

Mr. Lofthouse?

A
Q.
A

Yes.

Describe that for the court, please.

| gave him orat sex again.
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Q.
classroom.
AL
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Q.

I'm sorry, | couldn't hear you, Michelle.
Gave him oral sex. |
Okay. And where was that?

In his classroom.

| Describe, um, the circumstances of the oral sex in Mr. Lofthouse's

Describe how ?

Was there anyone else in the classroom?
No. | |

Was it during a school day?

Yes.

Do you remember the time frame?

Probably seventh period.

Okay. Seventh period, did you actuaily have a class you were

supposed to be at?

AL
Q.
or shut?
| A.
Q.

on?

o > O 2>

Yes.

Um, and so when you went into the classroom was the door open

Don't recall.

Okay. When you went into the classroom did you have clothes

Yes.

Did Mr. Lofthouse have clothes on?

Yes.

Was there a point that some of those clothes were removed?
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Um, yes. Not very -- not completely.

Okay. Not completely.

So did you kiss Mr. Lofthouse?
Yes

Did he kiss you?

Yes.

Can you describe for the court what if anything you were doing

with you'r hands?

A.

Q.

> e 0 > 0 > 0 F

Um, they're on him.

Okay. Where?

Um, all over his body.

Including his genital area?

Yes. |

Chest? Was it the chest area as well?
Yeah.

Was that a yes, Michelle?

Maybe.

Okay. Buttocks area?

| don't know.

Okay. And did his clothing - you said part of clothing came off.

Whose clothing came off?

A.

Q
A.
Q

His.
Okay. How?

‘His pants were pulled down.

Who pulled 'em down?
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Don't recall.
~What about his underwear? Was he wearing underw ear?
Yes. '
Okay. Woere -- eventually was his penis exposed?
Yes. |
So did his underw ear stay on?

Don't recall.

o 0 > 0 > 0 F

Um -- _
MR. DRASKOVICH: Your Honor, | wanna make a record right now
to | object to the form of the question. .

You basically have the State standing or peering over the witness.
Ms. Schifalacqua keeps getting closer and closer. | can see in this young lady's
face that she's very uncomfortable (indi.scernibie),

THE COURT: Yeah. We'll -- |

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: I'm gonna object to him indicating that | am
making this witness uncomfortable. Absolutely ridiculous, your Honor.

MR. DRASKOVICH: It's very clear and if we have a camera I'd like
to show her face.

THE COURT: And certainly it - it -- both counsel will be able to see
what is being recorded on JAVS through the video. Certainly I'll allow Mr..
Draskovich to make his record of what he appears to -- to feel is happening.

Ms. Schifa‘i.acqua, | understand that you obviously don't agree with
him. | |
We'll allow both comments to be a part of the record but you can

certainly continue your questioning in the manner in which you have been
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questioning.

BY MS. SCHIFALAGQUA:

Q.
to testify here in open court?

A.  Annoyed.

Q. What?

A. Anhoyed.

Q A'nnoyed?

Do you wanna be here?

‘A No.

Q. Do you wanna be talking about the subject matter that we're talking

about right now?

A.  No. lwish my -- my, um, my choice was respected.

Q. So let's go back to talking about and you were de;scribing what you
referred to as oral - |

A.  Yes.

Q- .IVIr. Lofthouse.

is that right?

But at some point do you -- is his penis exposed? |

o >0 > o >

Michelle, let me ask you this. How do you feel today about having

You indicated that you don't remember if his underwear was down;
Yes.

Yes. |

Describe what you do and what he does.

Penis to végina -- to mouth.

Okay. And how long was Mr. Lofthouse's penis in your mouth?
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Q.

that day with you and Mr. Lofthouse?

A.
Q.

that day?
A.

Q.

Lofthouse on a daily basis?

A.

" i don't recall.

- Okay. Do you eventually go back to your seventh grade class?

> e P 0 r O >0 >0 >0 P

Minutes.

Okay.  And did he ejaculate?

Yes. |

Where?

In my mouth,

After Mr. Lofthouse ejaculated in your mouth what happens next?
Um, we t.a-lked. : |
Okay. Did he pull his pants up (indiscernible)?
Yeah.

is that a yes? |

Yes.

How long do you think you talked with him in the classroom?

| don't recall.

Um, was there ény more physical contact at Rancho High School on
No.
| wanna turn your attention to May 28" of 2015..

Did you have occasion to go to a hotel room with Mr. Lofthouse on

Yes.

Okay. Between all of this time are you continuing to talk with Mr.
Yes.
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And text message him?
Yes.

_Ahd is he text messaging you?

> 0 > P

Yes.

Q.  Um, how do you get to the hotel? !s there a plan again with Mr.
Lofthouse?

A.  Yeah. |
Okay. What's the plan?

A. Sameplan.
Q. Same plan as last time?
A.  Yes.
| Q So it was a school day?
A.  Yes.
Q. Um, what did you tell your mom about going to school on May 28"
of 20157 |
A.  Same thing. (Indiscernible) to get aride.
Q. And were you picked up by Mr. Lofthouse?
A Yes. .
Q. Where?
A.  Rancho. _
Q. Okay. And what type of vehicle?
A. Sameone.
Q. The blue Toyota?
A.  Yeah.
Q. s that a yes, Michelle?
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House?

Q.
Rancho High School, is that located in North Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada?

O » D > D > O

Yes.

'O,kay.l Around what time did Mr. Lofthouse pick you up at Ranch

Same time.

What was that?

~ Around -- after seven.

Okay. After7 am.?

Yes.

Where do you go?

The Cannery.

Okay. Andis --

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Court's indulgence.
THE COURT: Sure.

(Whereupon other matters were heard in open court.)

- THE COURT: Just for the record we're taking a brief pause from
our preliminary hearing because counsel on a previous matter is submitting

some documents to the court at this time.

Mr. Melgar obviously is -

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: (Indiscernible) | just wanted to make sure.

- THE COURT: Okay. Perfect. So with that, Mé.. Schifalacqua, you

can continue.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Thank your Honor.

BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

Michelle, | wanna go back briefly before we talk about the Cannery,
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also in North Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada?

A.  Yes. |
Q. And with regard to the Cannery, where was the Cannery located?
A.  On Craig and Losee. On Craig and Losee | think.
Q. Okay. And is that here in North Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada?
A. |think so.
Q.  Describe what happens when you get to the Cannery with the
|| defendant (indiscernible)?
A Um, we'go up to the room.
| Okay. Did you check into this hotef room with him?
A.  No.
Q. How'd you get in the room? |
A. He already had the keys.
Q.  Who already had the keys?
A.  Um, Mr. Lofthouse. | 7
Q. Okay. And describe this room for the court, please.
A. It was a basic room, |
Q. How many beds?
A, Two.
Q. Did you say two?
A, Two.

o > O >

Yeah.
Is that a yes?
Yes.

Okay. How about, um, the Aliante Hotel that you were af, is that
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two - fwo beds. Was there anything different about it?

A.

P 0 > 0 F» O

- When you go to the Cannery, just so it's clear, you indicated you

told your-mom you were getting a ride to school.

Lofthouse?
o
A.
Q.

May 28" of 20157

A.
Q.

this hotel room also have a window ?

And I'm sorry, I'm: struggling to hear you.'
Um, was this room different from the room at Aliante?
Um, just different how?

Well, was there anything different? You described it as the same

Not really.

Okay. Was one of the hotels nicer than the other?
Yeah. |

Which one?

Aliante,

So the Cannery is it fair to say was an older hotel?
Um, yes.

When you go into the room -- well, let me back up.
Did your mom know that you were going anywhere with Mr.
No.

How about your dad?

No.

Did you ever ask permission to go with Mr. Lofthouse anywhere on

No.

So when you' enter into the Cannery, the room in the Cannery, did
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Q.

everything you say.

A.

Yes.

Okay. What do you do when you get in the room?

Um, talk.

Okay. Where do you talk? .Physically where are you located?
By the TV. | | B
Okay. What were you talking about?

He was showing me that he got me something.

What did he get you?

~ Frozen mangos and some records.

Frozen mangos and what else? |'m sorry?
Some records. |

Some records like, um, like you play like music records?
Yes.

Okay. What type of records did he have?
Um, Lana Del Rey.

Lana Del Rey?

Yes.

A musical artist?

Yeah.

Is that a yes?

Yes.

Okay. She's taking down -- obviously they're taking down

Um, frozen mangos, do you like frozen mangos?

Yes.
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your Honor, writ'h State's proposed Exhibits 2 and 3 which have been previously
provided in discovery and shown to counsel this morning. If | may?
| THE COURT: Sure.
' MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Thank you.
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:
Q.
pr_o_posed Exhibits 2 and 3.

and 37
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Had you told Mr. Lo_fthouse that?

Yes. '

How were the frozen mangos packaged if you will?
In-a plastic bag. |

I'm sorry?

In a plastic bag. - |

And so When you go in where are those placed?

In the refrigerator.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: [I'm gonna approach with your permission, |

I'm gonna show you, Michelle, what's been marked as State's

Can you please look at those.

Do you recognize what's depicted in State's proposed Exhibits 2

Yes. 7 7
And what - let's start with 2. What does that show?

Us kissing.
And when you say us kissing, you and who else?

Jason and |
Okay. !s that the defendant?
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Yes.

Is that at the Cannery Hotel?

L Sl

Yes.

Q | Is that a fair and accurate picture of how you looked on May 28™ of
2015 at the Cannery Hotel kissing Mr. Lofthouse?

A.  Yes.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: !I'd move for admission of State's 2.

THE COURT: Any objection?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No.

THE COURT: Alf right. State's proposed Exﬁibit 2 will be
admitted. | , _
| (State's proposed Exhibit 2 admitted.)

BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:
Q.  With regard to State's proposed Exhibit 3 do you recognize what's
depicted in that exhibit?
AI. Yes
What do you see?
Us walking out of the elevator.
Okay. And by us who do you mean by us? |
Mr. Lofthouse and |.
And is Mr. Lofthouse carrying anything?

A bag. _
Q. Okay.' Is that a fair and accurate picture of you and Mr. Lofthouse

> 0 > 0o

at the Cannery Hotel & Casino on May 28! of 20157
A Yes. |
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MS. SCHIFALACQUA: 1'd move for admission of State's 3.
THE COURT: Any objection?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (Indiscernible). |
THE COURT: All right. State's proposed Exhibit 3 will also be
admitted.
(State's proposed Exhibit 3 admitted.)
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA: o |
Q. That bag that's shown in State's 3 that Mr. Lofthouse is carrying, is
that fhe -- what the frozen mangoes‘were being carried in that you described?
A.  Yes.
| Q. Okay. Now describe what happens after you put the frozen
mangoes into the refrigerator.r

A. Um, we started kissing.

Q. Okay. Does anything else happen?

A. . Um, | gave him oral sex.

Q. Okay. Describe what you mean when you séy you gave him oral
Sex. |

A.  Penis in mouth.

Q. Mr. Lofthouse's penis in your mouth?

A. Yes. |

Q.  Where were you positioned physically in a hotel room?

A. ~ Onthe bed | think. |

Q. Okay. You said there were two beds. Do you remember which

bed you were in?

A.  The one closest to the window.

58

85



—_

[ ] W0 oo -~ o) BN E 1 ~ (5] B —_

NN N N N = - 4 a4 aa s ea e
h £ W N A O W 0 ~ o O A2 W N =

Q. Okay. And how were you physically positioned and how was Mr.
Lofthouse physically positioned when you were giving him oral sex?
A. . We were both on the bed | think. |
Okay. And did Mr. Lofthouse ejaculate?
Yes. |
Where?
In my mouth.
Did he ever give you oral sex at the Cannery?
Yes. |
Describe what you mean by that for the court.

His mouth to my vagina.

©c » 0o > O > O >

And where were you positioned physically in the hotel room at that

time?

>

- Same bed | think.

Q. Okay. Was that all of the physical contact you had between each
other? |

A. No.

Q. Okay. Describe for the court what happens after the, um -- after
thé oral sex happened.

A.  We had sex, um, penis in vagina.

Q. Okay. Where were you when you had sex? Physically in the room
(indiscernible). | |

A.  Um, the same bed.

Q. Okay. Do you remember what position you were in?

A. lwasontop.
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Q. Okay. And did Mr, Lofthouse ejaculate?

A.  Yes. |

Q. Okay. Where?

A. My stomach.

Q.  So did he pult his penis out of your vagina at some point?
A.  Yes. | |

Q. Okay. What did you do after you had sexual intercourse that time?
A Um, we talked. |

Q. Okay. What'd you talk about?

A. Uh, don'trecall.

Q. ‘How long do you think you talked?

A. A while. |

Q. And what did you do after that?

A.  We had sex again.

Q. Okay. You had sex again.
| Where (indiscernible) when you had sex again?

A. Inthesamebed.

Q. = What type of sex are you referring to?

A.  Um, penis in vagina.

Q. Okay. Did Mr Lofthouse through any of this wear a condom?
A. No. | | |

Q. Okay. The second time at the Cannery that you had sexual
intercourse, um, did Mr. Lofthouse ejaculate? |

A. Yes.

Q. Where?
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-On my stomach.

So at some point again did he remove the penis from you'r vagina?
Yeah. |

Is that a yes?

Yes. | |

And what did you do after that?

Talked Sdme more.

Talked some more?

And what'd you talk about at this time?

| don't recall. |

Um, did you ever do anything else that day at the Cannery?
No.

Hmm?

No.

How long did you stay at the hotel on May 28" of 20157
Until two o'clock. |

What'd you do at two o'clock?

| went home.

How'd you get home?

He drove me.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Court's indulgence, please.

'THE GOURT:  Sure,

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Thank you.
THE COURT: Mm-hmm.

BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:
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Q. Did you cdntinue to, um, talk with Mr. Lofthouse on a daily basis --
A. Yes.
-- after that? Okay.

| wanna talk to you about June 3" of 2015. Do you remember that

day”?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay. On that day did you go to school?
A. Yes,
Q. And was Mr. Lofthouse at school?
A:  Yes.

Q. What's significant about the timing of that day? When - when did

the school year end?

"A. The 4th.
Q.  I'm sorry?

A.  The 4th.

Q.' Okay. So the school year was supposed to end the day -- that day
after, June 4th?

A. Yés.

Q. Do you need to take a break? .

A. I'mfine.

_Q. Okay. And on June 3" did you, uh, have occasion to be in Mr.
Lofthouse's classroom?

A.  Yes.

Q. Describe it for the court, please.

A.  Um, | left seventh period.
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What class did you have seventh period?
Precalcutus A.B.

Okay. And where'd you go?

His classroom.

Describe for the court who's in the classroom.
| think -- there were several people i think,

Did it remain that way?

No.

Did there come a point in time where it was just you and Mr.

Lofthouse in the classroom?

A.

Q.

F SN PR

Yes.

Okay. And was the door open or shut?

Shut.

Was it locked or unloéked’?
Locked.
And what were you doing with Mr. Lofthouse?

We were talking.

Okay. Did you ever have (indiscemible) contact with

(indiscernible)?

MR. DRASKOVICH: And | would just clarify as to foundation what

date are we talking about?

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: June 3".
MR. DRASKOVICH: Okay.
THE WITNESS: Um, yeah, we kissed.

BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

63

96



—

N
(6]

Q.
A.
Q.

door was locked and shuf?

A.
Q.
A
Q.
the door?

A.

A SHEE N

Q.

security officer came into the classroom?

A.

> o0 2 0 > P

Q.
truthful?

~ Um, when they first talked to you about what happened were you

Okay. Where were you positioned physically in that classroom?
Um, when? When?

On June 3™ of 2015. Where were you in the classroom when the

Um, in the right corer.
Why were you in the right corner?
Um, s0 no one can see.

Did there come a time where someone, um, came and knocked on

Um, | don't think fhey knocked.

Okay. What happened then? Describe it, please, for the court.
They walked in. o

Okay. Who was that?

Officer Patty and another security.

Okay. And, um, where did you go after Officer Patty and another

Uh, they took me to the -- their office.

Did you eventually meet with a Detective Troxil or an Officer Troxil?

Yes.
And another officer?

Yes.

Did you while you were at school gave him a statement?

Yes.
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No. -

No.

How was it not truthful?

Um, 1 denied our relationship. -

Can you say that louder, Michélle, because | can barely hear you.
| denied having a thing with Mr. Lofthouse.

After you left school where did you go?

Home.

> P 0 » 0 > 0 >

And when you went home what happened?
. A. Um, my dad took all of my electronics and then | called my mom.

She came home.

Q. - And then what happened?

A.  And then | -- my dad told my mom.

Q. What did you tell your parents?

A.  That it was true.

Q. Did after that you falk with the Detective Troxil and another
detective, female detective, again?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you give a statement the second time detailing your relationship

with Mr. Lofthouse?

A.  Yes. |

Q. Okay. Um, and that included talking about Aliante, is that right,
the hotel? '

A. Yes.

65
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Q. Now you indicated today that you didn"t remember how many times
or you didn’t remember having sexual intercourse and by that | mean penis in
the vagina three tim'es, um, with Mr. Lofthouse. | |

Would looking at your statement help refresh your memory?

A, Yes.
Okay.
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: If I may approach, your Honor?
- THE COURT: | Yes, please.
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

Q. I'm showing counsel --

THE COURT: Mr. Draskovich, you obviously have this?

MR. DRASKOVICH: We do.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: For the record I'm specifically showing
page 27; however, the detailing begins, um --

MR. DRASKOVICH: And just for the record is she attempting to
refresh her recollection because this is not a prior inconsistent statement. We
shouldn't be presenting it as a pfior inconsistent statement.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Absolutely. She said she doesn't
remember,,your Honor. I'm going to refresh. If she thereafter obviously still
doesn't remember or dehies the Nevada Supreme Court has clearly delineated
that any prior inconsistent statement with that nonremembrance or indicating I
don't know is in fact just that. '

MR. DRASKOVICH: And there appears to be a muddling of two

different bases so I'm trying to.dtarify that for the record.
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MS. SCHIFALACQUA: At -- at this point my first step will be to
see if it refreshes her memory, yes. - ,

THE COURT:  All right. Overfuled and I'll allow this line df
questioning. | | |
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

Q. It starts on 20 upward through 27. If you go ahead and read
through thatA and when you're done please feel frée to look up at me as you
cannot read beyond the statement that you (indiscernible).

And I'm gonna take that away from you, Michelle.
Did looking at ybur statement help refresh your memory as to how
many times you had sexual intercourse with Mr. Lofthouse at Aliante?

A Pretfy sure.It was just twice.

Q Okay.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Court's indulgence.
THE COURT: Sure.
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

Q.  Let me ask this with regard to Aliante Hotel and the Cannery Hotel.

Um, what was the plan of why you and Mr. Lofthouse were going?

A.  Um, the plan? |

Q. Yeah. Why'd you --why -- why were you going there? Did he --
did Mr. Lofthouse ever tell you why you were going there?
| Um we were planning on having sex.

Okay So have you talked about it with Mr Lofthouse?

Yes.

o » 0 »

Okay. And how did you -- how many times did you talk about it?
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said to you was that before you guys went tothe Aliante?

A.
Q.
Cannery?

A.

- What kind?

A lot of times.

A lot of times? And that was before you went to the Aliante Hotel?
Yes. |

As well as the Cannery?

Yes. "

What.type,s of things would he say?

Sexual fhings.

What kind of sexual things? Describe it, Michelle.

Um, he wanted me and [ -- | would say | want him too.
Okay. Did he say anything else besides he wanted you?
Yes. -

Describe that for the court, please.

Um, he'd say sexual things like | wanna rip your clothes off.
Did he say any other type of sexual things?

Yes.

] can't recall any right now.

And the things that Mr. Lofthouse that you just described that he

Yes.

Would he say those sexual type of things before you went to the
Yes.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Court's induigence.
THE COURT: Sure.
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MS. SCHIFALACQUA: | have no more questions.

THE COURT: Aliright. Um, you know, this witness considering her age

and everything she's been on the stand for about an hour and a half now let's
take maybe a five_—fninute oomfdrt break and then we'll pick up on cross-
examination when we come back.

All right. Court's in recess for five minutes.

THE BAILIFF: Court's in recess.

THE COURT; So, Michelle, um, just to let you know, you're still

gonna be remaining under oath. Make sure that you don't talk about the case

while we're on this five-minute break. Okay? And then we'll come right back.

Okay.
{(Recess taken.)

THE COURT: All right. Then we'll go ahead and get back on the
record. This is a continuation of the preliminary hearing i-n the matter of the
State of Nevada versus Jason Richard Lofthouse, 15FN939X.

We took a brief recess after direct examination of our first wi"mess.
um, Michelle Torres is resuming the witness stand.

Michelle, as | indicated previously jUst remember yoﬁ're still under
oéth. Okay? All right.

Mr. Draskovich, please.

MR. DRASKOVICH: Thank you.

THE COURT: Mm-hmm.
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~ CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. DRASKOVICH: |
Q. Hello, Michelle.
A.  Hello.
Q. Youwere askéd a number of questions concerning sexual conduct
between youfself and Jason. Do you remember all of those QU_estion’s that

you've been asked in the last hour and a haif?

A.  Yes.

Q. These events all occurred in May - -
A. Mm-hmm.

Q. - essentially; is that correct?

A. Yes. |

Q. And you'd agree with me that none of these actions were forced

upon yourself?

You're completely sober?

A. No. _
Q. They're conse_nsual?
A. Yes. Completely.
Q. You were a consensual participant in these sexual acts?
A. Yes.
Q. At no time did Jason ever give you any alcohol_?
A. No. |
Q. At no time did he give you any type of drugs?
A.  No. |
Q.
A,

Yes.
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Q.
A.
Q.

A.
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conclusion.

And completely aware of what you were doing?
Yes.

In reference to the first time that you and he went to a hotel was

: the Aliante that was on May 2015; correct?

Correct. .

You went with him willingly?

Yes.

He did not imprison you in any way?

No.

He did not confine you in any way?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Objection --

THE WITNESS: No.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: -- your Honor. That calls for a legal

MR. DRASKOVICH: If he imprisoned her it's -- | wish we would

stick to the law in this case --

THE COURT: Right.
MR. DRASKOVICH: -- (indiscernible) major appropriate

(indiscernible).

THE COURT: I'm gonna -- I'll allow that question based on her

understanding of what it means.

BY MR. DRASKOVICH:

Q.
A.

At no point in time did he try and keep you from your parents?

No.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Objection. Move to strike, calls for
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speculation as to what he intended to do with her, y'our Honor.
BY MR. DRASKOVICH:
Q. Did he ever tell yoLJ that he wanted to keep you from your parents?
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: 1'd like a rufing on that - |
THE COURT: Sustained. Sustained. |
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Thank you.
BY MR. DRASKOVICH:" _
Q. Did he ever tell you hé wanted to keep you from your parents?
No.

Did you ever fee! like he was trying to keep you from his parents?

Q.

A. No.

Q. Your parents?
A. No.

Q._‘ No?

You'd go and do things without your parents' permission all the

time, correct?

A. Yes.

Q | You're 17 years old --
A.  Yes.

Q -- is that right?

You don't tell them every time you're with a particular person who
that person is?
A. - No.

Q. You're not a slave to your parents, are you?

A. No.
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Q.
room that was the Cannery; correct?

A,

Q.
keep you from your parents?
A
Q.
A.
Q.

you feel today.

(indiscernible)?

> 0 » 0 P DO
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In reference to the second time that you and he went to a hotel

Correct.

At no point in time on that day of May 28" did he confine you?
(No audible response).

I'm sorry?

No.

At no point in time on the 28" did you feel imprisoned by him?
No. |

At any point in time on May 28" did he tell you he was trying to

No, never.
You felt like you were free to leave him at any time?
Yes.

You were asked some questions a few minutes ago concerning how

You're not happy to be here, are you?

No. | _

Had you met with.these two prosecutors before today?

Yes. With her.

Is it Ms. Schifalacqua?

Yes.

Have you felt intimidated by her during the course of this casé? '

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Objection, your Honor. s that
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MS. SCHIFALACQUA: And obviously --

THE COURT: Um --

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: - uhless there's some showing of proof are
we serious that Mr. Draskovich is gonna stand in this courtroom and say that
I'm intimidating a witness that's come here to court?

MR. DRASKOVICH: Yes.

THE COURT:  Well -

MR. DRASKOVICH: (Indiscernible) her conduct in her direct, yes.

THE COURT: - yeah -- listen, | don't think Mr. Draskovich is at
least at this point saying that you intimidating the witness. He's asking the
witness if shé felt intimidated.

Certainly she's, uh, allowed to answer that question. It's relevant |
guess to, um, because | allowed certain questions regarding prior contact and,
um, aithough- credibility of the witnesses is always at issue and may be limited
at the preliminary hearing. |

I'll allow this line of questioning. The anéwer will stand for itself
and we'll see where we are.

BY MR. DRASKOVICH:
Q. You (indiscernible) intimidated by this prosecutor (indiscernible)?
| feel intimidated by anyone who questions what | do with my body.
Have you felt forced to participate in this case?
Yes. Completely. |

Have you felt coerced?

> 0 > 0 F

(No audible response).
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Q. Isthat -- | see you're shaking your head (indiséernible_). | don't

wanna -

A. Yes.

Q. --put answers in mouth but are you feeling coerced? |
A.  Yes. | |

Q. ' Yes?

A.  Yes.

Q. Are you being forced to cooperatein fhis case against your consent
or against your free will?

A, Um - _

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Your Honor, at this_poiht I'm gonna object.

If Mr. Draskovich thinks there's a problem with a court order to appear and a
subpoena whether or not she wants to be here that's fine, but whether or not
she feels coerced and against her will, you know, judge, but whether or not she
has to comply with the law are two separate things and I'd ask that the record

be clarified with the same.

THE COURT: Sure. I'll let you clean it up on redirect. [ don't think
this line of questioning is any different from a domestic violence case that we
have with an uncooperative witness. |I'm gonna allow it. Overruled.

BY MR, DRASKOVICH:

Q. Do you feel like you've been placed in a position where you're

suffering unjustifiable mental harm or suffered?

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Objection. Legal conclusion, unjustifiable

legal -- excuse me -- unjustifiable mental harm -

THE COURT: Yeah, yesh. | was worried about the - the - the
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| 1. ||coercion ques'tion and that was kind of on the line but I'm gonna go ahead and
R 2. ||sustain this objection. | |
B 3 ||BY MR. DRASKOVICH:
_ 4 Q. s this - is your -- and you feel coerced or forced parti'cipation in
5 ||this prosecution? |
6 A. (Indiscernible} to be hefe because of a subpoena.
| 7 Q. I'm sorry?? ‘
8 A.  I'm only here 'cause of the subpoena. |
9 Q. Have theré been any threats made to you concerning your
10 jlunwillingness to participate?
11 A.  No. _
12 - Q .Okay. Do you feel in any way victimized by this?
13 A. No. Not at all.
14 | MR DRASKOVICH: Your Honor, | had to just be -- she requested
15 ||from Mr. Schneider would like to ask - | |
16 MS. SCHIFALACQUA: I'm gonna abject, your Honor.
17 MR. DRASKOVICH: -- some questions.
18 ) Well, we cah sit here and | can have him ask me to ask her on a

19 || question-by-question basis if we want to do that.

20 THE COURT: What is the basis of the objection?

21 MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Judge, obviously we have one counsel

22 | asking her questions. | wouldn't have Ms. Kollins get up in the middle of my
23 1l direct and ask additional questions and keep on going. |

24 Obviously Mr. Draskovich is -- done this quite long enough. I don't

| " 25 |lsee why we have to change counsel in the (indiscernible) or what the legal
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possible.

basis is for them to do so.

MR. DRASKOVICH: There'é no conclusion to my (indiscernible).

THE COURT: Um, | mean if there's - if there's -- | understand that
the custom an.d the practice we've done ohe lawyer one witness, um, it is |
highly unusual. | just don't know if tHere's a specific prohibition to it other than
custom and practice. Is there? -

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: I've‘never seen it any other way, your
Honor. |

THE COURT: Right. know. |understand that -- that it has
traditionally been one witness, one lawyer.

Mr. Schneider,’ I'll allow you to ask some questions in the interest of
from making sure that we give the benefit of the doubt to the defendant in

these types of instances but please try to keep it as brief and to the point as

 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Absolutely, your. Honor. Thank you.
MS. KOLLINS: And, your Honor, with your permission, may | give

the witness some water?

THE COURT: Yeah, please do.
Okay, Mr. Schneider.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. SCHNEIDER:
Q.  (Indiscernible)?
A. | Yes.
Q. Okay. [I'm Louis.
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having to answer for what you do with your own body. Is that fair?.

> 0 »

Q.

into this sort of relationship with him?

Al

Q.
regretf it?
A.
Q.
A

Q.

about that relationship?

0 0 F O P

‘Michelle, 1 just have (indiscernible) couplé questions.

You stated a few minutes ago that you have your -- you don't like

Yes.
You were a student of my client Jason Lofthouse?
Yes.

And did you feel that because he was your teacher you had to enter

(Indiscernible).

I'm sorry (indiscernible).

No. _

So it was entirely a voluntarily relationship on your part?
Yes.

Was it a honest relationship?

Yes.

Do you regret that relationship?

if it wasn't for the situation we're in now legally.

So | think what you're saying is that because Jason's in trouble you

Yes.
(Indiscernible)? _
| believe we're both equally responsible.

(lndiscerniblé). Is there anything else you'd like this court to know

THE COURT: Hold on, Mr. Schneider. One second.
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| about the relationship she had with'my client Jason.

(indiscernible). Um, unless there's a specific area where she, um, feels like she

| needs to answer some sort of question that you might have, Mr. Schneider, is

|}
S

(Discussion off the record bétween bailiff and Judge Lee.)

THE COURT: Mr. Schneider, is that - do you (indiscernible)?
MR. SCHNEIDER: No, Idon't. |

THE COURT: All right. Please continue.

MR. SCHNEIDER: Your Honor, the last question | asked Michelle

was whether or not there was anything else that she wanted this court to know

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Objection. Vague.
.THE COURT: Sustained.
BY MR. SCHNEIDER:
Q. s there anything you want to tell the judge today about this case?
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Objection. Relevance, vagueness -
MR. SCHNEIDER: Your Honor -- |
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: --1mean I‘fn not --
THE COURT:  Yeah. It — it seems pretty - pretty well legal

there anything else?

MR. SCHNEIDER: Your Honor, I'm trying to go down -- forcing the
issue 100 hard throughout this -- this young. lady's opinion about her relationship
" THE COURT: We will ~
MR. SCHNEIDER: - (indiscernible) -
| THE COURT: -- yeah, we can leave that up to argument then as -

far that question then I'm gonna go ahead and sustain the objection.
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It sounds like, um, there's some -- some hardw are here that the
media left in when we excuéed them that they need to come and get baék.
MR. SCHNEIDER: | don't have any other questions. |
THE COURT: Okay. All right. Then, um, cross-examination, that
concludes cross-examination., o
| Let rhe take a brief recess to allow a member of the media to get
their equipment and then we'll move to redirect.
All right. Court's in recess.
THE BAILIFF: Court is in recess.
(Recess taken.) |
THE COURT: For the record this is the continuation of the State of
Nevada versus Jason Richard Lofthouse, 1 5FNG39X. |
We took a brief recess to allow members of the media access back
into the courtroom to get their equipment. The courtroom has been cleared
once again.
| And, Ms. Schifalacqua, redirect.
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Thank your Honor.

' REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA: .

Q. Michelle, | wanna, um, talk about some things you were asked on

cross-examination.
Um, you're 17 years old; right?
A. Yeah.
Q. And- ‘

. 80

187



—h

) [ %] M o ™ (RN — -_— - —_— -— — — — — i
8] R o 3 — (e} w (0a] ~! (8>} n B (%) B - = w o« | > LS (V) [ o]

A
Q.

Yes.

Okay. A‘nd. let's talk about school, um, in general.
Have you ever 'gone on a school fieldtrip?

Yes.

Okay. Um, do you have to get your parents' permission to be

taken by any person from school?

A.
Q.
A.
Q.
that right?
A,
Q.
A
Q.

Um, yes.
Okay. And what do they have to do?
Sign a consent form.

So even though you're 17 'they still have to sign a consent form; is

Yeah.

Is that a yes, Michelle?

| Yes.

Okay. Um, with regard to you goiﬁg to either of the hotels with

Mr. Lofthouse, um, let me ask you this. The defense counsel asked you a

number of questions about you feeling confined or forced.

>0 » 0 P O P

You said you didn't feel forced; right?
(Indiscernible).

I'm sorry? -

No. o |
Okay. But you didn't tell your mom; right?
About?

* About going to those hotels with Mr. Lofthouse?

No.
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1 Q. Why?
‘_ 2 A. ldidn't want to.
; 3 Q. | Why didn't you want to?
; 4 A. Idon't know. _
E 5 Q. Youdon't know? Okay.
B 6 | Let me ask you this. Um, you didn't not only not tell your mom, ié
- 7 |that right, what did you tell her?
8 A. That | was getting a ride.
g Q. Where were you going?
10 A (No audible response).
11 Q Where aid you tell your mom that 'your were going?
12 A. Ididn’t. |just said | was gonna get a ride.
13 Q. To school or not? -
14 A She assumed.
15 Q.  She assumed.
16 Did you leave out the details that you weren't going to séhooi that
17 ||day?
18 A Yeah.
19 Q. Isthat ayes, Michelle?
20 A Yes.
A_ 21 Q. Okay. Let me ask you this because you _w:ere asked specifically if
i 22 |lyou had an honest relationship with Mr. Lofthouse, you said y.ou. did.; .rig-h.i‘? |
23 A.  Yes. | |
24 Q. Okay. So did your parents know about your relationship with Mr.
25 ||Lofthouse? |
| 82
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1 A.  No.
2 Q. Okay. Would they have wanted you to have an (indiscernible)?
i 3 MR. DRASKOVICH: Obj.e.ction. Relevance.
_ 4 THE COURT: | tﬁink Mr. Schneider opened the door with the
5 |[honesty questions so I'm gonna altow it. Overruled.
N - 6 THE WITNESS: Um, can you repeat the question?
7 {|BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA: |
8 Q. Would they have wanted you to have a relationship?  You said it
9 |(lwas honest and -- |
10 ~ MR. DRASKOVICH: Calls for speculation.
11 {|BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:
12 Q. - youdidn't tell your parents --
13 MR. SCHNEIDER: Your Honor, how can she possibly answer w hat
i 14 || her parents wanted?
15 THE COURT: Right. Hold on. | allowed you to-ask guestions, Mr.
16 || Schneider, but | can't also have you pile on an objection.
17 Um -
| 18 MS. SCHIFALACQUA: | can rephrase it actually, your Honor.
19 THE COURT: Okay. All right. Thank you.
20 ||BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA: '
21 Q. Would you have gotten in trouble by your parents if they knew that
E 22 ||you were going with Mr. Lofthouse to hotels?
1 23 MR. DRASKOVICH: I'd object as to relevance.
11 24 THE COURT: Overruled.
3 25 THE WITNESS: | -- um, yes, if | was going with anyone to any
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hotel they wouldn't like it.

[|BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

Q. Okay. Sowhen you told Mr. Schneider or Mr. Draskovich that you
we.nt places all the time without your parents' permission, there were still times |
that your paren‘ts' had a say in where y.ou went. Is that fair? |

A.  Yeah.

Q. Is that a yes, Michelle?

A. Yes. |

Q. - Okay. So specifically with regard to you saying you had an honest
relationship did you ever talk to Mr. Lofthouse's wife?

A. No.

Q. Ok'ay. You never talked to her about your relationship with Mr.
Lofthouse, did you? |

A.  No.

Q. No. So no --so - in fact did you tell any person that was an adult
18 years of age or oider about your relationship with Mr. Lofthouse?

A. No. _
Q. Michelle, did you know your relationship with Mr. Lofthouse was

wrong because he was a teacher?

MR. DRASKOVICH: Objection. Calls for a legal conclusion.
THE COURT: Sustained. |
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: (Indiscernible).

BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:
Q. Let's go back. Why didn't you tell any adult person about your

sexual relationship with Mr. Lofthouse?
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| don't tell any adult about my sexual relationships --

- Okay.

Pl

- in general.
Q. Was there a particular reason w hy for example, um, in the

classroom you were in a particular spot in that corner, you described the right

corner?
A.  Yes.
Q.  Why?
A.  So no one could see.
Q. Sowhat?
~A. Noone could see.

Q.  No one could see your honest relationship? Why? Why did you
want no one to see -- |
MR. DRASKOVICH: Object as to relevance. (indiscernible) --
THE COURT: | think -- I think you made our point. I'll go ahead .
and sustain that objection. |
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Thank your Honor.
THE COURT: Mm-hmm.
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Court's indulgence.

BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:
Q. Let's talk about how you feel about being here today because |

wanna make something very clear for this record before the court.

Has anybody made any threat to you whatsoever to have you come

testify?
A. No.
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Okay. Do you have a court ord'e'r to appear for this criminal case?
Yes.
Is it your understanding that you have to abide by that court order?
Yeah. . That's why I'm here.

'Okay. It's fair to say you don't wanna be here?

No. __ o

You still have feelings for Mr. Lofthouse?

| suppose.

O F O PO PO PO

You suppose. Okay.
How many .
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Court's indulgence.
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA: |
Q.  And, Michelle, | know you said at least on cross-examination that
you felt intimidated about talking to anybody about your sexual relationship

with Mr. Lofthouse. Do you remember that?
MR. DRASKOVICH: Object. That mischaracterizes her testimony.
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: No, it does not.
BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:
Q. So doyou remembér that?
A.  Yes.
THE COURT: Uh, overruled.
Mm;hmm.- Go ahead.
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Thank you.
THE WITNESS: Yes, it's personal.
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BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

Q.

Okay. And so you feel intimidated about talking about your

personal body. Is that fair?

A.
Q.
A.
Q

What | do with it and when | get questioned why.
That intimidates you?
| don't see why.

So you' don't understand why it is you have to explain what

happened in your relationship?

MR. DRASKOVICH: Objection. Leading.-
THE COURT: Overruled. 'l allow it.

BY MS. SCHIFALACQUA:

Q.

A.

o r L P

Describe for me what you mean by you don't see why.

It's my body and I'm over 16. Way over essentially.

Did you say way over?
A year.
Okay. What -- what - why does that mean something to you?

Because | should be able to control what | do With whomever |

choose and....

Is that partly why you're upset to testify here today?

| don't see how it concerns what | do with anyone else.

Did you ever talk or meet with either of the defense counsel in this

No.

Did you ever talk or meet with any of their investigators in this
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A.  (Indiscernible) who? The detectives?
Q. No. Of defense investigafors?
A. No.
_ Q. Did you talk with anybody that's been associated with Mr.
Lofthouse as to how the case began? '
A.  No. |
Q.  Let me ask you this. | anf - because Mr. Draskovich asked you.
You met with me, Barbara Schifalacqua, prior to testimony --
A.  Yes.
Q.  --today; is that correct? |
A Yes, |
Q.  You did not meet with Ms. Kollins; is that right?
A. No. .
Q. Okay. Anything about what | talked with you about before you had
come to testify personally intimidate you?
A.  (Indiscernible). |
Q. Okay. Isit the subject matter? lIsit my actions? Describe. for the
court.
"~ A.  Just the whole case in general.

on that redirect?

-Okay. The whole case.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Nothing further, your Honor.
THE COURT: Thank you. Any redirect -- I'm soiry -- recross based

MR. DRASKOVICH: No, your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. All right. Thank you, Michelle, for your
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testimony this morning. You are excused.
- Uh, State, any more witnesses?

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: No, your Honor.

The State. um, is not gonna call any more witnesSes, and prior to
resting, with regard to Count 8, your Honor -- |

THE COURT: Well, let me do this. Because there's a, um -- there's
a media request that was granfed, at this time since the minor witness has
stepped down, we'll go ahead and allow whoever is remaining back into the
courtroom.

All right. For the record, uh, while testimony of the minor witness
was on the record we had cleared the courtroom and at this point since that
witness has stepped down from the witness stand the courtroom has been
reopened to members of the general public and the media. |

All right. With that then, Ms. Schifalacqua, um, did you have any
more witnésses at this time?

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Your Honor, the State is not gonna call any
further witnesses for the_pfe!iminary hearing; however, prior to resting with
regard to Count 8 the State is going to voluntarily move to not go forward on
that count, um, at this time. We move to voluntarily dismiss Count 8 and so
that would bring the total counts up to 14.

| ' THE COURT: Fourteen? Okay.
_Alivight. And then we'li--
MS. SCHIFALACQUA: And the State would rest.
THE COURT: Okay. Then at least at for now we'll work on

renumbering all the counts fo be one less than what they're currently indicated
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at after Count --

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Eight.

THE COURT:  -- starting with Count 9 | guess.

Okay. Al right. The State has rested. Mr. Draskovich, do you
have any- witnesses for today? |

- MR. DRASKOVICH: We do not.. - P've discussed with my client the

standard of proof that's required at this juncture. I've informed him that it
would be contrary to my advice and Mr. Schngider's .advice for him to testify.

(Indiscernible) not going to present to him any testimony or

evidence we'll be resting as to the evidentiary portion of this preliminary

hearing.

THE COURT: All right. The defense has rested.

Ms. Kollins or Ms. Schifalacqua, argument?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Judge, we'll reserve for rebuttal.

THE COURT: Okay. Uh, Mr. Draskovich, any argument?.

MR. DRASKO_VICH: (Indiscernible) addressed my arguments as to
each count -

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. I'd appreciate that. That's

(indiscernible) --
MR. DRASKOVICH: --in order to make it simple.

As to Count 2 we have an open or gross lewdness. And once again
all of these counts concerning either sexual conduct bétw een certain employees
or volunteers at school and people and open and gross lew dness are victimless
crimes in the sense that they're not crimes against the person per N.R.S. 200.

That's crimes against public decency and gobd morals which is N.R.S. 201.
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‘have the State trying to stretch this raw over circumstances this law was never

|the statute from the wrong angle. That's not what this statute was intended to

An element of open and gross lewdness is that in the sexual
conduct that occurs must be in view of the public.

We have heard here that if this conduct. did in fact occur it was in -
hidden from the public; therefore, the open and gross lewdness counts, which
would be 2 - | know there was one other - |

MR. SCHNEIDER: 10. |

MR. DRASKOVICH: - and 10 should not stand.

Once again 2, open ahd gross lewdness is alleged consensual
conduct between two people. If the State were to actually treat this case
appropriately both the pupil and the teacher should be c'h-arged, and that has

not occurred.’

In reference to Count 3, the first-degree kidnapping, here again we

meant to address.

We do not héve the defendant in this case keeping this young lady,
imprisoning this young lady, prying this young lady away from her parents or
guardians. If there was in fact movement it was incidental to the sexual

conduct.
Our Nevada Supreme Court has stated that in order for a separate

charge of first-degree kidnapping to stand that movements must be so great
and so substantial that it substantially increases the risk of harm to the alieged
victim but in this case we don't have a victim so it doesn't apply.

And this whole idea of asking parental consent, that's approaching

be. Otherwise, we would have every person who is speaking to a persdn under
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18 without consent of the-pa_rent .or going. someplace with a 17-year-old
without the consent of the parent conducting a (indiscernible) felony that's not
what our Nevada legisiature intended. |

As far as the rest of the counts and in_my comments concerning the
first-degree kidnapping were as to Count 3 and as to Counts former 11 which
would be now Count 10.

As the remaining counts outside of the open and gross lew dness

count and the kidnapping counts I'd submit are questions for a jury and I'll
submit it.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Draskovich.

Uh, Ms. Schifalacqua.

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: Thank your Honor.

{ will first address (indiscernible) the supreme court has clearly
stated (indiscernible) this state and that's 109 Nev. 205, your Honor, that a
conviction under obviously an open or gross lewdness did_not require proof of
the intent to offend an observer or even that the exposure was observed.

In fact, uh, go on to -- and let me make it clear -- in Ransom v.
State, 99 Nev. 766, for the record, actually talks about that the definition was
to include those acts which are even committed in a private place but which
nevertheless are committed 6peh as opposed to a secretive matter.

In this place the public place is Rancho High School. No one
pursuant to Nevada Supreme Court have to actually observe the conduct but
the conduct was'cleariy testified to and so that is of course a question of fact

for the jury and we provided sufficient probable cause to have him stand to

both counts.
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With regard to count of the first-degree kidnapping,'um, there's a .
couple of distinguishing things that need to be addressed here, your Honor, and
that is for purposes of first-degree kidnapping. 7

- There are different theories under our statute and as to the first of
o‘ne that Mr. Draskovich is talking about where, um, it really talks about
confining, inveigle, enticing, abduoting, et cetera, kidnapping a person with the
intent to have one of the enumerated offenses occur.

And what's an enumerated offense (indiscernible), robbery, sexual
assault, substantial bodily harm.‘or murder, or attem'pted murder to the person's
body, but there is also a second portion of ihefirst—degree kidnapping statute
and that's what theory which - which we have presented here today so | do
not have to show that there is some movement above and beyond this
enumlerated offense because | don't have to enumerate a specific offense

'cause that's not what we're going under.

Our theory that we're going underis a person who leads, takes,
entices, or carries away or detains any minor with the intent to keep, imprison,
or confine the minor from his or her parents and it is for an unlaw ful purpose.

The unlawful purpose as we've pled is the sex with a pupil.

And then | further enumerated that in our pleading just so that
there's no confusion to obviously havé sexual intercourse and/or curiniiingus
and/or fellatio with the named victim and she in fact testified to the same.
Right?

She testified, your Honor, that it was the plan that they were going
there to have sex, that they wanted to have sex, they -- he was taken fr_om

these hotel -- to these hotels, excuse me, to have sex, an idea that, um, we
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have to -- the intent of the victim is at issue. It's not. The intent of the
defendant -- and we've prbvided sufficient evidence and probable cause for that
to be a question of.facf for a jury.

The intent is not the victim. The intent is not whether.the victim
felt a certain way but it is intent by the defendant to keep from her parents
which that's why the permission comes into play.

And let's make something very clear. We're not talking about
persons talking to minor children, your Honor. The testimony that was given by
the -- obviously the named student in this case was that they -- he took herin
his vehicle and she told her mother that she had a ride to school, right, and he
took her to go to a hotel to have sexual intercourse and/or other sexual conduct
with her which is the (indiscernible) and he kept her from her parent. She didn't
have permission to do so and that's why it's-important. |

And so we have obviously met our burden for purposes of the
preliminary hearing. We have sufficient probable cause to, um, bind the
defendant over on the amended as interlineated -- excuse me -- by myself
dismissing Count 8 here today for him to face a jury on these charges.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you, Ms. Schifalacqua. |

| certainly understand, Mr. Draskovich, your nature of the ongoing
argument that you've presented regarding, uh, the counts of sexual conduct
between certain employees or volunteers of school on pupil and | believe you
made a clear record of that. | |

| also understand your arguments regarding the open and gross
lewdness and the case law that states cites, um, certainly counter any sort of

specific requirement as to open and as a testimony you produced here today |
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the counts. Are we all on the same page with 8 being sfricken?

‘move for admission of Exh'ibit 4 and 1 don't know if we want the clerk to --

guess even with the counts that that refers to in the classroom they're
eventuélly discovered by school security. | |

And your' arguments regarding first-degree kidnapping, um, ¢an
certainly be more appropriately taken up in future proceedings.

So with that, Mr. Lofthouse, please stand. It appears to me from
the complaint on file herein and from the testimony adduced at this‘brelinﬁinary
examination that the crimes of Counts 1, 4, 9,12, 13, 14, 15 of sexual
conduct between certain employees or volunteers of schoot and pupil, Counts 2
and 10 of the open and gross lewdness, and Counts 3 and 11 of first-degree
kidnapping have been committed and that there's sufficient cause.to believe the
defendant named herein has committed the same -- the said crimes.

| hereby order that the defendant be bound over to the Elghth

Judicial Drstrict Court, State of Nevada, county of Clark on -

Let me make sure | .got the —- if | stated the - the numbers right on -

MR. DRASKOVICH: Should be 1 through 14, yeah.
THE COURT: Okay. Allright. Perfect then. And 1 through 14

are all bound over at this time. .

And before we give out that bindover date, before | lose jurisdiction

here, we had an Exhibit 4 that was previously marked -

MS. SCHIFALACQUA: (Indiscernible), your Honor. We did not
THE COURT: Yeah. We'll just leave it that way. We'll note for

the record that State's proposed Exhibit 4 was marked for identification

purposes but not introduced into evidence and not offered for evidence..
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And with that, um, this case will be bound over to the Eighth
Judicial District Court, State of Nevada, county of Clark, on....

THE CLERK: July 20", 10 a.m.

THE COURT: Ali right. Thank you, everyone. Appreciate it.

‘Court's adjourned.

E N
ATTESE:  {do heraby codify that | have tuly and comeatly ransoribad the audie-
video recording of i procesding In the above-entiffed case 1o the bestofmy

abiiity.

S5
o
g%

i & A
MNORMA JEAN SILVERMAN
Court RecordaTransoriber
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ROBERT M. DRASKOVICH, ESQ. (6275)

Electronically Filed
08/20/2015 01:41:39 PM

Qi b B
TURCO & DRASKOVICH, LLP , CLERK OF THE COURT

815 S. Casino Center Boulevard

Las Vegas, NV 89101

Telephone: (702) 474-4222

Fax: (702) 474-1320

GARY A. MODAFFERI, ESQ.

LAW OFFICES OF GARY A. MODAFFERI
815 S. Casino Center Boulevard

1.as Vegas, Nevada 89101

LLOUIS C. SCHNEIDER, ESQ. (9683)
500 S. Seventh Street

Las Vegas, Nevada §9101

Telephone: (702)435-2121

Counsel for Defendant/Petitioner

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, STATE OF NEVADA

| In the Matter of the Apptication of Case No. C-15-307937-1

JASON LOFTHOUSE Dept No. XX

For a Writ of Habeas Corpus.

PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (PRE-TRIAL)

TO: The Honorable Judge of the Eighth Judicial District Court of
The State of Nevada, in and for the County of Clark

The Petition of JASON LOFTHOUSE submitted by ROBERT M. DRASKOVICH,
GARY A. MODAFFERI and LOUIS C. SCHNEIDER, as attorneys for the above-captioned
individual, respectfully affirm: - o

1. That attorneys for Petitioner are duly qualified, practicing and licensed
attorneys in the City of La.s Veg,asr? Coﬁnty of Clark, State ﬁf Nevada.

2. That attomeys make an applilcation herein on behalf of their client Petitioner
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for a Writ of Habeas Corpus.

3. That the imprisonment and restraint of Petitioner is unlawful for the following

reasons: The Petitioner is unlawfully and unconstitutionally charged with{- -

Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers of School and
Pupil (Counts 1, 4, 5, 6,. 7, 8, 11, 12 ‘and 13), Open or Gross Lewdness
(Counts 2 and 9), and First Degree Kidnapping (Counts 3 and 10).

4. That no other Petition for Habeas Corpus has heretofore been filed on behalf

of Petitioner.

5. Thé Petitioner waives the 60 day limitation for bringing the accused to trial.

6. If the Petition is not demded within 15 days before the date set for trial, the
Petitioner consents that the Court may, without notice or hearing, continue the trial indefinitely
or to date designated by the Couut.

WHEREFORE, Petitioner prays that this Honorable Court make an Ordey
diréoting the County of Clark td issue a Writ of Habeas Corpus directed to the said Joseph
Lombardo, Sheriff, commanding him to bring the above-mentioned Petitioner before your
Hoﬁor, and return the cause of his imprisonment.

DATED: August 20, 2015.
/s/ Gary A. Modafferi, Esq.

By:

Robert M. Draskovich, Esq. (6275)

Gary A. Modaffen, Esq. (12450)

Louis C. Schneider, Esq. (9683)

Attorneys for DefendantfPetltnoner Jason Lofthouse
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NOTICE Of MOTION
TO: ALL PARTIES OF INTEREST and TI‘lEIR COUNSEL OF RECORD; and
TO: THE STATE OF NEVADA. |
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on the 8 day of SEPT 2015, Defendant Lofthouse
witl bring the foregoing PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (PRE-TRIAL) on foy
hearing at the hour of &} 30 #Mam. in the above-referenced coutt.

DATED: August 20, 2015.

/s/ Gary A. Modafferi

By:

Robert M. Draskovich, Esg. (6275)

Gary A. Modafferi, Esq. (12450)

Louis C. Schneider, Esq. (9683)
Attorneys for Defendant Jason Lofthouse
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DECLARATION
GARY A. MODAFFERI makes the following declaration:

1. 1 am an attorney duly licensed to practice taw in the State of Nevada; | am
- familiar with thé facts and circumstances of this case.
2. That 1 am the attorney of record for-Petitioner/Defendant in the above
matter; that I have read the forego'ing Petition, know the contents thereof, and that the same i
true of my own knowledge, except for those matters therein stated on information and belief, and
as to those matt.ers, [ believe them to be true; that Defendant, JASON LOFTHOUSE, personally
authoriées me to commence this Writ of Habeas Corpus action.
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. (NRS
53.045).

EXECUTED this 20" day of August, 2015,

/s! Gary A. Modafferi

" GARY A. MODAFFER]
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MEMORANDUM OF
POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I. OVERVIEW
The Petitionér is charged by way of Amended Information,ﬁled on July 16, 2015 with
Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Voluntgers of School and Pupil (Category C
Felony), Counts 1,4,5,6,7,8, 11, 12 and 13; Open or Gross Lewdness (Gross Misdemeanor)
Counts 2 and 9; and First Degree Kidnapping (Category A Felony) Counts 3 and 10."

A preliminary hearing was held before the Honorable Christopher K. Lee on July 9, 2015.
The State was reﬁresented by Barbara Schifalacqua, Esq., and Stacy Kollins, Esq. The Petitioner
was represented by Robert M. Draskovich, Esq., and Louis C. Schneider, Esq. The State |
presented one witness; Minor M.T.? At the end of the hearing, Count 8 was voluntarily
dismissed and the Justice Court sustained the remaining fourteen counts as represented in the

attached Amended Information.”

! See Amended Information attached as Exhibit A.
* The preliminary hearing transcript was filed on July 30, 2015 and is refered to hercmaﬁer as “PHT.”
? The statitory elements of the cballenged counts are outlined below: .

NRS 200310 Degrees.
1. A petson who willfully seizes, confines, inveigles, entices, decoys, -abducts, conceals, kidnaps or carries

away a person by any means whatsoever with the intent to held or detain, or who holds or detains, the person foy
ransotn, ot reward, or for the purpose of committing sexual assault, extortion or robbery upon or from the person, oy
for the purpose of kilting the person or inflicting substantial bodily harm upon the person, or to exact from relatives,
friends, or any other person any money or valuable thing for the return or disposition of the kldnappcd person, and 4
person who leads, takes, entices, or carries away or detains any minor with the intent to keep, imprisen, or confing
the minor from his or her parents, guardians, or any other person having lawful custody of the minor, or with the
intent to hold the minor to untawful service, or perpetraie upon the person of the minor any untawful act is guilty of
kidnapping in the first degree whieh is a category A felony.

2. A person who willfully and without authority of law seizes, 1nve1gles takes, carries away or kidnaps another|
person with the intent to keep the person secretly imprisoned within the State, or for the purpose of conveying the
person out of the State without authority of law, or in any manner held to service or detained against the person’y
will, is guilty of kidnapping int the second degree which is 2 category B felomy.

[1:165:1947; 1943 NCI, § 10612.05}—(NRS A 1959, 20; 1979, 39; 1987, 495; 1995, 1184)

~ NRS 200.320 Kidnapping in first degree: Penalties. A person convicted of kKidnapping in the first degree ig
guilty of a category A felony and shall be punished: :
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owned or which is part of the Nevada System of Higher Education.

. Where the kidnapped person suffers substantial bodily harm during the act of kidnapping or the subsequent
detention and confinement or in attempted escape or escape therefrom, by imprisonment in the state prison:

{(a) For life without the possibility of parole; .

(b) For life with the possibility of parole, with eligibility [or parole begining when a minimum of 15 years bag
been served; or : ‘

{c) For a definite term of 40 years, with cligibility for parolc beginning when a minimum of 15 ycars has beexy
served. '

2. Where lhe kidnapped person suffers no subslantial bodily herm as a resull of the kidnapping, by
imprisotumnent in the state prison:

(2) For life with the possibility of parole, with eligibility for parole beginning when a minimum of 5 years has
been served; oz ' E

{b) For a definite term of 15 years, with eligibility for parole beginning when a minimum of 5 years has beer
served.

[2:165:1947; 1943 NCL § 10612.06}—(NRS A 1967, 469; 1973, 1804; 1595 1184) .
NRS 201470 Definitions. Asused in NRS 201470 to 201,550, inclusive, untess the context otherwise requires,
the words and terms defined in NRS 201,480 to 201,530, inclusive, have the meanings ascribed to them in thosg

sections.

'NRS 201480 “College” defined. “College” means a college or community college which is privately

(Added to NRS by 1997, 2522)

NRS 201.490 “Private school” defined. “Private school” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 394,103,
{Added to NRS by 1997, 2522)

NRS 201500 “Public school” defined, “Public school” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 383.007.
{Added to NRS by 1997, 2522)

NRS 201510 “Sado-masochistic abuse” defined. “‘Sado-masochistic abuse” has the meaning ascribed to 1
in NRS 201.262.
{Added to NRS by 1997, 2522)

NRS 201,520 “Sexual conduct” defined, “Sexual conduct” means:

1. Ordinary sexual intercourse,

2. Anal intercourse;

3. Fellatio, cunnilingus or other oral-genital contact; ‘

4, Physical contact by a person with the unclothed genitals or pubic area of another person for the purpose of

arousing or gratifying the sexual desire of either person;
5. Penetration, however slight, by a person of an object into the genital or anal opening of the body of another]

person for the purpose of arousing or gratifying the scxual desire of either person;
6. Masturbation or the lewd exhibition of unclothed genitals; or
7. Sado-masochistic abuse,
{(Added to NRS by 1997, 2522)

NRS 201,530 “University” defined. “University” means a university which is privately owned ot which i

part of the Nevada System of Higher Education.
(Added to NRS by 1997, 2522)

NRS 201.540 Sexual conduci between certain employees of school or volunteers at school and pupil:

Penalty; exception,
1.~ Except as otherwise provided in subsection 4, a person who:

(a) Is 21 years of age or older; . _ )
(b) 1s or was employed in a position of authority by # public school or private schoal or is or was volunteering

in a position of authority at & public or private school; and
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} it a position of authority at a public or private school; and

volunteer,

| more than $5,000.

11. FACTUAL BACKGROUND

Counsel for Petitioner began the hearing by pointing out to the Court that the Petitioner was
being charged with a crime against decency and moral conduct under NRS 201.540 and not 2
crime against the person.* The sexual relationship that-was alleged between M.T. and Petitioner

is not and was not prbhibited by law due to M.T.’s age. The State’s one and only witness was

(c) Engages in sexual conduct with a pupil who is 16 or 17 years of age ancl:
(1) Who is or was enrolled in or attending the public school or ptivate school at which the person is or was
employed or volunteering; or :
(2) With whom the person has had contact in the course of performing his or her duties as an employee o1
volunteer, '
- is guilty of a category C felony and shall be punished as provided n NRS.193.130.
2. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 4, a person who:

(2} Is 21 years of age or older;
(b) Is or was employed i a position of anthority by a public school ar private school or is or was volunteering

(¢) Engages in sexual conduct with a pupil who is 14 or 15 years of age end.
(1) Who is or was cnrolled in or attending the public school or pitvate school at which the person is or wa

employed or volunteering; or
(2) With whom the person has had contact in the course of performing his or her duties as an employee o1

= is puilty of a category B felony and shatl be punisked by imprisonment in the state prison for 2 mininmum term of
not less than 1 year and a maximum term of not more than 6 years, and may be further punished by 2 fine of not

3. For the purposes of subsections 1 and 2, a person shall be deemed to be or have been employed in a position
of authority by a public school or private school or deemed to be or have been volunteering in a position of authority
ata public or private school if the person is or was employed or volunteering as:

{a) A teacher or instructor, '

(b) An admunistrator;

(c) A head or assistant coach; or’

(d) A teacher’s aide or an auxiliary, nonprofessional employee who sssists licensed personnel in the instruction
or supervision of pupils pursuant to NRS 391.100.

4.. The provisions of this section do not apply to a person who is miarried to the pupil.

{Added to NRS by 1997. 2522; A 2001, 703; 2013. 2098) '

NRS 201210 Open or gross lewdness; penalty,
1. A person who commits any act of open or gross lewdness is guilty;
(a) For the first offense, of a gross misdemeanor.
(b) For any subsequent offense, of a category D felony and shall be punished as provided in NRS 193.130.
2. For the purposes of this section, the breast feeding of a child by the mother of the child does not constitutel
an act of open or gross lewdness, ‘
[Part 1911 C&P § 195; A 1921, 112; NCL § 10142]—(NRS A 1963, 63; 1965, 1465; 1967, 476, 1973, 95, 255,
1406; 1977, 866; 1979, 1429; 1983, 206; 1991, 1008; 1_9_9,_;}1“\_1_?1__7’_, 1199 1327 1997, 2501, 3188)
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M.T. She was seventeen with a date of birth of October 22, 1987 when these events were aileged
1o have occurred.” |

M.T. attends Rancho High School where. she was a junior during the 2014-2015 school
years.6 She miet the Petitioner at Rancho during this time. Petitioner taught U.S. History.7 They
first met in the beginning of the school year in 2014.% She described their relationship through
winter break as a “beginner teacher-student relationship.” After winter break Petitioner took time
off and M.T. had a substitute teacher.™” M.T. and Petitioner began contact outside of their school
relationship through Twitter after the school winter break. ' [t began with friends asking him to
return because they were unhappy with his substitute. 2 M.T. began direct messaging Petiﬁoner
in Mafch, 2015." They would message about fﬁusic and other topics. |

M.T. said she knew the Petitioner was married with children and that he was 32 years old. 1
In late April, the two began telling each other that they were attracted to each other." The first
time there was physical contact was in May 2015 when the two kissed in his classtoom.'® M.T.
described giving Petitioner oral sex in the empty and locked classroom.’” They had positioned

themselves in the corner of the room so as not to be seen by other people.

SPHT 12.

SPHT 12.

T PHT 14.

Y PHT 16.

PHT 17.

1® pPHT 17.

I PHT I8,

2 pHT 18.

3 PHT 20.

14 pHT 21.

13 pyHT 22 .
16 pyT 24, 8
17 pHT 27 and PHT 30 (counts 1 and 2)
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On May 20, 2015 they made arrangements té go to a hote] to have sex‘.18 Petitioner picked
her up in the morning at her house; they both skipped school, and went to a hotel to have
consensual sex."” They first had oral sex and next they had penis in vagina sex.” Count three is
charged as a kidnapping in the first degree for this consensual encounter at the hotel on May 20,
2015. The State would later argue that this charge was supported by a custodial/parental
interference theory.

The State also splintered the encounter into two episodes of sexual intercourse by charging
Counts six and seven for penis to vagina sex. They charged separately Count 5 for fellatio and
Count 4 for cunnilingus. Petitioner dropped off M.T. near her house at approximately 2p.m. on
May 20, 2015.*' M.T. described several other encounters with Petitioner occurring between May.
21" to May 27" inClﬁding oral sex in the classroom. She touched his genitals and they kissed.”

M.T. told the prosecutor that she was annoyed to be forced to tell her about these private
and consensual choices and that she wished “fny choice .was respected.”” M.T. next asked to
describe another hotel sexual encounter with Petitioner at the Cannery Hotel on May 28, 2015.%
M.T. indicateci she did not have her parents’ penniss_ion to go to either the Aliante on May 20,
2015 or the Cannery on May 28, 20157

The State identified a surveillance photograph through M.T. of her kissing the Petitioner.”

While in the hotel room M.T. testified she “gave him oral sex."¥ He gave her oral sex. 2 M.T.

118 PHT 33. MLT. testified they had penis to vagina sex twice. PHT 43.

' PHT 33, 34 and 39.
20 PHT 39-40.

2L PHT 45.

22 PHT 46-47.

I3 PHT 49.

4 PHT 50-53.

|*5 PHT 34 and 54.

26 pHT 57.
2T pHT 58:
2% PHT 59.
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also testified to twice having penis to vagina sex.”” On June 3, 2015, M.T. went to Petitioner’s
classroom. She kissed him and then a security officer entered and took her to fhe school office.™
M.T. first denied then admitted the relationship. | |

Upon cross-examination, M.T. readily underscored that she was se\.rente'en when these acts
occurred with Petitioner‘ and that they were all completeiy consensual *? No drugs or alcohol
were involved.” M.T. told the Court she went with Petitioner willingly and was not confined in
anyway.>* Petitioner at no point tried to keep M.T. from her parents, nor did he tell her he wanted
to keep her from her parents, nor did M.T. feel that he was keeping her from her parents.35 Being
seventeen she routinely met with people without her parents’. permission. M. T said she felt like
she was free to leave him at any time.*

When asked if she felt intimidated by the prosecutors M.T. responded “I feel intimidated by
anyone who questions what I do with my body 3 M.T. sa1d she felt completely forced to

participate in this prosecution. S MLT. felt her relationship with the Petitioner was an “honest”

{|relationship and it was entered into voluntatily on her part.39 But for the fact that Petitioner is in

legal trouble she did not have regrets. She testified that “1 believe we're both equally
respcmsi_ble.”"o When asked by the prosecutor if she told anyone older than 18 about her sexual

relationship with Petitioner, M.T. responded “I don’t tell any adult about my sexual

¥ PHT 59-60.
*0-pLIT 64,
PHT 65.

2 PHT 70.

¥ PHT 0.

¥ pHT 71.

¥ pHT 72.

¥ PHT 73,

T PHT 74.
SEPHT 76 .
9 pUT 78. 10
0 pHT 78.
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relationships.”“ M.T. testified that, “1 don’t see how it concerns what I do with anyone else.”®

She told the prosecutor “It’s my body and I'm over 1674

II. LEGAL ARGUMENT

A. The three First Degree Kidnapping charges are unsupported by the facts or

the law.

Even when the evidence presented at the preliminary hearing is viewed through the
probable cause standard evidentiary prism, nothing the Petitioner did or said, can transform thes
events into legal culpability amounting to kidnapping in the first degree. The Amended

Information alleges two counts of First Degree Kidnapping as codified in Counts 3 and 10,

200.310. Counsel for the Petitioner consistently made the argument that the State’s misuse of its
charging powers has transformed a crime against public decency and good morals offense as
codified in NRS ZOi into a crime against persons offense as codified in NRS 200.

Counsel for Petitioner argued, “We do not have the defendant in this case keeping thig
young lady, prying this young lady away from her parents or guardians. If there was in fact
movemeﬁt it was incidentai 1o the sexual conduct. Our Nevada Supreme Court has stated that for
a separate charge of first-degree kidnapping that movement must be so great and so substantial

that it substantially increases the risk of harm to fche alleged victim, but in this case we don’t have

a victim so it doesn’t apply."’44

* The language Counsel made reference to in his argument is the same language contatned

in Counts 3 and 10 and is the same language that the Nevada Suprerne Court has scrutinized

H PHT 85.
2 PHT 87.
HpHT 87.
“ pPHT 91.

13

The State uses the exact tracking language provided for is the definitional section of NRS |
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through multiple decisions. In both events, the Amended Information reads in pertinent part tha

the Petitioner “did ... willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously, lead, take, entice, camry away of

kidnap M.T. a minor, with intent to keep, imprison or coofine said M.T., from her parents,.

guardians, or other person or persons having lawfﬁl custody of M.T., or with the intent to hold|
M.T. to unlawful service, or to perpetrate upon the person of M.T. any unlawful act, to-wit: by
Defendant engaging in sexual acts with .the said M.T. which constituteVSexuai Conduct Between
Certain Employees or Volunteers and Pupil, to-wit Sexual Intercourse and/or Fellatio and/of
Cunnilingus.”45 The charge at issue is a class A felonﬁf which carries a life term.

The act at issué is consensual sex b-etween a seventeen year old giﬂ and a man. This
conduct alone is not criminal. The circumstance, pursuant to the student/teacher prohibition
makes an otherwise legal encounter a criminal encounter, However, the harm necessary to
sﬁpport a charge of First Degree Kidnapping does not then morph to support a First Degregj

Kidnapping charge.

Af the preliminary hearing, the State erroncously argued the kidnapping allegation is ig

legally valid when coextensively alleged with the premise that the attendant actions constitute
their interpretation of interference with parental custody. The State also argued that consideration
of the complainant’s kexp.licit unwavering testimony that she agreed and desired to go with the
Petitioner is irrelevant to assessing this offense.®

The State misapprehends the law. It is the State’s burden to present evidence amounting
to probable cause that the seizure, movement or restraint substantially exceeded what ‘i
necessary to compléte the associated offense. To begin with the associated offense, it is

respectfully submitted, must be an-offense which causes the person kidnapped to be harmed o1

12
45 Counts 3 and 10 of Amended Information. See e.g. Exhibit A.
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subjected to the possibility of harm. That proof_ is lacking in the preliminary hearing record. Tha
State cannot point to any legislative intent to make Kid.napping in the First Degree elementally
indistinguishable from Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers of School and
Pupil. Voluntarily going to a hotel to have consensual sex does not transform these evlents intoy
Kidnapping. |

Beginning with Wright, the Nevada Supreme Court distinguished the acts necessary to

sustain a Kidnapping in the First Degree and an associated Robbery offense.”’” In Wright, thg

Nevada Supreme Court concluded “that the Legislature intended a conviction of both kidnapping

and robbery only when the movement of _th@ victim substantially increases the risk of harm|
beyond that necessarily present in the crime of robbery itself,"*® Not a single fact presented af
preliminary hearing that makes the kidnapping charge more than iﬂcidental to the morals and
decency offense.”” The State presented no lsgal basis for including 2 morals and decency offense
as a predicate crime to support an allegation of Kidnapping in the First Degree. | |

In Clem, the Nevada Supreme Court held that, “while the plain language of NRS 200.310 (1
does not require asportation, the court has required it when the kidnapping is incidental to
another offense, such as robbefy, where restraint of the victim is inherent with the primary
offense ™ If the victim is physically restrained, “this in itself, establishes kidnapping as an

additional offense.””" In Petitioner’s case, there was no asportation and there was no restraint.

“6 PHT 93-94.

“7 Wright v. State, 94 Nev. 415, 581 P.2d. 442 (1978)

8 Woods v, State, 95 Nev. 29, 31 588 P.2d. 1030, 1032 (1979)

* In Woods, id, the Court found that locking the victims in the trunk of a car in a remote area substantially increased
their risk of harm, _

59 (e v, State. 104 Nev, 351, 354, 760 P.2d. 103, 105 (1988) citing Wright v, State, 94 Nev. 415, 531 P.2d. 442
(1978); Langford v. State, 95 Nev. 631, 600 P.2d. 231 (197)

¥ Clem, id, 104 Nev, at 354.
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In Clem, the Coﬁrt held that “... the kidnapping is not incidental to the underlying offense if
“the restraint increased the risk of harm” or “had an independent purpose and significance as
[being] essential to the accomplishment of the other offense.” Here, the State did not prove thaf
there was any ésportation- or restraint of aty kind. |

In Hutchins, the Nevada Supreme Court sustained a kidnapping because the victim was
forcibly moved to a different part of the apartment where she was physically restrained and

accordingly less apt to be heard by a passerby. Additionally, the forcible method used to relocata

her to a more secure setting for the assault, coupled with the measures used to accomplish hey

restraint, created a greater risk o.f harm without more.” These arc not the facts of Petitioner’s
case. There is nothing like this in Petitioner’s case.

In Mendoza, .the Court held “that movement or resiraint incidental to an underlying
offense where resfrain-t or movement 1§ inhere_nt, as a general matter, will not expose the
defendant to dual criminal liability under cither the first or second kidnapping statutes. However,
where the movemeﬁt or restraint serves to substantially increase the risk of harm to the victim

over and above that necessarily present in the associated offense, i.e. robbery, extortion, battery,

resulting in substantial harm, or sexual assault, or where the seizure, restraint or movement of thg

victim substantially exceeds that required to complete the associated crime charged, dual

convictions under the kidnapping and robbery statutes are proper.”™>

The State cssentially argues that the Petitioner interfered with parental custody and this
interference substitutes for restraint or movement that substantially exceeds that necessary to
complete the charge of Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers of School and

Pupil. Under the State’s proposed use of the kidnapping statute the driver of M.T.s car used to

14
% Wutchins v. State, 110 Nev, 103, 887 P.2d. 1136 (1994)
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dual convictions under Nevada kidnapping and murder statutes. The Court in Pascua stated that

cut school would also be guilty of Kidnapping. The mannef in which this I;idnapping wag
charged and presented at preliminary hearing represents a forbidden scenario in which every
charge of Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers -of School and Pupil would
also necessarily be a Kidnapping in the First Degree charge. This is not the law and it is not in

keeping with the holdings of such cases as Mendoza, Clem, Wright and Hutchins.

In Pascua, the Nevada Supreme Court once again took the opportunity to hold that,
“movement or restraint incidental to an underlying offense, where resiraint or movement i3
inherent, as a general matter, will not expose the defendant to dual criminal liability under either

the first-or-second degree kidnapping statutes.”* The Court went on to address the propriety of

“although we are cognizant that seizure, Testraint, of movement often oceurs incidental to the
underlying offense of rhurder, there are certainly situations in which such seizure, movement, 0f
restraint substantially exceeds that required to complete the murder.”*> The Court then attempted
io illustrate examples of a situation where “such seizure, movement, or Testraint substantially
exceeds that to complete the murder.” The Court stated “for example dual convictions could,
stand where the object is murder and victim is kidnapped for that purpose. We can also imaging
a scenario in which a person is kidnapped for ransorn and is murdered in order to prevent the

victim from identifying the 1<:icinapper.”56

Tn this case, the State argues that probable cause to establish Kidnapping in the First

Degree was presented because Petitioner constructively violated the Complainant’s parentall

custody. The State failed to present any evidence on this point from M.T.’s parents. Probable

 Mendoza v. State, 122 Nev. 130 P.3d. 176 (2006)

M e

# Pascua v, Stale, 122 Nev, 1001, 145 P.3d 1031, 1033 (3506)
% Pascua, id at 1034,
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officer to arrest a citizen from the sireet.

the same as jts burden to show probable cause.” The State must present evidence supporting &

is based upon the erroneous presumption that M.T. was beholden to legaily obtain thig

cause remains the standard to be applied. The terms slight and/or marginal have not eroded the
basic tenet that this is still the same amount of evidence that must be proffered the warrani

application process to entcr a citizen’s home or alternatively, the amourt of evidence for a police

In Graves, the Nevada Supreme Court examined whether the same probable causg
standard applied to proof of corpus delecti, The Court held that the State has the burden of

showing a “reasonable inference” of death by criminal agency, such that a person of ordinary

caution and prudence (would) believe and conscientiously entertain a strong suspicion.”57 Thig

applicable legal analogy was repeated in Middleton where the Court held, “Accordingly, we now
clarify that at preliminary hearing stage, the State’s burden with respect to the corpus delecti is
“reasonable inference” of death by criminal ag‘anc:y.”5 8

| In this case the State must have presented proof amounting to prob able cause that a crime
occurred and that the Petitioner is the person that committed the crime. The crime of first degres
kidnapping did not occur. The State’s proof surrounding this issuc was presented at preliminary
hearing in a tangential and confusing manner. M.T. did not need her parents’ permission to havej

sex. The proposed charge of kidnapping in the first degree by interference with parental custody

permission.

58 pascua, id at 1034, .
51 Graves v, Sheriff, 88 Nev. 436, 439, 498 P.od. 1329, 1386 (1972)
P T S PTEETR

Sheriff v. Middleton, 112 Nev. 956, 961, 921 P.2d. 286 (1996)
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B. The State presented insufficient evidence to establish that Petitionen
committed open or gross lewdness.

The Petitioner was charged with two counts of Open #nd Gross Lewdness based upon

private, unviewed,-physical interactions between M.T. and Petitioner in his cl;assrocnm.59 M.T]
said they kissed in the right hand corner of the classroom ... “to not be seen.”® She further
testified that the otherwise empty classroom was pfdbably locked.?! They were “outside the view
of the window and the door” during their physical encounters. The second charged encouﬁter
occurred sometime ... “From May 217 to May 7% 62 1 hoth instances evidence was adduced
that M.T. engaged in consensual oral sex (fellatio) with Petitioner.

The Nevada Supreme Court has previously considered what acts of lewdness werg

deemed “open” under NRS 901.210.5 The Ranson court conciuded that because the term “open’}.

modified the word “lewdness” the Legislature intended to broaden the common law definition to
include acts ﬁhich are committed in a private, but which are nevertheless coﬁlmitted in an
“open” as opposed to secret manmer.**

In this case, the parties took p_articular gaution to prevent open éxposure of their physical
encounter. The door was locked and they move.d to a portion of the classroom where they could
not be seen by others in the building. It is respectfully submitted that these precautions precluds

a finding that the offenses charged were committed in an “open” manner.*®

5% Count 2 alleges a time between May 6, 2015 and Count 9 alleges a time between May 21, 2015 and May 27,

2015.

80 pIT 25.

) pIIT 26 and 27.

52 pHT 45.

2 Ranson v. State, 99 Nev. 766, 767 (1983) 17
Id. :
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CONCLUSION

It is respectfully submitted that the Stafe failed to present sufficient probable cause to
sustain counts 2, 3, 9, and 10. These counts should be dismissec.

DATED: August 20, 2015,

By: /s/ Robert M. Draskovich
Robert M. Draskovich, Esq. (6275)
- Gary A, Modafferi, Esq. (12450)
Louis C. Schneider, Esq. (9683)
Counsel for Defendant/Petitioner LOFTHOUSE

52 The petition plans to chaltenge the constitutionality of 3éxual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers
of School and Pupil. NRS 201.540 A motion to dismiss will be fited for thatpurpose.
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ROBERT M. DRASKOVICH, ESQ. (6275)'
TURCO & DRASKOVICH, LLP

815 8. Casino Center Boulevard

Las Vegas, NV 89101

Telephone: (702) 474-4222

Fax: (702)474-1320

GARY A, MODAFFERI, ESQ.

LAW OFFICES OF GARY A. MODATTERI
815 S. Casino Center Boulevard

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

LQUIS C. SCHNEIDER, ESQ. (9683)
500 S. Seventh Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Telephone: (702) 435-2121

Counsel for Defendant/Petitioner -
' DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, STATE OF NEVADA

In the Matter of the Apphcatmn of CaseNo. C-15:307937-1
JASON LOFTHOUSE Dept No. XX
For a Writ of Habeas Corpus.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that on the 20" day of August, 2015, I served a true

copy of PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (PRE-TRIAL) upon the following:

Stacey Kollins, Esq. - _
Chief Deputy District Attorney
stacy kollins@gclarkcoyntyda.com

Barbara Schifalacqua
Chief Deputy District Attorney
barbara.schifalacqua@eclarkcountyda.com

/s/ Erika W, Magana

Erika W. Magana, An Employee of
Turco & Draskovich, LLP-
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* Electronically Filed _
07/16/2015 10:27:16 AM

AINF : m i. W—
STEVEN B. WOLESON
(lark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
STACEY KOLLINS

Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005391

CLERK OF THE COURT

200 Lewis Avenue
Las Ve%as, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-25Q0
Attorney for Plaintiff ‘
LA. 07/20/2015 DISTRICT COURT
10:00 AM CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
SCHNEIDER
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
CASE NO: C-15-307937-1
Plaintiff,
ys- | DEPT NO: XX
JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE,
#7019775 AMENDED
Defendant. INFORMATION

STATE OF NEVADA g
$S.

COUNTY OF CLARK )
STEVEN B. WOLFSON, District Attorney within and for the County of Clark, State

of Nevada, in the name and by the authority of the State of Nevada, informs the Court:

That JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE, the Defendant above named, having
committed the crimes of SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL (Category C Felony - NRS 201.540 - NOC
51067), OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS (Gross Misdemeanor - NRS 201.210 - NOC
50971) and FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING (Category A Felony - NRS 200.310, 200.320

- NOC 50053) in the manner following:
That the said Defendant, on or between May 6, 2015 and May 28, 2015, at and within '

the County of Clark, State of Nevada, contrary to the form, force and effect of statutes in such

cases made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada,

1

W:\20151‘\[\'09\39\1SI’I\IOQJQ—H‘JPM-(LOFTHOUSE_JASON)wDUl.DOCX
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COUNT 1- SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did, on or between May 6, 2015 and Méy 19, 2015, then and there, willfully, unlawfully
and feloniously, while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or
volunteering in a position of authority at a public ot private school, to-wit: ateacher, at Rancho
High School, Clark County,-Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in fellatio, with
M.T., who Was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending thé
schooi at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering. |
COUNT2 - OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS |

did, on ot between May 6, 2015 and May 19, 2015, willfully and unlawfully commit an

act of open or grdss lewdness by said Defendant having the said M.T. rub and/or touch the

body and/or genital area of Defendant and/or said M.T. engage in fellatio with Defendant in a

classroom of Rancho High School.
COUNT 3 - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING

did, on or about May 20, 2015, willfully, unlawfully and feloniously, lead, take, entice,
carry away or kidnap M.T., a minor, with the intent to keep, imprison, or confine said M.T,,
from her parents, guardians, or other person Or persons having lawful custody of M.T., or with
the intent to hold M.T. to unlawful service, or to perpetrate upon the person of M.T. any
unlawful act, to-wit: by Defendant engaging in sexual .acts with the said M.T which constitute
Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers of School and Puﬁi], to-wit; sexual
intercourse and/or fellatio and/or cunnilingus.
COUNT 4 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

'VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there, willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunieering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teachel at Rancho High School,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in cunnilingus, with M.T.,

who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at

2

WAZOISFINOINIO I SFN0939-INFM- (LOFTHOUSE_JIASON)-001 DOCX

145




w300 =1 Ot B ) b e

T S ST S ST C T U Ny
RN Y NEEBEE S e 00 R w0~ O

which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
COUNT 5 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
'VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
“did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or voluntecrmg or havmg been previously employed or volunteermg ina
position of authority at a public or prlvate school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in fellatlo with M.T., who
was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at which
Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
COUNT 6 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while empléyed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of anthority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attendmg the
school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
COUNT 7 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and ther_e willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previonsly employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High Séhool, .

Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with

| M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the

school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering,

i
/!
I
3
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COUNT 8 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or between May 21, 2015 and May 27, 2015, then aﬁd there willfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously, while employed or volunteering or having been previously
employed or volunteering in a position of authority at 4 public or private school, to-wit: a
teach, at Rancho High School, , Clark County, Nevada, and who is_ over 21 years of age, engage |
in fellatio, with M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or

attending the school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.

COUNT 9 - OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS

did, on or between May 21, 2015 and May 27, 2015, willfully and ﬁnlawfully commit
an act of open or gross lewdness by said Defendant having the said M.T. rub and/or touch the
body and/or genital area of Defendant and/or said M.T. engage in felhitio with Defendant in a
classroom of Rancho High School. |
COUNT 10 - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING
| did, on or about May 28, 2015, willfully, unlawfully and feloniously, lead, take, entice, |,
carry away or kidnap M.T., a minor, with the intent to keep, imprison, or confine said M.T.,
from her parents, guardians, or other person or persons having lawful custody of M.T., or with
the intent to hold M.T. to unlawful service, or to perpetrate upon the person of M.T. any
unlawful act, to-wit; by Defendant engaging in sexual acts with the said M.T which constitute
Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers of School and Pupil, to-wit: sexual

intercourse and/or fellatio and/or cunnilingus.

COUNT 11 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 28, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in fellatio, with M.T., who

was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at which
4
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Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
COUNT 12 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL |

did, on or about May 28, 2015, then and theré willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, , |
Clark.County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in cunnilingus, with M.T,,
who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at
which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volanteering,
COUNT 13 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did, on or about May 28, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
schoo! at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
f |
/]
/1
/!
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i
/"
/
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COUNT 14 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on of about May 28, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a

position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,

- Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with

M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed ot volunteering.

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY /s/ STACEY KOLLINS
STACEY KOLLINS
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005 %91

6
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Names of witnesses known to the District Attorney's Office at the time of filing this

Information are as follows:

ABBOTT; CCSDPD#0199

ALEMAN, MARIA: 2237 DEMETRIUS AVE, LVN 89101

BROWNLEE, BELISA: 3612 SHAWN REYNOLDS CT #203, LVN 89129
BUTLER, VERNON; CANNERY CASINO, 2121 E CRAIG RD, NLV 89030 - -
CASTILLO, ZUREMA; 6212 CRATERS EDGE ST, NLV 89031

COR or Designee; CCDC

COR or Designee; CCSD

COR or Designee; CCSDPD COMMUNICATIONS

COR or Designee; CCSDPD RECORDS

COR or Designee; RANCHO HIGH SCHOOL

HIBNER; CCSDPD#0243

JONES: CCSDPD#0323 |

KUZMA, JAMES; 2158 FOUNTAIN SPRINGS DR, HND 89074

LNU, NATHAN; SECURITY SUPERVISOR; ALIANTE HOTEL/CASINO
M.T:; cfo CCDA-SVUIVWAC | |
MACISZAK; CCSDPD#0308

NORDSTROM, R.; ALIANTE HOTEL/CASINO

PATTY; CCSDPD#0520

PRINCIPAL; RANCHO HIGH SCHOOL

TORRES, ISIDIRO; 5722 COLEMAN ST, NLV 89031

TORRES, MRS. FNU; 5722 COLEMAN ST, NLV 89031

TROXELL; CCSDPD#0373

DA#15FN0939X/hjc/SYU
CCSDPD EV#150 03963

7
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Electronically Filed
(05/08/2015 12:05:33 PM

RWHC e b S
STEVEN B. WOLFSON :
Clark County District Attorney CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada Bar #001565

STACEY L. KOLLINS

Chief Deputy District Attorney -

Nevada Bar #005301

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Ve%as, Nevada 89155-2212

(702) 671-2500

State of Nevada

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA

In the Matter of Application, |

of Case No. C-15-307937-1
| Dept No. XX

JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE,

#7019775

For a Writ of Habeas Corpus.

RETURN TO WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

DATE OF HEARING: SEPTEMBER 22, 2015
TIME OF HEARING: 8:30 A M.

COMES NOW, JOSEPH LOMBARDO, Sheriff of Clark County, Nevada,
Respondent, through his counsel, STEVEN B. WOLE'SON, District Attorney, through |

STACEY L. KOLLINS, Chief Deputy District Attorney, in obedience to.a writ of habeas
corpus issued-out of and under the seal of the above-entitled Court on the 20th day of August,
2015, and made feturnable on the 8th day of September, 2015, at the hour of 8:30 o'clock
A.M., before the above—entitled.COurt, and states as follows: | |
I |

1

1
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1. Respondent admits the allegations of Paragraph L, of the Petition for Writ of Habeas

Corpus.
2. Respondent denies the allegations of Paragraph 3 of the Petitioner's Petition for .
Writ of Habeas Corpus.
3. Paragraphs 2, 4, 5, and 6, do not 1'eqilire admission or denial.

4, The Petitioner is in the actual custody of JOSEPH LOMBARDO, Clark County
Sheriff; Respondent herein, pursuanf to an Amended Criminal Information, a copy of which
is attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and inc'orIlJorated by reference herein.

Wherefore, Respondent prays that the Writ of Habeas Corpus be discharged ahd the
Petition be dismissed. '

DATED this 8th day of September, 2015.

Respectfully submitted,

'STEVEN B. WOLIFSON

~ Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar # 001565

BY /s/STACEY L. KOLLINS

STACEY L. KOLLINS
Chief Df}:futy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005391

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
STATEMENT OF FACTS PERTINENT TO THIS RETURN
Defendant, JASON LOFTHOUSE, is charged by way of Amended Information with

the crimes of Sexual Condﬁct Between Certain Employers or Volunteers of Scthl and Pupil
{(Category C Felony - NRS 201,540), ’Open or Gross Lewdness (Gross Misdemeanor — NS
201210) and First Degree Kidnapping (Category A Felony — NRS 200.310, 200.320). The |
crimes occurred on or between May 6, 2015 and May 28, 2015, The victim is M. T. (DOB: 10-
22-87).

0o

I
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The Preliminary Hearing Testimony of M.T. Pertinent to this Return

On July 9, 2015, a preliminary hearing was held in the above-captioned matter. The

charges stem from an ongoing sexual relationship between M.T. and Jason Lofthouse,
(hereinafter Defendant), a teacher a Rancho High School.

M.T. testified that she was 17 years old and her date of birth is October 22, 1997 M.T.
attended Rancho High School for the past three years and was a junior during the 2014-2015
school yeair. PHT, p. 12. M.T. attended Ranch High School during her entire junior yéar and
she knew Defendant as her fourth—peridd A.P. US. histofy teacher, during her junior year.
PHT, pp. 13-15. .M.T. first met Defendant in August 2014 and was in his class through June
2015. When she first met Defendant, M.T. was sixteen years of age. PHT, p. 15.

'M.T. recounted that during the first semester with Defendant as her teacher they had a
beginner teacher — student relationship. M.T. shared that during the second semester the
relationship started to change. PHT, p. 16. Defendant was -out on family leave because he had
rec'cntly had a child which required a substitute teacher in January of 2015. Defendant came
back to school sometime after the winter break. -PHT, p. 17. Near that time, M.T. began
following Defendant on Twitter. M.T. tweeted Defendant a message to comé back from his
absence because they were not enjoying the substitute teacher. PHT, p. 18,

Defendarit and M.T. b'egan direct messaging one another in March 2015. Defendant
was back at school teaching during that time. PHT, pp. 19-20. Defendant and M.T. began
direct messaging one another every day. In those messages M.T. discussed the school day and
music, among other things. PHT, p. 20-21, M.T. told the Court that she knew Defendant was
thirty-two years old and married with three children. M.T. testified that she had seen pictures
of the Defendant’s childreﬁ on Twitter. PHT, p. 21, M.T. and Defendant communicated daily
through April and May 2015. The relationship changed as M.T. began to like Defendant not
as a teacher but as a romantic interest. Defendant told MLT. that he was attracted to her. PHT,

p. 22. Defendant told M.T. that she was funny and pretty. That relationship began sometime

.at the end of April 2015. PHT, p. 23. M.T. testified that she had Defendant’s phone number

in her phone, saved under an emoji, as she did not want anyone fo see Defendant’s name
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because she didn’t wé1it them to find out. PHT, pp. 23-24.
M.T. testified that she and Defendant text messaged almost every day. In May 2015,

the relationship between M.T. and Defendant began to get physical. M.T. testified that they

kissed in his classroom. at Rancho High School. M.T. testified that the classroom door was
closed and probably locked, and they kissed in the right corner of the room so they would not
bé seen. PHT, pp. 25-26. In May, after the kissing incident, the physical relationship escalated‘.
On a couple of occasions M.T. and Defendant kissed followed by M.T. giving Defendant oral
[sex], by placing her mouth on his penis, These encounters occurred in Defendant’s classroom,
with the door shut and probably locked. PHT, pp. 26-27. These encounters occurred outside
the view of the window and the door. Defendant and M.T. kissed each other and touched each
other. Defendant touched M.T.’s breasts, M.T. touched Defendant’s chest area and genital
area, PHT, p. 28. ML.T. testified that Defendant pulled down his pants and underwear and M. T,
gave him oral sex until he ejaculated in her mouth. PHT, pp. 29-30. '

On May 20, 2015, M.T. went to the Aliante hotel with Defendant. The plan was that
Defendant would pick M.T. up and they would go to the hotel. Defendant picked M.T.upon
Ranch House Street at 7:15 am. M.T. was supposed o go to school that day but she did not.
M.T. testified that her mother would normally drive her to school, but that day she told her
mom she was going to geta tide. M.T. stated she never told her mom she was going anywhere
with Defendant. M.T. had neither permission to skip school that day nor to go with Defendant
to Aliante. PHT, pp. 33-34. M.T. testified that she did not have permission from either parent
to go with Defendant on May 20, 2015. PHT, p. 36. |

M.T. stated that Defendant picked her up in blue, four (4) door, Toyota, and took her
to Aliante Casino. PHT, p. 37. M.T. testified that they went directly to the room when they
arrived as Defendant already had keys. M.T. testified that room was a basic room with a
window, two beds and a TV, Before M.T. went to the room, Defendant had sent her a picture
of via text message. PHT, p. 38. M.T. was shown a photograph marked as State’s Exhibit “17,

which she identified as a photograph of the room she was in at Aliante. PHT, p. 39.

I
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M.T. testified that when they got into the room they had sex on the bed closest to the

window. M.T. testified they first had oral sex and then they had penis to vagina sex. M.T.

recounted that she put her mouth on Defendant’s penis and he ejaculated. Further, Defendant

put his mouth on her vagina. Afterward, they took a shower together and then they had sex
again, with Defendant placing his penis inside M.T.’s vagina, until Defendant ejaculated on
M.T.’s stoniach. PHT, pp. 39-40. Afterward, they talked. PHT, pp. 41-42. M.T. testified that
she and Defendant had penis to vagina sex in the Toom “about twice” and Defendant did not
use a condom during the sex. PHT, p. 42. |
M.T. testificd that she was at the Aliante Hotel with Defendant from a little after 7 a.m.
until 2 p.m., when Defendant took her home. PHT, pp. 44-45. M.T, testified that on May 21,
2015, she gaVe Defendant oral sex, in his classroom, during her seventh period class time.

M.T. was supposed to be in class but did not go. During that incident M.T. and Defendant

kissed and M.T. touched Defendant all over his body, including his chest and genital area.

Defendant’s pants and underwear were pulled down and his penis was exposed. PHT, p. 46-
49. M.T. testified that she felt annoyed about having to testify in open court and that she did
not want to be there. M.T. testified that she wished her choice would have been respected.
M.T. further testified that while Defendant’s penis was exposed, she put his penis in her mouth
until he ejaculated. PHT, pp. 49-50, |

ML.T. continued to talk to Defendant on a daily basis. On May 28, 2015, M.T. had
occasion to go to & hotel with Defendant. It was a school day and like the plan before, M.T.
told her mom that she was getting a ride and Defendant picked her up, on Ranch House, in his
blue Toyota. PHT, pp. 50-51. Defendani picked M.T. up after 7 a.m,, and took her to the
Cannery Hotel-Casino. PHT, p. 52. M.T. testified that the Cannery and Rancho High School
are located in North Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada, as is the Aliante Hotel. PHT, pp. 52-
53. M.T. relayed that the Cannery is located on Craig and Losee. Identical to the trip to
Aliante, Defendant already had the keys to the room when they arrived. PHT, p. 53.
I
I
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M.T. recounted that her mom and dad did not know she was going to the Cannery with
Defendant and she had not asked permission to go anywhere with Defendant on May 28, 2015. |
When they got into the room at the Cannery they talked. Defendant gave M.T. some frozen
mangos and Lana Del Rey records. PHT, p. 55. M.T. was Shdwn a photograph marked as
State’s Exhibit “2”, which she identified as a picture of her and Defendant kissing at the
Cannery Hotel on May 28, 2015. M.T. was also shown a photograph marked as State’s Exhibit
«37 \which she identified as a picture of her and Defendant walking out of the elevator, with
Defendant carrying a bag, at the Cannery Hbtel and Casino. PHT, p. 57.

When they got to the room, Defendant put the frozen mangos in the refrigerator and
M.T. and Defendant began kissing. ‘MLT. testified that she gave Defendant oral sex by placing
his penis in her mouth until he ejaculated; Defendant also gave M.T. oral sex by placing his
mouth on her vagind. M.T. and Defendant then engaged in penis to vagina sex, with M.T. on
top, until Defendant gjaculated on M.T."s stomach. PHT, pp. 58-61.

Defendant and M.T. stayed at the Cannery and talked that day until 2:00 p.m., when he
drove her home, PHT, p. 61. M.T. continued to talk with Defendant on a daily basis afterward.
On June 3, 2015, M.T. went to school. M.T. left her seventh period class and went o
Defendant’s classroom. When she got to the classroom there were several people present.
After the room 'emptied and M.T. and Defendani were alone, the door was shut and locked.
Defendant and M.T. kissed, in the right corner of the classroom, again positioned such that no
one could see. Officer Patty and another security came into the classroom. M.T. was taken to
their office where she met with Detectivé Troxil and mother officer. PHT, p. 64. '

M.T. gave a statement to them that was not truthfnl in that she denied having a

relationship with Defendant. When M.T. got home from school her dad took all of her-

electronics and then called her mom to come home. M:T, told her parents that it was true.

M.T. then spoke to Detective Troxil and another female detective and gave them a statement
that detailed her relationship with Defendant. PHT, pp. 64-65.
"o |
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MLT. testified that when she and Defeﬁdant made plans to go to Aliante and the Cannery
it was for the purpose of having sex. M;T. testified that she and Defendant talked spoke often
about those plans and Defendant would say sexual things to M.T. such as he wanted her and
that he wzmtedlto rip off her clothes. PHT, p. 67-68.

| LEGAL ARGUMENT
STANDARD OF PROOF AT PRELIMINARY HEARING

In order to hold a person for trial, a justice of the peace must find probable cause to

believe that an offense was committed and that the defendant in question committed the

offense. NRS 172. 155; Kirksey v. State. 112 Nev. 980, 923 P.2% 1102, 1108 (1996). During

the preliminary proceeding, the State must elicit sufficient evidence demonstrating probable
canse that a crime was committed and that the accused was likely the perpetrator, Sheriff v. |
Miley, 99 Nev. 377, 379, 663 P.2d 343, 344 (1983); NRS 172.155. As such, an Information
will be sustained where the State submits sufficient legal evidence to establish probable cause. |

Sheriff v. Simpson, 109 Nev, 430, 434-35, 851 P.2d 428, 431- 32 (1993). “The finding of

probable cause may be based on slight, even ‘marginal’ evidence, because it does not involve
a determination of the guilt or innocence of an accused.”” Id, at 435, 851 P.2d at 432 (quoting

Sheriff v, Hodes, 96 Név. 184, 186, 606 P.2d 178, 180 (1980) (citations omitted)). A

preliminary hearing need not be perfect; the proceeding need only provide. a defendant with

fair consideration, Franklin v. State, 8% Nev. 382, 389, 513 P.2d 1252, 1257 (1973). The

preliminary hearing functions merely to determine whether the State has sufficient probable
cause to pursue charges against the defendant. Since the burden of proof at a preliminary
hearing is so much lower than that required at trial, the evidence adduced at the hearing need

not be sufficient to support a conviction, Abbott v. Sheriff, 87 Nev, 397,487 P.2d 1067 (1971).

The State need not produce the quantum proof necessary to establish guili of the accused

'beydnd a reasonable doubt. Id. The State only has to present enough evidence to support a

reasonable inference that the accused committed the crime and does not need to negate all

possible inferences as to doubt. See, Lamb v. Holsten, 85 Nev. 566, 568, 459 P.2d 771, 772 '

(1969); Johnson v, State, 82 Nev. 338, 341, 418 P.2d 495, 496 (1966). Further, a Petition for
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Writ of Habeas Corpus is not a vehicle to determine factual disputes as those are matters
reserved for the trier of fact at the time of trial. Brymer V. Sheriff, 92 Nev. 598 (1976), Wrenn

v. Sheriff, 87 Nev. 85 (1971). Insum, if the evidence produced at the preliminary examination

establishes a reasonable inference that the defendant committed the charged crimes, probable

cause exists to order the defendant to answer in the district court. Morgan v. Sheriff, 86 Nev,
23, 476 P.2d 600 (1970). |

L THE STATE PRESENTED SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE THAT DEFENDANT
COMMITTED THE CRIMES OF FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING AS
FURTGHER ALLGED IN COUNTS 3 AND 10 OF THE AMENDED

INFORMATION

Counts 3 and 10 of the Amended Information charge the Defendant as follows:

COUNT 3 - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING

did, on or about May 20, 2015, willfully, unlawfully and
feloniously, lead, take, entice, carry away ot kidnap M. T., a minor,
with the intent to keep, imprison, or confine said M.T., from her
parents, guardians, Of other person ot Eersons having lawful
custody of M.T,, or with the intent to hold M.T. to unlawful
service, or to perpetrate upon the person of M.T. any unlawful act,
to-wit: by Defendant engaging in sexual acts with the said M.T
which constitute Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or
Volunteers of School and Pupil, to-wit: sexual intercourse and/or
fellatio and/or cunnilingus.

COUNT 10 - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING

did, on or about May 28, 2015, willfully, unlawfully and
feloniously, lead, take, entice, carry away Or kidnap M.T., a minor,
with the intent fo keep, imprison, or confine said M.T., from her
parents, guardians, Of other person or Eersons having lawful
custody of M.T., or with the intent to hold M.T. to unlawful
service, or io perpetrate upon the person of M.T. any unlawful act,
to-wit: by Defendant engaging in sexual acts with the said M.T
which constitute Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or
Volunteers of School and Pupil, to-wit: sexual intercourse and/or

fellatio and/or cunnilingus.
NRS 200.310(1) defines First Degree Kidnapping as follows:

1. A person who willfully seizes, confines, inveigles, entices,
decoys, abducts, conceals, kidnaps or carries away a person by any
means whatsoever with the intent to hold or detain, or who holds
or detains, the person for ransom, of reward, or for the purpose of
committing sexual assault, extortion or robbery upon or from the
person, or for the purpose of killing the person or inflicting
cubstantial bodily harm upon the person, or to exact from relatives,
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friends, ot any other Person ally money or valuable thing for the
return or disposition of the kidnapped persom and a person who
leads, takes, entices, OF carries away or detains any minor with
the intent to keep, imprison, or confine the minor from his or
her parents, guardians, or any other person having lawful
custody of the minor, or with the inent to hold the minor to
unlawful service, or per etrate upon the person of the minor
any unlawful act is puilty of ki napping in the first degree
which is a category A felony.

NRS 200.310 recites three alternative t_heories for the crime of first degree kidnapping,
two of which are implicated in this case. Defendaﬁt’s entire Writ argument is based wpon the
first portion of NRS 200.310(1), which does not appiy io minor children and is not applicable
in this case. Furthermore, the first portion of the statute is not applicable to the facts in this
case because the State is not alleging that Defendant seized, confined, inveigled or enticed the
victim in this case with the intent to hold or detain her for ransom Of reward; or, for the purpose

of committing sexual agsault, extortion of robbery upon Of from her person, Nor do the fact
indicate that the kidnapping occurred for the purpose of killing or inflicting substantial bodily
harm on the minor victim. As such, the case law cited by Defendant in support of his erroneous
reliance on the first portion of the statute is also inapplicable to the facts of this case.

The second portion of NRS 200.310(1) delineaics the second theory under which a first |
degree kidnapping 0CCUTS and indicates that a defendant is guilty of first degree kidnapping if
Te “leads, takes, entices, OF carries away or detains any minor with the intént to keep, imprison
or confine him from his parents.” The State has to prove two things under this theory. Fir'st, ‘
that the Defendant lead, took, enticed, cartied, o detained the minor and second, when he did
so, he did it with intent to keep imprison, or confine the minor from her parents.

For the first prong, the Defendant definitely “led” and/or “took” and/or “enticed” M.T.
when he made arrangements to meet her, drove 10 her location, and pick her up with his
vehicle, on two occasions, without her parentfs consent. For the second prong, the Defendant
clearly did this with the intent to keep and/or confine M.T. from her parents; and, he did so for

the purpose of engaging in sexual acts with her, by taking her to two separaie hotel/casinos,

where they spent upwards of seven hours together in focked hotel rooms talking and engaging

in sexual acts together.
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Alternatively, under the third and final portion of the statute, a defendant is also guilty
if he “leads, takes, entices, or carries aWay or detains any minor... or perpetrates upon the
person of the minor any unlawful act.” Heré, the Defendant committed the unlawful acts of
Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers of School and Pupil, to-wit: sexual
intercourse and/or fellatio andfor cunnilingus. Therefore, he also meets the third type of
kldmppmg found within the statute.

Most importantly, NRS 200.350 clearly states that- The consent thereto of the person

| kidnapped or confined shall not be a defense unless it appears satisfactorily to the jury that

such person was above the age of 18 years and that the person’s conseﬁt was not extorted by
threats, duress or fraud.

In this case, M.T. was 17 years old at the time of these crimes, thus, under the law she
cannot consent. Furthermore, a minor cannot legally consent to become the victim of unlawful

service or to have unlawful acts perpetrated on her. Ther efore, it doesn’t matter that MLT. was .

a willing participant throughont the course of Defendant’s misconduct. Due to her age, a]one
she cannot consent to this type of conduct. The Defense might not like the state of the law,
but it is what it is, and the Defendant broke it. | |

M.T. testified that on two separate occasions, Defendant pickéd her up near her home,
on a school day, and drove her to two separate hotels, where he had rented the room so that
they.could engage in having sex with each other. M.T. testified that she told her mother that
she was getting a ride to school on those two occasions; and, that she did ndt have permission
from either parent to go to the hotels with the Defendant on May 20, 2015 and May 28, 2015.
PHT, pp. 33-42; pp. 50-61. | |

Defendant also argues that the State did not present sufficient evidence that the
Defendant violated the parental custody of the victim. The State disagrees. The victim in this
case testified that she was 17 years of age and she did not have permission from her parents {0
be out of school or taken anywhere by the Defendant on either day at issue here. Her testimony
alone, that she was a minor; that her mother thought she was getting a ride to school; and, that

her parents did not ever give her permission to go anywhere with the Defendant, is enough to

w301 STUNDIVIgN 1 SEN0939-RET-(Lofihause, _Jnsuu_ﬂ?_ll_!ﬂlS)-ﬁDl.donx 1 0

160




OO0 ~1 Oh L B e e

NMM[\JMMMMI\JI—"D—&HHM
oo‘qc\m.puw»—ao\oooqoxmﬁm’@:%

establish the violation of parental custody.
Clearly, from the testimony presented at the preliminary hearing, the State has met the
burden of slight or marginal evidence, to charge Defendant with the crimes of First Degree

Kidnapping as further alleged in Counts 3 and 10 of the Amended Information.

II. THE STATE PRESENTED SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE THAT THE
DEFENDANT COMMITTED THE CRIMES OF OPEN OR GROSS
LEWDNESS AS FURTHER ALLEGED IN COUNTS 2 AND 9 OF THE
AMENDED INFORMATION

COUNT 2 -OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS

did, on or between May 6, 2015 and May 19, 2015, willfully and

unlawfully commit an act of open or gross lewdness by said

Defendant having the said M.T. rub andfor touch the body and/or

%enital arca of Defendant and/or said M.T. engage in fellatio with
efendant in a classroom of Rancho High School.

COUNT 9 -OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS

did, on or between May 21, 2015 and May 27, 2015, willfully and
unlawfully commit an act of open or gross lewdness by said
Defendant having the said M.T. rub and/or touch the body and/or

genital area of Defendant and/or said M.T. engage in fellatio with
Defendant in a classroom of Rancho High School. _

NRS 201.210 states:

L. zix person who commits any act of open or gross lewdness is
guilty: .

(a) For the first offense, of a gross misdemeanor.

(b) For any subsequent offense, of a category D felony and shall
be punished as provided in NRS 193.130.

2. For the purposes of this section, the breast feeding of a child by
the mother of the child does not constitute an act of open or gross

lewdness.
At common law, open lewdness was defined as an “unfawful indulgence of lust

involving gross indecency with respect to sexual conduct” committed in a public place and .
observed by persons lawfully present. Young v. State, 109 Nev. 205, 849 P.2d 336 (1993).
Under some statutes, lewdness is deemed “open” when it is committed in another’s

presence or in a place open o public view, or in an open manner. Id. Similarly, indecent

“exposure of one’s genitals was punishable at common law without regard to whether the
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exposure was observed, or observed by a consenting adult, as long as the exposwre occurred

in a public place. Id.

The Nevada Supreme Court has a long standing principle that private acts that are

committed in an open fashion with the intent to be offensive fall under the definition of open

and gross lewdness. Ranson v, Staté, 99 Nev. 766, 670 P.2d 574 (1983).

In Ranson, supra, the defendant entered the victim’s home without her permission, stole

her gun and forced her to partially undress at gunpoint. The defendant then fondled the

victim’s breasts and buttocks, bit her buttocks and then left. He was later convicted of

burglary, robbery with the use of a deadly weapon and open or gross lewdness. On appeal
defendant claimed that he couldn’t be convicted of open and gross lewdness because the acts

weren’t open, they were committed inside the victin’s home and not a public place. The
Nevada Supreme Court disagreed and stated:

"~ At common law, it was nécessary to Frove that the offense of
“lewdness” was committed in a public place It is generally
accepted, however, that when a legisliature uses the term "open” to
modify the term "lewdness," as the Nevada _Legislature has done,
it intends to broaden the common law definition to include acts
which are committed in a private place, but which are nevertheless
commifted in an "open" as opgosed to a "secret” manner. See
Commonwealth v. Wardell, 128 Mass. 52, 35 Am.Rep. 357
(1880); State v, Baldino, 11 N.J.Super. 138, 78 A2d 95
(Ct.App.Div.1951); see generally 50" Am.Jur.2d, Lewdness,
Indecency, Etc,, § 1 (1970). Contra Everett v. Commonwealth,
214 Va. 325, 200 S.E.2d 564 (1973) (crime of open and gross
lewdness must be committed in a public place). We therefore
conclude that it was sufficient that appellant committed the present
lewd acts in an "open” fashion, clearly intending that his acts be
offensive to his victim. See Commonwealth v. Wardell, supra.

In this case, M, T. testified that, on a couple of occasions, she and Defendant kissed and
M.T. gavc' the Defendant orﬁl [sex], by placing her mouth on his penis. The incident occurred
in Defendant’s classroom [at Rancho High School], with the door shut and probably locked.
PHT, pp. 26-27. The incidents occurred outside the view of the window and the door. During
that incidents Defendant and M.T. kissed each other and touched each other. Defendant
touched M.T.’s breasts. M.T. touched Defendant’s chest area and genital area. PHT, p. 28.

M.T. testified that Defendant pulled _.ciow‘n his pants and underwear and M.T. gave him oral
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sex until he ejaculated in her mouth. PHT, pp. 29-30.
Clearly, the State presented sufficient evidence throqu the victim’s testimony that
Defendant committed Counts 2 and 9, as further charged in the Information.
CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing arguments, the State respectfully requests Defendant’s Petition

for Writ of Habeas Corpus be DENIED.
DATED this 8th day of September, 2015.
Respectfully submitted,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY /s/STACEY L. KOLLINS

STACEY L. KOLLINS
Chief De éauty District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005391

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing, was made this 8th day of

September, 20135, to:

ROBERT M. DRASKOVICH, E5SQ.
GARY A.MODAFFERI, ESQ
Email: emagana@dxaskowch com

LOUIS C. SCHNEIDER, ESQ.
Email:lcs @lvnlaw.net

/s HOWARD CONRAD -
Secretary for the District Attorney's Office
Special Victims Unit

hijc/SVU
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STEVEN B, WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney ‘ CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada Bar #001565

STACEY KOLLINS

Chief Deputy District Attomey

Nevada Bar #005391

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155- 2212

(702) 671- 2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

LA. 07/20/2015 DISTRICT COURT

10:00 AM CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

SCHNEIDER

" THE STATE OF NEVADA, - -
CASENO:  (-15-307937-1
Plaintiff, 7
vs- | DEPTNO: XX
JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE, - |
#7019775 | AMENDED
| Defendant. INFORMATION

STATE OF NEVADA g
S8.

COUNTY OF CLARK )
STEVEN B. WOLFSON, District Attorney within and for the County of Clark, State

of Nevada, in the name and by the authority of the State of Nevada, informs the Court:
That JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE, the Defendant above named, having
committed the crimes of SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL (Category C Felony - NRS 201.540 - NOC
51067), OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS (Gross Misdemeanor - NRS 201.210 - NOC
50971) and FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING (Category A Felony - NRS 200.310, 200.320

- NOC 50053) in the manner following:
That the said Defendant, on or between May 6, 2015 and May 28, 2015, at and within

the County of Clark, State of Nevada, contrary to the form, force and effect of statutes in such
cases made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada,

/!
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COUNT 1 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did, on or between May 6, 2015 and May 19, 2015, then and there, willfully, unlawfully
and feloniously, while empioyed or voluntéering or having been previously employed or
volunteering in a position of authority at a public or private schodl, to-wit: ateacher, at Ranqho
High School, Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 yeafs of age, engage in fellatio, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant was or previousiy had been employed or volunteering.
COUNT 2 - OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS

did, on or between May 6, 2015 and May 19, 2015, willfully and unlawfully commit an
act of open or gross lewdness by said Defendant having the said M.T. rub and/or touch the
body and/or genital area of Defehdant and/or said M.T.engage in fellatio with Defendant in a
classroom of Rancho High School. |

COUNT 3 - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING
did, on or about May 20, 2015, willfully, unlawfully and feloniously, lead, take, entice,

carry away or kidnap M.T., a minor,. with the intent to keep, imprison, or confine said M.T,,
fromher pﬁrents, guardians, or other person or persons having lawful custody of MLT., or with
the intent to hold M.T. to unlawful service, or to perpetrafe upon the person of M.T. any
unlawful act, to-wit: by Defendant engaging in sexual acts with the said M.T which constitute
Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers of School and Pupil, to-wit: sexual

intercourse and/or fellatio and/or cunnilingus.

COUNT 4 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there, willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,

while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
pbsition of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teacher, at Rancho High School, |
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in cunnilingus, with M.T.,

who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at

2
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which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
COUNT S - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
_ did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a |
position of authority at a public or privafe school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in fellatio, with M.T., who
was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at which |
Defendant was or previously had been emplbyed or volunteering. |
COUNT 6- SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
COUNT 7 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 20 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and fe!omous]y,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual mtercourse, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attendmg the
school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
/
/
/"
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COUNT 8 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
~ VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did, on or between May 21, 2015 and May 27, 2015, then .and there willfully,
unlawfully, 'md feloniously, while employed or volunteering or having been previously
employed or volunteering in a position of anthority at a public or private school, to-wit: a
teach, at Rancho High School, , Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of agé, engage
in fellatio, with M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or
attending the school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering,
COUNT 9 - OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS _

did, on or between May 21, 2015 ﬁnd May 27, 2015, willfully and unlawfully commit
an act of open or gross lewdness by said Defendant having the said M.T. rub and/or touch the
body and/or genital area of Defendant and/or said M.T. engage in fellatio with Defendant in a
classroom of Rancho High School. |
COUNT 10 - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING

did, on 6r about May 28, 2015, willfully, unlawfully and feloniously, lead, take, entice,

carry away or kidnap M.T., a minor, with the intent to keep, imprison, or confine said M.T,,

- from her parents, guardians, or other person or persons having lawful custody of M.T., or with

the intent to hold M.T. to unlawful service, or to perpetrate upon the person of M.T. any
unlawful act, to-wit: by Defendant engaging in sexual acts with the said M.T which constitute

Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers of School and Pupil, to-wit: sexual

intercourse and/or fellatio and/or cunnilingus.
COUNT 11 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 28, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,

while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in fellatio, with M.T., who
was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at which

4
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Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
COUNT 12 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL |
did, on or about May 28, 2015, then and there wiltfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who 1°. over 21 years of age, engage in cunnilingus, with M.T.,
who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at
which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
COUNT 13 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 28, 201'5,' then and there willfully, snlawfully, and feloniously,

while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a

* position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,

Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexuval intercourse, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attendirig the |
school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
Jl |
i
i
/
/s
/
/!
/
/H
/
I
5

W201 NI IO SFNO939-INFM-(LOFTHOUSE_JASON)-001.DOCX

- 163




= e I . N V. S N FC T . Ty

BN NN NN MR _
mqa\mammw‘é\o’;SE;ESB:S

COUNT 14 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did, on or about May 28, 20135, then and there willfully, uniﬁwfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at 2 public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexval intercourse, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.

STEVEN B, WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY  /s/ STACEY KOLLINS

STACEY KOLLINS
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #003391
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Names of witnesses known to the District Attorney's Office at the time of filing this

Information are as follows:

- ABBOTT; CCSDPD#0199

ALEMAN, MARIA; 2237 DEMETRIUS AVE, LVN 89101
BROWNLEE, BELISA; 3612 SHAWN REYNOLDS CT #203, LVN 89129
BUTLER, VERNON: CANNERY CASINO, 2121 E CRAIG RD, NLV 89030
CASTILLO, ZUREMA; 6212 CRATERS EDGE ST, NLV 89031 |
COR or Designee; CCDC o

COR or Designee; CCSD

COR or Designee; CCSDPD COMMUNICATIONS

COR or Designee; CCSDPD RECORDS

COR or Designee; RANCHO HIGH SCHOOL

HIBNER; CCSDPD#0243

JONES; CCSDPD#0323

KUZMA, JAMES; 2158 FOUNTAIN SPRINGS DR, HND 89074

LNU, NATHAN; SECURITY SUPERVISOR; ALIANTE HOTEL/CASINO
M.T.; clo CCDA-SVU/VWAC | |
MACISZAK; CCSDPD#0308

NORDSTROM, R.; ALIANTE HOTEL/CASINO

PATTY; CCSDPD#0520

PRINCIPAL; RANCHO HIGH SCHOOL
TORRES, ISIDIRO; 5722 COLEMAN ST, NLV 89031

TORRES, MRS. ENU; 5722 COLEMAN ST, NLV 89031

TROXELL; CCSDPD#0373

DA#15FEN0939X/hjc/SVU
CCSDPD EV#150603963
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i Law {}fﬁcc of Gary A, Modaffert, LLC
11815 8. Casino Center Bivd,
1} Las Vegus, Nevada 89101

Electronically Filed
08/18/2015 10:48:15 AM
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ROBERT M. DRASKOVICH, E5Q. (6275'} CLERK OF THE COURT
TURCO & DRARKOVICH, LLE,
GARY A, MODAFFERL ESQ. (12450)

]
Nl

. e
Yeds @
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Telephone: (702) 474-4222

LOUIS SCHNEIDRER, ESQ. (9643)
504 8. Seventh Straet
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorneys for Defendant

VS

DES'E‘R}E‘T &CEUR’E
_ CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
TTHE STATE OF NEVADA, : '
CASE NO.: C-15-307937-1
PlaintifT, :
DEPT. MO XX
: LEAS{}N LOFTHOUSE,
Defendant,

| Fudicial Court of the State of Nevada, in and for the County of Clark, issue a Writ of Habeag

| Corpus, as is attached hereto.

ORDER THAT WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS ISSUE
The Petition of ROBERT M. DRASKOVICH, ESQ., GARY A MODAFFER], ESQ.,

and LOUIS C. SCHNEIDER having been fil ed in the above matter,
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUSTED AND DECREED that you, Clerk of the T3 i“hih

DATED AND DONE at Las Vegas, Nevada, this ,/ L/ day of ,,34§f; é‘{} L2015,
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Electronically Filed
06/15/2015 02:23:48 PM

ROBERT M. DRASKOVICH, ESQ. (6275) w@- 2 g&flm "

TURCO & DRASKOVICH, LLP CLERK OF THE COURT
815 S. Casino Center Boulevard

Las Vegas, NV 89101

Telephone:. (702) 474-4222

Fax: (702) 474-1320

GARY A. MODAFFERI, ESQ.

LAW OFFICES OF GARY A. MODAFFERI -
815 S. Casino Center Boulevard ~
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

LOUIS C. SCHNEIDER, ESQ. (9683)
500 S. Seventh Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Telephone: (702)435-2121

Counsel for Defendant/Petitioner

_ DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, STATE OF NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO. C-15-307937-1
Plaintiff, _ DEPT, NO. XX
V8, '
JASON LOFTHOUSE,
Petitioner/Defendant.
PETITIONER’S TRAVERSE

COMES NOW, the Defendant, JASON LOFTHOUSE, by and through his counsel]

ROBERT M. DRASKOVICH, ESQ., of TURCO & DRASKOVICH, LLP, GARY A/

MODAFFERI, ESQ., of THE LAW OFFICE OF GARY A. MODAFFER_T, LLC, and LOUIS C,

SCHNEIDER, ESQ., and respectfully tenders the following Traverse (Pre-Conviction).
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This Traverse focuses on the issues of whether the State correctly interpreted NRS

200.310 to support their three theory argument of kidnapping in the first degree. Specifically,

whether a crime against public decency and morals can be used to support a charge of first

|l degree kidnapping and whether the State sustained its burden of probable cause as to all elements

of the offenses charged.

This Traverse is offered in addition to any evidence and/or argument adduced at a hearing

on this matter.
DATED this 15" day of September, 2015.
/s/ Gary A. Modafferi, Esq.

By:

- Robert M. Draskovich, Esq. (6275)
Gary A. Modafferi, Esq. (12450)
Louis C. Schneider, Bsq. (9683)
Attorneys for
Defendant/Petitioner Jason Lofthouse
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TRAVERSE

. THE KIDNAPPING CHARGES.

The Return provided by the State suggests that three separate “alternative theories”
supplied by NRS 310." The State argues that the litany of cases provide for in the Writ that deal
with incidental restraint are inapplicable.® The State provides not a single Nevada case to support

its theory that their interpretation of the statute overrides the long standing rule “that movement

| or restraint incidental to an underlying offense where restraint or movement is inherent, as a

general matter, will not expose the defendant to dual criminal liability.™ The dual criminal
liability at issue is criminal gespoﬁsibi'lity for the predicate offense, Sexual Conduct Between
Employees or Volunteefs of School or Pupil and the crime of Kidnapping in the First degree.
Implicit in this rule is that the movement mus;t be non—consen_sual. In this case all movement was
consensual, Tmplicit in this nﬂe is the movement significantly adds to the NRS 310 trivializes the
serious nature and consequence of a conviction of Kidnapping in the First Degree. |
The State argues that M.T. was a minor and pursuant to NRS 200.350 she could not
consent o any movement, Specifically, the State argues, “a minor cannot legally consent to
become a victim of unlawful service or to have unlawful act perpefrated on her. Therefore, it
doesn’t matter that M.T. was a willing participant thrdughout the course of Defendant’s
rhiscénduct. Due to her age, alone, she cannot consent to this type of conduct.” The type of
Condudt_at issue is not considered a “Crime Against the Person.” Those crimes are codified in

NRS 200. Rather, the conduct at issue is consensual sex between a seventeen year old that is

capable of consenting to sex with a man of any age.

! Return at p.9.
* Return at pp. 9-10.

* Mendoza v. State, 122 Nev, 267, 275 130 P.3d: 176, 131 (2006)
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The State argues that M.T.’s parents must give consent in this circumstance for their
daughter to have sex she can otherwise legally consent to because that sex with was a teacher.
According to their theory, if she cannot consent to sex with a teacher, even if she 18 seventeen,
then Kidnapping in the First Degree is automatically implicated no matter how inconsequential
or slight the movement might be to have sex. -

While the conduct at issue may satisfy the elements of Sexual Conduct Between
Employees or Volunteers of School or Pupil, the State gives no legal precedent that these
offenses overlap with the elements of a Class A First Degree Kidnapping charge to the point
where they are essentially coextensive. The State divides NRS 200.310(1), for purposes of their
separate theory argument, by highlighting certain portions of the statute to the exclusion of other
portions of the statute.® The manner in which the State arbitrarily segments the statute is
misleading because the incidental movement doctrine derived from Mendoza and its progeny are
connected to the highlighted portions of the State’s Return by the conjunctive qualifier “and.”
The pertinent portion as presented and highlighted in the State’s Return reads as follows:

1. A person who willfully seizes, confines, inveigles, entices, decoys,
abducts, conceals, kidnaps or carries away a person by any means
whatsoever with the intent to hold or detain, or who holds or detains, the
person for ransom, or reward, or for the purpose of committing sexual
assault, extortion or robbery upon or from the person, or for the purpose
of killing the person or inflicting substantial bodily harm upon the
person, or to exact from relatives, friends, or any other person any
money or valuable thing for the return or disposition of the kidnapped
person, and a person who leads, takes, entices, or carries away or
detains any minor with the intent to keep, imprison, or confine the
minor from his or her parents, guardians, or any other person having

Jawful custody of the minor, or with the intent to hold the minor to
unlawful service, or perpetrate upon the person of the minor any

* Return at p.10.
3 Return at p.9.
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‘unlawful act is guilty of kidnapping in the first degree whichis a
category A felony. - '

The use of the word “and” before the highlighted portion thet the State wishes this Court to
emphasize makes it clear that the incidental movement doctriﬁe outlined in Mendoza, and not
some undefined unsupported parental custody doctrine of a seventeen year old girl, is still the

appropriate test for determining probable cause in a First Degree Kidnapping Charge.

1. THE OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS CHARGES.

The State _cites Ranson to support their theory that the congensual physical contact between
M.T. and Petitioner in a classroom of Rancho High School constituted the offense of Open or
Gross Lewdness. The State wrote in their statement.of facts that, “M.T. testified that the
classroom door was closed and probably locked, and they kissed in the right corner of the room
so they would not be seen.” This testimony underscores the fact that the physical encounters
were committed in a “secret” as opposed to open manner as distinguished in Ranson and

supported by The Nevada Supreme Court’s supporting citation to Commonwealth v. Wardell.°

In Wardell, as relied upon in Ranson, it was essential that in order for the exposure to be
conside.:red' done “in an “open” fashion” ... the offender must intend that his acts be offensive to
ihe victim.” The acts of the conduct at issue were not offensive to M.T. and the State has not
proven offens;: to any other victim, accordingly, these counts cannot legally stand.

In Quinn, the Massachusetts Supreme Judicial Court catalogued the development of their
open and gross lewdness statute.” In Quinn, the court remphasized that Wardell held that to

sustain a charge of open and gross lewdness the Defendant must “intentionally, indecently, and

¢ Ranson v, State, 99 Nev. 766 (1983) Commonwealth v. Wardell, 128 Mass. 52 (1880)
7 Commonwealth v. Quinn, 439 Mass. 492 (2003) :
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offensively expose himself ... without necessity reasonable cxcuse, and in such a way as to

produce atarm.”®

Surely, M.T. was not alarmed by the exposure, To the contrary, she testificd that she

welcomed it. In the final sentence of the quote cited by the State from Ranson, it states, “we
therefore conclude that it was sufficient that Appellant committed the present lewd acts in an
“open” fashion, clearly intending that his acts be offensive to his victim.”® The acts in question

were secret not open and they were not intended to be offensive to the complainant. Accordingly,

probable cause was not presented to sustain these charges.

CONCLUSION
It is respectfully submitted that insufficient evidence was presented to sustain either the
Kidnapping in the First Degree charges or the Open and Groés Lewdness chafges. Accordingly,
those charges should be dismissed.
DATED this 15™ day of September, 2015.

/s/ Gary A. Modafferi, Esq.
By: '

Robert M, Draskovich, Esq. (6275}
Gary A. Modafferi, Esq. (12450)
Louis C. Schnelder Es*q (9683)
Attorneys for

DefendantfPet_ltioner Jason Lofthouse

¥ Ouinn, supra at 496,
? Return at p.12, citing Ranson, supra.
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ROBERT M. DRASKOVICH, ESQ. (6275)
TURCO & DRASKOVICH, LLP

815 S, Casino Center Boulevard

Las Vegas, NV 89101

Telephone: (702) 474-4222

Fax: (702)474-1320

GARY A. MODAFFERI, ESQ.

LAW OFFICES OF GARY A. MODAFFERI
815 8. Casino Center Boulevard

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

LOUIS C. SCHNEIDER, ESQ. (9683)
500 S. Seventh Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Telephone: (702)435-2121

Counsel for Defendant/Petitioner

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, STATE OF NEVADA

" THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
V8.

JASON LOFTHOUSE,

Petitioner/Defendant.

CASENO. C-15-307937-1
DEPT.NO. XX

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that on the 15" day of September, 2015, I served a true

copy of TRAVERSE upon the following:

Stacey Kollins, Esq.
Chief Deputy District Attorney
stacy kollins@clarkcountyda.com

Barbara Schifalacqua
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Barbara.schifalacqua@clarkcountyda.com

/s/ Erika W. Magana

Erika W. Magana, An Employee of
Turco & Draskovich, LLP
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Electronically Filed
MACE J. YAMPOLSKY, LTD. 2 :
TASON R. MARGOLIS, ESQ. (NV Bar No. 012439) o 0920015 HATITAM.
625 E/_outh Sixth Street 1 : o . .
Las Vegas, Nevada 8910 ' o R - '
Tel: (702) 385-9777 . @En 'i‘ég‘“‘"‘" |
Attomeys for Defenda, CLERKOF THE COURT
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA )
)
~ Plaintiff, ) Case No. C-15-307937-1
o } Dept. No. XX
V8. )
| )
JASON LOFTHOUSE, )
: )
Defendant. )
' )
_. MOTION TO ASSOCIATE COUNSEL
T GONES NO W the Defendant Jason Lofthouse, by and firough his counsel, Jason R. Margolis, |
Esq., of Mace J. Yampolsky, Ltd., and hereby moves the Court for an Order permitting Dmitry Y.

MOTN
GUROVICH, BERK & ASSOCIATES, APC

DMITRY Y. GUROVICH, ESQ. (CA Bar No. 181427)
15250 Ventura Boulevard, Suite 1220 '
Sherman Qaks, California 91403

Tel: (310)937-2066 -

Gurovich, Esq., to practice in Nevada pursuant o Nevada Supreme Court Rule 42.

The grounds for Defendant’s Motion are set forth in the attached Memorandum of Points and

Authorities.

DATED this 29" day of September, 2015. _
| MACE J. YAMPOLSKY, LTD.

/s/ Jason R. Margolis, Bsq.
TASON R. MARGOLIS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 012439
625 South Sixth Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorney for Defendant

1
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- Cahforma and the State Bar of Nevada Statement (Exhlbtt “CM.

NOTICE OF MOTION

TO: THE STATE OF NEVADA; Plaintiff and
TO: OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY, Counsel for Plaintif

 PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Defendant will bring the forerromg Motlon to Associate: Counsel
15 gy of October , 2015 at the hour of 9:00am

on for hearing on' the

.m., in Department XX of the above-entitled Court.”

DATED this 29“‘ day of Septernber 2015.
MACE J. YAMPOLSKY, LTD.

/s/ Jason R. Margolis. Esq.
TASON R. MARGOLIS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 012439

- 625 South Sixth Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorney for Defendant

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

DPMAITRY Y. GUROVICH. ESQ. SHOULD BE ADMITTED TO PRACTIC‘E IN
THIS CASE

Defendant Jason Lofthouse hereby moves the C_ourt for an Order permitting Dmitry Y. Gurovich,

1.

Esq., to practice in Nevada pursuant to SCR 42. This Motion is supported by the attached Verified

I Applicafion for Association of Counsel (Exhibit “A™), the Certlﬂcate of Good Standing from the State of |

1L CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing, it is respectfully requested that this Court enter an Order permitting |

Dmitry Y. Gurovich, Esq., to practice in Nevada pursuant t0 SCR 42.

DATED this 29" day of September, 2015,
MACE L YAMPOLSKY, LTD.

/s/ Jason R. Margolis, Fsq.
TASON R. MARGOLIS, ESQ. -
Nevada Bar No. 012439
625 South Sixth Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorney for Defendant

2
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1 by electronic service in accordance with Administrative Order 142,10 all interested parties, through the

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
The undersigned, an employee of MACEJ, YAMPOLSKY, LTD.; hereby certifies that on the 29“‘

day of September, 2015, she caused a copy of the foregoing MOTION TO ASSOCIATE COUNSEL,

Court’s Odyssey E-File & Serve system addressed to: . '

Stacy Kolling

Deputy District Attomey

200 Lewis Avenue, 3% Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

stacy kollins@clarkcountyda.com

/s/ Theresa I. Muzgay.
An Employee of Mace. J. Yampolsky, Ltd.

182




- Exhibit “4”

" Exhibit “A”

183




' Jﬂs’dn. Mﬁtmre

VAPP

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Reple of Hhe Shie of Movada ; |

Plaintiff,
Case No. C-15-307937-1

Vs Dept, No, 20

Defendant,

. N N NP

VERIFIED APPLICATION FOR ASSOCIATION
OF COUNSEL UNDER NEVADA SUPREME COURT RULE 42

Dmifry Yuzef Gurovich , Petitioner, respectfully represents:
First Middle Name. Last
1. Petitioner resides at 1713 San Vito Lane
' ' Street Address
Camarillo B Ventwra , CA 93012
City '  County State Zip Code

(818  )205-1555

CUTEIBPHOME.. . o o Cil e e e e e e e e s

2. Petitioner is an attorney at law and a member of the law firm of: Gurovich, Berk & Associates

with offices at 15250 Ventura Blyd.. Suite 1220
Street Address
Sherman Oaks , Los Angeles . CA 91403
City - County _ State Zip Code
(818  )205-1555 ., ___gba law(@yahoo.com
Telephone Email
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3. Petitioner has been retained personally or as a member of the above named law firm by

Jason Lofthouse toprovide legal representation in

connection with the above-entitled matter now pending before the above referenced court.

4. Since December of 1995, petitioner has been, and presently is, a member of good

standing .of the bar of the highest court of the State of _California ' where
petitioner 1'égularly practices law. |

5. Petitioner was admitted to practice before the foliowing United States District Courts, United
States Circuit Courts of Appeal, the Supreme Court of the_United States, ranc!/or courts of ather states

. on the dates indicated for each, and is presently a member in good standing of the bars of said Courts:

DATE ADMITTED

Central District of California 12/1985
State of California, , 12/1995

= =G, Is-Petitioner-currently suspended or disbarred in-any court?You must answer y€5-05-00, FEyes, -« -or e o]

give particulars; e.g,, court, jurisdiction, date: No -

7. Is Petitioner currently subject to any disciplinary proceedingsby any organization with authority

at law? You must answer yes or no. If yes, give particulars, e.g. court, discipline authority, date,

status: No
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8. Has Petitioner ever received public discipline including, but not limited to, suspension or

disbarment, by any organization with anthority to discipline atiorneys at law? You must answer yes

or no. If yes, give particulars, e.g. court, discipline authority, dete, status: No

9. Has Petitioner ever had any certificate or privilege to appear and practice before any regulatory

administrative body suspended or revoked? You must answer yes or no. If'yes, give particulars, e.g,

date, administrative body, date of suspension or reinstatement: No

10. Has Petitioner, either by resignation, withdrawal, or otherwise, ever terminated or attempted to

terminate Petitioner’s office as an attorney in order to avoid administrative, disciplinary, disbarment,

or suspensicn proceedings? You must answer yes or no. If yes, give particulars: No

11 Petitioner has filed the following application(s) to appear es counsel under Nevada Suprere

.Court Rule 42 during the past three (3) years in the following mafters, if none, indicate so: (do not

include Federal Pro Hacs)
Title of Court Was Application

Dateof . | Administrative Body Granted or
Application Cause or Arbitrator _ Denied?
None

(If necessary, please attach a statement of additional applications)
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12. Nevada Counsel of Record for Petition in this matter is:

(must be the same ag the signature on the NevaddCounsel consent page)

Jason _ R Margplis ' 12439 ,
Pirst Name Middle Name " Last Name NV Bar#

who has offices at Mace J. Yampolsky Limited

Firm Name/Company

625 8, Sixth  Street L, Las Vegas : ,___ Clark

Street Address : City County

89101 (702} 3B5-9777
Zip Code Phone Number

13. The following accurately represents the names and addresses of each party in this matter,

WHETHER OR NOT REPRESENTED BY COUNSEL, and the names and addresses of each

counsel of record who appeared for said parties: (You may attach as an Exhibit if necessary,)

NAME MAILING ADDRESSS

Office of District Attomey 200 Lewis Ave., Las Vegas NV §9101

Robert M. Draskovich, Esq (previous Defense Counsel) 815 S. Casino_ Center Blvd. Las Vegas Gary

A, Modafferi, Esg (Previcus Defense Counsel)

14. ?étitioner agrees t.(‘) comply with the provisions of Nevada Supreme Court Rule 42(3) and (13)
and Petitioner consents to the jurisdiction of the courts and &iéciplineuy boards of the State of
Nevada in accordance with provisions as set forth in SCR. 42(3) and (13). Petitioner respec’tﬁllly.
requests that Petitioner be admitted to practice in the above-entitled court FOR THE PURPOSES OF
THIS MATTER ONLY. |

15, Petitioner has disclosed in writing to the client that the applicant is not admitted to practice in

this jurisdiction and that the client has consented to such representation,

815 S. Casino Center Blvd. Las Vegas -

~_ Louis C. Schneider, Esq, (Previous Defense Counsel) 500 S, Seventh Street, Las Vegas 82101
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I, Dmitry Yuzef Gurovich, do hereby swear/affirm under penalty of pexjury that the assertions of this

application and lthe following statements are true:
1) That I am the Petitioner in the above entitled matter.
2)  That I have read Supreme Court Rui.e (SCR) 42 and meet all reciuirements contained
therein, including, without limitation, the 1'equir§ments set forth in SCR 42(2), as follows:
(A) Iam notamember of the State Bar of Nevads; |
B I am not a resident of the State of Nevada,
(C) Tam notregularly employed as allawyer in the State of Nevada,
(D) I'am not engaged in substantial business, profes.sional, or other activities in the
State of Nevada,
(E) [am amemberin good standing and eligibie to practice before the bar of any
jurisdiction of the United States; and
(F) Ihave associated a lawyer who is an active member in good standing of the State

Bar of Nevada as counsel of record in this action or proceeding.

irue of my own knowledge except as to those matters therein stated on information and

bclief, and as to the matter I believe them to be true.
Thatl furthér certify that I am subject to the jurisdiction of the Courts and disciplinary boards of
this state with respect to the law of this state governing the condust of attorneys to the same extent as
a member of the State Bar of Nevada; that understand and shall comply with the standards of

professional conduct required by members of the State Bar of Nevada; and that I am subject to the

disciplinary jurisdiction to the State Bar of Nevada with respect to any of my actions occurring in the

course of such appearance.

© - ~-2)--That Fhave-read the foregeing applieation and know-the contents thereof;-that the same is... ..
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CASE NO.

DEPTNO. __20

IN THE 8TH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF
THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CLARK

osple of Fhe o of Hsode

Plainfe ) |
Vs. ) VERIFIED APPLICATION FOR
J ) ASSOCIATION OF COUNSEL UNDER
w$on Lothouse ) NEVADA SUPREME COURT RULE 42
Dedendsnt )
Dmitry Yuzef Gurovich , Petitioner, respectfully represents:

First Middle Name Last

1. Petitioner resides at ___ 1713 San Vito Lane

Street Address
Camarillo , _Veniura ‘ , ' California
City - Couity State
93012 {818 )205-1555 _
- = Zip-Code - - e oo Telephone ——-=-com oo e

2. Petitioner is an attorney at law and a member of the law firm of

GUROVICH. BERK & ASSOCIATES, APC

with offices at 15250 Ventura Blvd.. Suite 1220

Strest Address
Sherman Oaks ' , Los Angeles , __CA
City ' County _ - State
91403 ,(__8I8) 205-1555 _ pba law@yahoogom
Zip Telephone Email
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DATED this_25# tay of _ Segpters bewe 20 (S

..g"ﬂé/ T -
=" Peiltioner/ATfiant

If this signature is not in blue ink, you have a
copy.

STATE OF M )

i 85
COUNTY owﬁ%&ﬁi@ |

Subscribed and sworn to before me

this /\5 day of é JZQW , 20 / 5”

/Mﬁ@‘z“

N{otary Pblic

TARA L. CH

COMM. #203351

Notary Public - California
Los Am es Goun
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CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT ' CIVIL CODE § 1189

A notary pubfic or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the Idertity of the individual who signed the
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, aceuracy, or validity of that document.

State of Califorpta

County of V j )
On &99 5 - %j—before mem //%MV(’/?Z WM/@L

Date 'ﬂ 9) ere Insert Name and fitte of th%mcsr
personally appeared & m, Zf/‘i/ AL

/(Naﬂﬁ(s) of Signerfs)

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in
his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the parson(s},
or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

i certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws
of the State of Californiz that the foregoing paragraph
Is true and correct.

© WITNESS my hand and official sgal.

TARA L Cﬂmﬂ'
COMM #2083521 x
Notary- Puhll}c. ghm;u -

1] -
Los ATae et 23, 2018

Place Notary Seal Above

: OPTIONAL
ion is optional, completing this information can deter alteration of the document or

fratrelulent reattachment of this form to an unintended document,

Description of Attached Do
Title or Type of Document:
Number of Pages: Signer(s)
Gapacity(ies) Claimed by Signer(s)

Signer's Name:
[1 Corporate Officer — Title(s):

Though this se

Document Date:
r Than Named Above:

igner's Name:
rate Officer — Title(s):

1 Partner -~ [ Limited [ General ] Parther Limited O General

O individual - [ Attorney in Fact [ Individual torney in Fact

O Trustee O Guardian or Conservator [ Trustee OG ian or Conservator
0 Other: ' O Gther:

Signer Is Hepresentlng : Signer s Representing:

R

201 4 Na%lona[ Notary Association * WWWw. NaﬂonaINotary org - 1-800-US NOTARY (1 -800-876- 6827) [temn #5907
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1 Oasen R Yeeeis

Prinlt NV Counsel‘fmmc

designation of Petitioner to associate in this cause pursuant to SCR 42.

DATED this £ 8tk day of_Stpksher 99 15

STATE OF _ N L a fi )
COUNTY OF U Ly f{ )

Subscribed and sworn to before me

day of, :S/Jﬂfhm bf/ 20_/

hereby consent as Nevada Counsel of Record to the

/\Qmo\ e )

Counsel of Record
If thls signature is not in blue ink, you have a

copy.

Sl BB RIS AR B AN AR AN A A A AR AR

2 THERESA J. MUZGAY

-~

)

AR Notary Publc State of Nevada
7 No. 93-2196-1
My Appt. Exp. Jan. 18, 2017

A A e A B A e as e a

DTSR
ar
YT
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THE STATE BAR . |
OF CALIFORNIA MEMBER RECORDS & COMPLIANCE

180 HOWARD STREET, SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 54105-1617 : ‘TELEPHONE: 888-800-3400

CERTIFICATE OF STANDING

September 17, 2015

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

This is to certify that according fo the records of the State Bar, DMITRY -
YUZEF GUROVICH, #181427 was admitted to the practice of law in this
state by the Supreme Court of California on December 12, 1995; and has
been since that date, and is at date hereof, an ACTIVE member of the State
Bar of California; that the public record states that information has been
provided pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 6086.1(c); and
that no recommendation for discipline for professional or other misconduct

“has ever been made by the Board of Trustees or a Dlscaphnary Board to the

Supreme Court of the State of Cahforma

THE STATE BAR OF CALIFORNIA

MW

Louise Turner
Custodlan of Membership Records
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Case No. (C-15-307937-1
Dept. No. 20

People of
the State of Nevada
Vs,

Jason Lofthouse

/

10
11
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17
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'Eppe&fdﬁc@%”by"aﬁy_ﬁéféﬁﬁ”bf"fif

STATE BAR OF NEVADA STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SUPREME COURT RULE
42(3) (b)

THE STATE BAR OF NEVADA, in response to the application of
Petitioner, submits the following statement pursuant to SCR42(3):

SCR4Z (6)Discretion. The granting or denial of a motion to associate
counsel pursuant to this rule by the court is discretionary. The
court, arbitrator, mediator, or administrative or governmental

hearing officer may revoke the authority of the rerson permitted to

appear under this rule. Absent special circumstances, repeated
shall be cause for denial of the motion to associate such person.

(a) Limitation. It shall be presumed, absent special
. Circumstances, and only upon showing of good cause, that
more than 5 appearances by any attorney granted under
this rule in a 3-year period is excessive use of this

rule.
(b) Burden on applicant. The applicant shall have the

burden to establish special circumstances and good cause
for an appearance in excess of the limitation set forth
in subsection 6(a) of this rule. The applicant shall set
forth the special circumstances and good cause in an

affidavit-attached to the original verified application.

1. DATE OF APPLICATION: September 28, 2015

2. APPLYING ATTORNEY: Dmitry Yuzef Gurovich, Esqg.

m’ﬁf’éﬁfbfﬁé?é"bﬁfﬁﬁaﬁt“fd”ﬁhi§'fﬁlé'_
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3. FTRM NAME AND ADDRESS: Gurovich, Berk & Associates, 15250
Ventura Blvd., Suite 1220, Sherman 0Oaks, CA 891403

4. NEVADA COUNSEL OF RECORD: Jason R, Margolis, Esg., Mace J.
Yampolsky, Ltd., 625 S. Sixth St., Las Vegas, NV 89101

5. There is no record of previous applications for appearance by
petitioner within the past three (3) years.

DATED this September 28, 2015

C‘\‘?ax,wj y /“( \\gﬁ ﬂ//ﬂ 4

TLéhrie K. Scheffléer’
Member Services Admin.
Pro Hac Vice Processor
STATE BAR OF NEVADA
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ORIGINAL ~ SIEiEse;snesson

SUBT -

GUROVICH, BERK & ASSOCIATES, APC ' 0C: 01 2015

DMITRY Y. GUROVICH, ESQ. (CA Bar No. 181427) | |

15250 Ventura Boulevard, Suite 1220 B 4/ : N

Sherman Qaks, California 91403 L'ND

Tek (310)d937—2066 ' iNDA SKINNER, DEPUTY
-an - . . .

MACE J. YAMPOLSKY, LTD.

JASON R. MARGOLIS, ESQ. (NV Bar No, 012439)
625 South Sixth Street

Las Vegas, Nevada. 89101

Tel: (702) 385-9777

Attorneys for Defendant,

Jason Lofthouse

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA )
)
Plaintiff, ) CaseNo.  C-15-307937-1
) Dept. No. XX
Vs, )
o )
JASON LOFTHOUSE, )
| _ )
Defendant. )
) .
SUBSTITUTION OF ATTORNEY

The undersigned, Jason Lofthouse, Defendant in the above-entitled action, hereby substitutes and

appoints Dmitry Y. Gurovich, Esq., as attorney of record, in place and stead of Robert Draskovich, Esq.

DATED this |  day of October, 2013,

0k
JAS THOUSE

C¢-16-307837-1
SUBT
Suhsbiution u_l Aitarney

L P

I
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CONSENT TO SUBSTITUTION OF ATTORNEYS

The undersigned Robert M. Draskovich, Esq., hereby consents to the above-entitled substitution.

DATED this [ day of October, 2015.
TURKO

e

RASKOVICH, ESQ.
o. 006275

815 South Casino Center Boulevard
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

ACCEPTANCE OF SUBSTITUTION OF ATTORNEYS

Dmitry Y. Gurovich, Esq., hereby accepts the above Substitution of Attorneys in the place and

stead of Robert M. Draskovich, Esq. '

DATED this [ day of October, 2015.

GUROVICH, BERK & ASSOCIATES, APC &
MACE J. YAMPOLSKY, LTD

DMITRY Y. GUROVICH, ESQ.
California Bar No. 181427
15250 Ventura Boulevard, Suite 1220
Sherman Cllaks, California 91403

-a[l -
JASON R. MARGOLIS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 012439
625 South Sixth Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
- Attorneys for Defendant

RECEIPT OF COPY ,
RECEIPT OF COPY of the foregoing SUBSTITUTION OF ATTORNEY 15 hereby acknowledged

this day of October, 2015,
QFFICE OF THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY

DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorney for Plaintiff
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ORIGINAL FILED IN OPEN COURT

STEVEN D, GRIERSON
ORDR CLERK OF THE COURT

GUROVICH, BERK & ASSOCIATES, APC | 709 200
DMITRY Y. GUROVICH, ESQ. (CA Bar No. 181427) 9

15250 Ventura Boulevard, "Suite 1220 _
Sherman Oaks, California 91403 _ B@, Aas W .
Tel: 3 1 fﬁ d9_37 -2066 | LINDA SKINNER, DEPUTY
MACE J. YAMPOLSKY, LTD.

-

JASON R. MARGOLIS, ESQ. (NV Bar No. 012439)
625 South Sixth Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Tel: (702) 385-9777
Attorneys for Defendant,
Jason Lofthouse
"DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA ;

Plaintiff, ) CaseNo.  C-15-307937-1

: )  Dept.No. XX

vs. g - 0155070371
JASON LOFTHOUSE, g Ed“;:ra ggmlmng {o Practice

Pt | AR

) . !
ORDER ADMITTING TO PRACTICE
Dmitry Y. Gurovich, Esq., having filed his Motion to Associate Coungel under Nevada Supreme

Court Rule 42, together with a Verified Application for Association of Counsel, a Certificate of Good
Standing for the State of California, and the State Bar of Nevada Statement; said application having been

noticed, no objections having been made, and the Court being fulty apprised in the premises, and good

cause appearing, it is hereby
il
1
i
i
{iif
7
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|

ORDERED, that said application is hereby granted, and Dmitry Y. Gurovich, Esq., is hereby

admitted to practice in the above-entitled Court for the purposes of the _above-éntitled matter only.

DATED this __{ _ day of October, 2015.

DISTRICT GE

Respectfully submitted:
MACE I. YAMPOLSKY, LTD.

o —
JASONR. MARGOLIS, ESQ.

evada Bar No. 012439
625 South Sixth Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
~ Attorney for Defendant
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Electronically Filed .
12/29/2015 03:42:03 PM

MOT | i b s

STEVEN B. WOLESON ;

Clark County District Attorney CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada Bar #001565

STACEY KOLLINS

Chief Deputy District Attorney

Nevada Bar #00531

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212

(702) 671-2500 :

Attorney for Plaintift
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

vs- | | CASENO:  C-15-307937-1

JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE, DEPTNO: XX
#1019775

Defendant,

NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION TO PRECLUDE DEFENSE
PRESENTATION OF JURY NULLIFICATION ARGUMENTS

DATE OF HEARING: JANUARY 12 2016
TIME OF HEARING: 8:30 AM |

COMES-NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County

Il District Attorney, through STACEY KOLLINS, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and files this

Notice of Motion and Motion to Preclude Defense Presenting Jury Nullification Arguments.
This Motion is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the

attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if

deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.

"

I

/!
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NOTICE OF HEARING
YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned

will bring the foregoing motion on for setting before the above entitled Court, in Department

XX thereof, on _Tuesday the _12 _ dayof JANUARY, 2016, at the hour

of 8:30 o'clock AM; or as soon thereafter as counsel may be heard.
DATED this 29th day of December, 2015.

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY /s/ STACEY KOLLINS
STACEY KOLLINS
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #00331

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
STATEMENT OF FACTS

At the inception of this case, Defense counsel suggested that because M.T. was of age |

to consent to sex, there should be no criminal responsibility on Defendant’s behalf. It is the

.' sex between Teacher and Student that is prohibited by statute. Additionally, much was made
of the fact that NRS 201.540, Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers of
School and Pupil, is categorized by lthe legislature as a Crime Against Publid Decency as
@pposed to Crimes Against Persons. The State files this motion proactively and as a.-
precaution such thﬁ.t nullification be deemed an impermissible argument at trial. |

| ARGUMENT |
_ Tt is incontrovertible that a jury, or even a single juror, has the poWer to “acquit ‘in the

teeth of both law and facts.”” Merced V. McGrath, 426 F.3d 1076, 1079 (9th Cir. 2005) |
(quoting Horning v. District of Columbia, 254 U.S. 135,138, 41 S.Ct. 53, 65 L.Ed. 185 (1920).
Courts have recognized that although the jury has the power of nullification, they do not have

the right to exercise that power. See Standefer v. United States, 447 U.S. 10, 22-23, 100 S.Ct.

1999, 64 L.Ed.2d 689 (1980), cited in, Merced v. McGrath,' 426 F.3d at 1079. Rather, “it is

2
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the duty of juries in criminal cases to take the law from the court, and apply that law to the
facts as they find them to be from the evidence.” Sparf v. United States, 156 U.S. 51, 102, 15
S.Ct. 273, 39 L.Ed. 343 (1895); United States . Trujillo, 714 F.2d 102, 105-06 (11th
Cir.1983) (“While a jury does have the power to bring a verdict ... its duty is to apply the law
as interpreted and instructed by the court.”) (internal citations omitted). The oath of the juror |
as contained in séction 16.070 of the Nevada Revised Statutes requires the juror to swear or
affirm that he will well and truly try the case now pending before this court and a true verdict
render according to the evidence given.” That is the juror’s duty to follow the law. He may

have the power to nullify a proper verdict, but when he does so he violates his oath as a juror,
The Second Circuit stated:

Inasmuch as no juror has a right to engage in nullification-and, on

the contrary, it is a violation of a juror's sworn duéy to follow the

law as instructed by the court-trial courts have the duty to forestall

or prevent such conduct, whether by firm instruction or

admonition or, where it does not interfere with guaranteed rights

or the need to protect the secrecy of jury deliberations, ... by
dismissal of an offending juror from the venire or the jury.

United States v. Thomas, 116 F.3a 606, 616 (2d Cir.1997)

It is for this very reason that courts do not give instructions to juries on their power of
nullification. See e.g., Merced v. McGrath, 426 F.3d at 10779. The Ninth Circuit stated: “{Wle
note that a mymber of courts have considered whether petit jufies should be informed of their
nullification power. The courts have uniformly rejected the- idea.” United States v. Navarro-
Vargas, 408 F.3d 1184, 1199 (ch Cir. 2005) (en banc); see also, United States v. Powell, 955 -
F.2d 1206, 1213 (9th Cir.1992); United Sta_tes v. Dougherty, 473 F2d 1113, 1137
(D.C.Cir.1972) (“An explicit instruction to a jury conveys an implied approval that runs the
risk of degrading the legal structure requisite for true freedom, for an ordered liberty that
protects against anarchy as well as tyranny™); United States v, Boardman, 419 F.2d 110, 116
(1st Cir; 1 969} (“Today jurors may have the power t0 ignore the law, but their duty is to apply

the law as interpreted by the court, and they should be so instructed.”); see also, People v.

WAL 1 SANOSIN SFND939-NOTM-LOFTHOUSE JASON_JTURY_NUL)-00LDOCK
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Pai‘tner, 180 Cal.App.3d 178, 186, 225 Cal.Rptr. 502 (1986) (“We agree that the jury should
not be instructed on so-called jury nullification. 1.”)'.

Moreover, the Nevada Sﬁpreme Court has indicated that nullification arguments to a
ury are impermissible. Lioce v. Cohen, 124 Nev. 1, 174 P.3d 970 (2008). The Ninth Circuit,
when faced with arguments of jury nullification indicated that the trial court may properly
instruct the jury to disregard the arguments of counsel and also indicated that “[n]ot only
should a judge interfere with an attorney's closing argument when it is ‘legélly wrong,’ buthe |
should also limit, for example, attorneys' remarks outside the record or unduly inflammatory.”
United States v, Blixt, 548 F.3d 882, 890 (9th Cir. 2008) (quoting United States v. Sturgis, 578
F.2d 1296, 1300 (Sth Cir.1978)).

CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated above the State moves this Honorable Court to grant its Motion

o preclude the defendant from making arguments to the jury that amount to jury nullification.

DATED this 29th day of December, 2015.

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY /s/ STACEY KOLLINS
- STACEY KOLLINS
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #00531

! Jury nuilification has heen defined as,

[a] jury's knowing and deliberate rejection of the evidence or refusal to apply the law either because the jury wants
~ to send a message about some social issue that is larger than the case itself or be-canse the result dictated by law is

contrary to the jury's sense of justice, morality, or fairness.

Black's Law Dictionary 875 (8th ed.2004).
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

1, hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing, was made this 29th day of

-Deccmi)er, 2015, to:

hie/SVU

FJASON MARGOLIS, ESQ.
Email: jason@macelaw.com

DMITRY GUROVICH, ESQ.
Email:gba_law@yahoo.com

/sl HOWARD CONRAD

Secretary for the District Attorney's Office
Special Victims Unit '

WA201 SPND939\ SF0539-NOTM-(LOFTHGUSE_JASON_JURY_NUL)-C01.DOCK
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Electronically Filed
02/02/2016 10:52:03 AM

DMITRY Y. GUROVICH, SBN 181427 - .. b s

GUROVICH, BERK & ASSOCIATES, APC

15250 Ventura Blvd., Suite 1220 CLERK OF THE COURT
Sherman Oaks, CA 91403 .
Telephone: g818) 205-1555
Facsimile: (818) 205-1559

Email: gba_law @yahoo.com
Appearmg Pro Hac Vice:

Jason Margolis, Bar #12439
Local Counsel

Attorneys for Defendant
Jason Lofthouse

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, CASE NO. C-15-307937-1
Plaintiff, | DEFENDANT’S OPPOSITION TO
MOTION TO PRECLUDE DEFENSE
V. PRESENTATION OF JURY
NULLIFICATION ARGUMENTS
JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE,
Defendant.
A motion such as this is both premature and unnecessary. At no timé, did this

defense counsel indicate or imply that he would seek to influence the jury to ignore the
laws of the State of Nevada. We, as legal professionals, understand that the jury has the
power to nullify. We also understand that instructing the jury to do so should not be
encouraged as it undermines our entire legal system. The jury should follow the law as
instructed by ﬂl@ judge. “While we recognize that a jury may render a verdict .at odds
with the evidence or the law, neither the court nor counsel should encourage jurors to
violate their oath.” US vs. Trujillo, 715 F.2d 102.

In every single trial, a judge instructs the jury as to the law. He or she further
instructs the jury to follow the law regardless of how they feel about it. This instruction

is intended to make clear to the jury that they must not ignore the law and make their

1

DEFENDANT'S QFPOSITION TO MOTION TO PRECLUDE
DEFENSE PRESENTATION OF JURY NULLIFICATION
ARGUMENTS
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decision based on some other standard. Furthermore, the judge has control of the
courtroom. He or she is perfectly capable of controlling a defense attorney or a
prosecutor that is making improper arguments. This motion in limine is as necessary as a

motion to forbid the introduction of hearsay evidence.

This motion should be denied because it is wasteful and unnecessary.

Dated: February 1, 2016 /s/ DMITRY Y. GUROVICH
: DMITRY Y. GUROVICH
Counse! for Defendant

DEFENDANT'S GPPOSITION TO MOTION TO PRECLUDE
DEFENSE PRESENTATION OF JURY NULLIFICATION
ARGUMENTS
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CERTIFICATE QF SERVICE

The undersigned, an employee of MACE J. YAMPOLSKY, LTD., hereby certifies that on the

24 day of February, 2016, she caused a copy of the foregoing DEFENDANT’S OPPOSITION TO

MOTION TO PRECLUDE DEFENSE PRESENTATION OF JURY NULLIFICATION

ARGUMENTS, by electronic service in accordance with Administrative Order 14.2, to all interested

parties, through the Court’s Odyssey E-File & Serve system addressed to:

Stacy Kollins

Deputy District Attorney

200 Lewis Avenue, 3* Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 83155
stacy.kollins @clarkcountyda.com

DEFENDANT'S QPPOSITION TO MOTION TO PRECLUDE
DEFENSE PRESENTATION OF JURY NULLIFICATION
ARGUMENTS

/s Theresa J. Mu_zgav

An Employee of Mace. I. Yampolsky, Ltd.
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Electronically Filed
12/29/2015 04:19:26 PM

NWEW . | | Cﬂ@;« M&e‘“"*
STEVEN B. WOLFSON -
CLERK OF THE COURT

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

'STACEY KOLLINS

Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005391

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212

(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff
' DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,

Vs | CASENO: - C-15-307937-1
JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE, : |
#7019775 DEFTNO: XX

| Defendant.

NOTICE OF WITNESSES AND/OR EXPERT WITNESSES
[NRS 174.234] ‘

TO: JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE, Defendant; and

TO: JASON MARGOLIS, ESQ. and DMITRY GUROVICH, ESQ.,
Counsels of Record:

YOU, AND FACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the STATE OF

NEVADA intends to call the following witnesses and/or expert witnesses in its case in chief:

ABBOTT; CCSDPD#199
ALEMAN, MARIA; 2237 DEMETRIUS AVE, LVN 89101
' BROWNLEE, BELISA; 3612 SHAWN REYNOLDS CT #203, LVN 89129
" BUTLER, VERNON; CANNERY HOTEL/CASINO, NLV |
'CASTILLO, ZUREMA; 6212 CRATERS EDGE ST, NLV 89031
COR or Designee; CCDC | o |
COR or Designee; CCSD/RANCHO HIGH SCHOOL

WAZ01SFANOOV 0\ SFN0939-NWEW-(LOFTHOUSE_JASON}-001. DOCX
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing, was made this 29th day of

December, 2015, to:

hjc/SVU

JASON MARGOLIS, ESQ.
Email; jason@macelaw.com

DMITRY GUROVICH, ESQ.
Email:gba_law@ yahoo.com

/s HOWARD CONRAD
Secretary for the District Attorney's Offlce

- Special Victims Unit

3
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STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

STACEY KOLLINS

Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005391 .

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

CLERK OF THE COURT

Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
CASENO:  (-15-307937-1
Plaintiff, - |
vs. DEPTNO: XX

JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE, -
oy SECOND AMENDED

Defendant. INFORMATION

STATE OF NEVADA g
88,
COUNTY OF CLARK )

STEVEN B. WOLFSON, District Attorney within and for the County of Clark, State
of Nevada, in the name and'by the authority of the State of Nevada, informs the Court:

That JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE, the Defendant above named, having
committed the crimes of SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VYOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL (Category C Felony - NRS 201.540 - NOC
51067) and FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING (Category A Felony - NRS 200.310, 200.320

- NOC 50053) in the manner following: _
| That the said Defendant, on or between May 6, 2015 and May 28, 2015, at and within

the County of Clark, State of Nevada, contrary to the form, force and effect of statutes in such
cas.es made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada,

I | '

i’
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COUNT'1 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did, on or between May 6, 2015 and May 19, 2015, then and there, Wintu, unlawfully
and feloniously, while employed or volunteering or having bcen previously employed or
volunteering in a position of authority ata public or private school, to-wit: a teacher, at Rancho
High School, Clark County, Nevada, and who is over21 years bf age, engage in fellatio, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
COUNT 2- FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING |

did, on or about May 20, 2015, willfully, unlawfully and feloniously, lead, take, entice, |
carry away or kidnap M.T., a minor, with the intent to keep, imprison, or confine said M.T,,
from her parents, gua_rdiahs, or other person or persons having lawful custody of M.T., or with
the intent to hold M.T. to unlawful service, or to perpetrate upon the person of M.T. any |
unlawful act, to-wit: by Defendant engaging in sexual acts with the said M.'T which constitute
Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers of School and Pupil, to-wit: sexual
intercourse and/or fellatio and/or curﬁilingus.
COUNT 3 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

VO_LUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about MayIZO, 2015, then and there, willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teacher, at Rancho High School,

Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in cunnilingus, with M.T.,

who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at

which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering,

COUNT 4 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,

while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a

2
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position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of ﬁge,'engage in fellatio, with M.T., who
was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at which
Defendant was 6r previously had been employed or volhntccring.
COUNT 5 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously embloyed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexval intercourse, with
M.T, wh.o was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
COUNT 6 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
| VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOI., AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or -attending the

school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering,

COUNT 7 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL _

did, on or between May 21, 2015 and May 27, 2015, then and there willfully,
unlawfully, and‘feloniously, while employed or volunteering or having been previously
employed or volunteering in a position of authority at a public or private séhool, to-wit: . a
teach, at Rancho High School, , Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage
in feilatio, with M. T, who was 16 or 17 years of ége at the time, and who was enrolled in or

attending the school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteerihg.

3
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COUNT 8 - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING

" did, on or about May 28, 2015, willfully, unlawfully and feloniously, lead, take, entice,
carry away or kidnap M.T., a minor, with the intent to keep, imprison, or confine said M.T,,
from her parents, guardians, or other person or persons having fawful custody of M.T., or with
the intent to hold M.T. to unlawful service, or to perpetrate upon the person of M.T. any
unlawful act, to-wit: by Defendant engaging in sexual acts with the said M.T which constitute
Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers of School and Pupil, to-wit: sexual
intercourse and/or fellatio and/or cunnilingus. |
COUNT 9- SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL |
did, on or about May 28, 2015, then and there willfully, unla.wfﬁlly, and feloniouély;

while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of aufhon'ty at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, 'engagc in fellatio, with M.T., who
was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at which
Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
COUNT 10 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 28, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,

while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a

position of authonty at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,

Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in cunnilingus, with M.T,,

who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at
which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
/ | | |
"
I
.
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COUNT 11 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 28, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteeﬁng or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
COUNT 12 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 28, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teach, at Rancho High School, .
Clak County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was entolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
STEVEN B. WOLESON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001563

BY /s/ STACEY KOLLINS
STACEY KOLLINS
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005391

DA#15FN0939X/hjc/SVU

CCSDPD EV#150603963
' 5
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STEVEN B. WOLFSON -
Clark County District Attorney CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada Bar #001565

STACEY KOLLINS

Chief Deputy District Attorney

Nevada Bar #005391

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Ve%as, Nevada 89155-2212

(702) 671-2500 -

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
-vs- CASENO:  C-15-307937-1

JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE, .
#7019775 i DR NO: XX

Defendant.

SUPPLEMENTAL NOTICE OF WITNESSES
AND/OR EXPERT WITNESSES

TO: JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE, Defendant; and .

TO: JASON MARGOLIS, ESQ. and DMITRY_GUROVICH,- ESQ.,
Counsels of Record: '

" YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the STATE OF
NEVADA intends to call the following witnesses and/or expert witnesses in its case in chief:
*indicates additional witness(es) and/or modification(s)

ABBOTT; CCSDPD#199 .
ALEMAN, MARIA; 2237 DEMETRIUS AVE, LVN 89101

*BEHNIA; ALL; UNK
*BELTHAZAR, STEPHANIE; UNK
BROWNLEE, BELISA; 3612 SHAWN REYNOLDS CT #203, LVN.89129

BUTLER, VERNON; CANNERY HOTEL/CASINO, NLV

Wi2015FNIO\30\ 5FN0939-NWEW-(LOFTHOUSE_JASON)-001.DOCK
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*CALDWELL, M.; CCSD; Will testify as expert as to the forensic analysis of .

computers, cellular phones and related technology, and/or as to forensic analysis of said

devices conducted in the instant case,

CASTILLO, ZUREMA,; 6212 CRATERS EDGE ST, NLV 89031
COR or Designee; CCDC

COR or Designee; CCSD/RANCHO HIGH SCHOOL

*C.T.; c/o CCDA-SVU/VWAC

“FIELDS, MIA; UNK

*GONZALEZ, SAMANTHA; UNK

GUGLIELMO, PANNELLI; UNK

. HERNANDEZ-DIAZ, TANIA: UNK

HIBNER; CCSDPD#243
I.T.; c/o CCDA-SVU/VWAC

JONES; CCSDPD#323

KIDD, SAMANTHA; UNK

KUZMA, DR. JAMES; PRINCIPAL, RANCHO HIGH SCHOOL
M.T.; c/o CCDA—SVU/VWAC_ ,

MACISZAK; CCSDPD#308

MAGANA, WENDY; UNK

MYERS, MIKAYLA; UNK

*NISKANEN, MARILYN; UNK

NORDSTROM, R.; ALTANTE HOTEL/CASINO

PAGLINI, DR JOHN; 9163 W FLAMINGO RD, LVN 89147
“PANNELLL GUGLIELMO; UNK

PATTY; CCSDPD#520

SECURITY SUPERVISOR; ALIANTE HOTEL/CASINO
*SWAR, JESSICA; UNK -

TROXELL; CCSDPD#373

2
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These witnesses are in addition to those witacsses endorsed on the Information or

Indictment and any other witness for which a separate Notice of Witnesses and/or Expert

Witnesses has been filed.

A copy of each expert witness’ curriculum vitae, i available, is attached hereto,

STEVEN B, WOLFSON
‘Clark County District Attorney
'Nevada Bar #001565

BY /s/ STACEY KOLLINS
STACEY KOLLINS
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005391

' CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

1, hereby certify that service of the abdve and foregoing, was made this 22ND day of -

February, 2016, to:

JASON MARGOLIS, ESQ.
Jjason@macelaw.com

DMITRY GUROVICH, ESQ.
gha_law @yahoo.com

/s HOWARD CONRAD
Secretary for the District Attorney's Office
Special Victims Unit

hjc/SVU
3
WAZO15RNIN3 ] 5FN0939-NWEW-(LOFTHOUSE _JASON)-001.DOCX
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STEVEN B. WOLFSON :

Clark County District Aitorney CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada Bar #001565 ‘

STACEY KOLLINS .

Chief Deputy District Atiorney

Nevada Bar #005391

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212 -

(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, |
s CASENO:  C-15-307937-1

JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE, ] .
#7019775 DEPT NO: XX

Defendant.

AMENDED SUPPLEMENTAL NOTICE OF WITNESSES
AND/OR EXPERT WIINESSES

TO: JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE, Defendant; and

TO: JASON MARGOLIS, ESQ. and DMITRY GUROVICH, ESQ.,
Counsels of Record:

YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the STATE OF

| NEVADA intends to call the following witnesses and/or expert witnesses in its case in chief:
#indicates additional witness(es) and/or modification(s) |

ABBOTT, CCSDPD#199 '

ALEMAN, MARIA; 2237 DEMETRIUS AVE, LVN 89101

BEHNIA; ALL; UNK

BELTHAZAR, STEPHANIE; UNK

BROWNLEE, BELISA; 3612 SHAWN REYNOLDS CT #203, LVN §9129

W2015FN0GI30\] SEN0939-NWEW-(LOFTHOUSE _JASON}-001 Docx
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BUTLER, VERNON; CANNERY HOTEL/CASINO, NLV
*CALDWELL, M., CCSD; Will testify as expert as to the forensic analysis of

computers, cellular phones and related technology, and/or as to forensic analysis of said

devices conducted in the instant case.

CASTILLO, ZUREMA; 6212 CRATERS EDGE ST, NLV 8903 |
COR or Designee; CCDC | ‘

COR or Designee; CCSD/RANCHO HIGH SCHOOL
C.T.; c/o CCDA-SVU/VWAC

FIELDS, MIA; UNK

GONZALEZ, SAMANTHA; UNK

GUGLIELMO, PANNELLI; UNK
HERNANDEZ-DIAZ, TANIA; UNK

HIBNER; CCSDPD#243 |

1.T.; clo CCDA-SVU/VWAC

JONES; CCSDPD#323

KIDD, SAMANTHA; UNK

KUZMA, DR. JAMES; PRINCIPAL, RANCHO HIGH SCHOOL
M.T.; c/o CCDA-SVU/VWAC

MACISZAK; CCSDPD#308

MAGANA, WENDY; UNK

MYERS, MIKAYLA; UNK

NISKANEN, MARILYN; UNK

- NORDSTROM, R.; ALIANTE HOTEL/CASINO

PAGLINL DR JOHN; 9163 W FLAMINGO RD, LVN 89147
PANNELLL GUGLIELMO; UNK

PATTY; CCSDPD#520
SECURITY SUPERVISOR; ALIANTE HOTEL/CASINO

SWAR, JESSICA; UNK

2
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TROXELL; CCSDPD#373
These witnesses are in ziddition to those witnesses endorsed on the Information or _

Indictment and any other witness for which a separaie Notice of Witnesses and/or Expert

Witnesses has been filed.

A copy of each expert witness’ curriculum vitae, if available, is attached hereto.

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar#001565

‘BY /s/ STACEY KOLLINS
STACEY KOLLINS
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005391

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
1, hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing, was made this 24TH day of

FEBRUARY 2016February, 2016, to:

JASON MARGOLIS, ESQ.
jason@macelaw.com

DMITRY GUROVICH, ESQ.
gba_law @yahoo.com

/sl HOWARD CONRAD
Secretary for the District Attorney's Office
Special Victims Unit '

hje/SVU

3
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Detective M. Caldwell P#368

Clark County School District Police Department

120 Corporate Park Drive, Henderson, Nevada 83074

Lantern Certified Examiner {24 hours)

2015 National Law Enforcement Training on Child Exploitation, this training covers various
classroom blocks most of which are related to computer and cell phone forensic technigues. (21

hours)

Emerging Trends in Recovering Cell Phone Data (20 hours)
OSINT {24 hours)

Nevada POST Basic Certificate

Nevada POST lnterﬁediate Certificate

Nevada POST Advanced Certificate

nstructor Development (40 hours).

Field Training Officer (32 hours)

Post First Line Supervisio'n (80 hours)

Advanced FTO Seminar (24 hours)

Crisis Intervention Training (24 hours)

Detective and New Criminal Investigator training {35 hours)
Reid Interview and Interrogation (24 hours)

Advanced Reid Interview and Interrogation {8 hours)

Defensive Tactics Instructor {40 hours)

224



ASP Tactical Baton Instructor (40 hours}

Forensic !nte.rviewi.ng of Chiidren-(4d haurs)

Surveillance Basics (16 hours)

Back Ground Investigations (12 hours)

Gang Crime Conference.(16 hours)

Gang Response for Patrol (27 hours)

Multijurisdictional Cou.nterdrug Task Force Training (24 hours)
Radar Operator Course

WMD Awareness program (8 hours)

Naﬁonal School Safety Conference (28 hours)

Financial Research and Money Laundering (7 hours)
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STEVEN B. WOLFSON . B

Clark County District Attorney . CLERKOF THE COURT
Nevada Bar #001565

STACEY KOLLINS

Chief Deputy District Attorney

Nevada Bar #005391

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212

(702) 671-2500

- Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
| Plaintiff,
-VS- CASE NO: C-15-307937-1

JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE, ‘ .

47010775 DEPT NO: XX

Defendant.

" SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL NOTICE OF WITNESSES
AND/OR EXPERT \ng‘NESSES
—  [NRSTHAZ

TO: JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE, Defendant; and

TO: JASON MARGOLIS, ESQ. and DMITRY GUROVICH, ESQ.,
Counsels of Record: -

YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the STATE OF
NEVADA intends o call the following witnesses and/or expert witnesses in its case in chief:
*indicates additional witness(es) and/or modification(s)

ABBOTT; CCSDPD#199 |
ALEMAN, MARIA; 2237 DEMETRIUS AVE, LVN 89101

BEHNIA; ALIL; UNK

BELTHAZAR, STEPHANIE; UNK
BROWNLEE, BELISA; 3612 SHAWN REYNOLDS CT #203, LVN 89129

W2015\20 1 SFNOO\IN] SFNO330-NWEW-{LOFTHOUSE_TASON)-001 DoCk
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BUTLER, VERNON; CANNERY HOTEL/CASINO, NLV
CALDWELL, M.; CCSD; Wiﬂ'testify. as espert as to the forensic analysis of

computers, cellular phones and related technology, and/or as fo forensic analysis of said

devices conducted in the instant case.

CASTILLO, ZUREMA; 6212 CRATERS EDGE ST, NLV 89031
COR or Designee; CCDC

COR or Designee; CCSD/RANCHO HIGH SCHOOL
C.T.; /o CCDA-SVU/VWAC

FIELDS, MIA; UNK

GONZALEZ, SAMANTHA; UNK

GUGLIELMO, PANNELLI; UNK
HERNANDEZ-DIAZ, TANIA; UNK

HIBNER; CCSDPD#243

L.T.; ¢/o CCDA-SVU/VWAC

JONES; CCSDPD#323

KIDD, SAMANTHA; UNK

KUZMA, DR. JAMES; PRINCIPAL, RANCHO HIGH SCHOOL

L ARIMIR, FNU; ALIANTE HOTEL/CASINO

M.T.; c/fo CCDA-SVU/VWAC |
MACISZAK; CCSDPD#308

MAGANA, WENDY; UNK

MYERS, MIKAYLA; UNK

NISKANEN, MARILYN; UNK |
*NORDSTROM, R.; CANNERY HOTEL/CASINO
PAGLINL DR JOHN; 9163 W FLAMINGO RD, LVN 80147
PANNELLI, GUGLIELMO; UNK

PATTY; CCSDPD#520
*HILL, NATHAN; SECURITY SUPERVISOR, ALIANTE HOTEL/CASINO

2
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SWAR, JESSICA; UNK

TROXELL; CCSDPD#373

These witnesses are in addition fo those witnesses endorsed on the Information or
Indictment and any other witness for which a- separaie Notice of Witnesses and/or Expert

Witnesses has been filed.

A copy of each expert witness’ curriculum vitag, if available, is attached hereto.

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY /s/ STACEY KOLLINS
STACEY KOLLINS
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005391

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing, was made this 4TH day of

MARCH 2016, to:

JASON MARGOLIS, ESQ.
jason@macelaw.com

DMITRY GUROVICH, ESQ.
gha_law @yahoo.com

/s/ HOWARD CONRAD
Secretary Tor the District Attorney's Office
Special ictims Unit '

hjc/SVU

3
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Electronically Filed
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DMITRY Y. GUROVICH, SBN 181427 | %t&f«w’w

GUROVICH, BERK & ASSOCIATES, APC

15250 Ventura Blvd., Suite 1220 CLERK OF THE COURT
Sherman QOaks, CA 91403 '
Telephone: (81 8) 205-1555; Fax No. (818) 205-155%
Email; eha law @ yahao.com _
Appearing Pro Hac Vice
MACE J. YAMPOLSKY, LTD.
Jason Margolis, Bar #12439 -
Nevada Bar No. 012439
615 South Sixth St1eet
Las Ve%as Nevada 89101
702) 385-9777; Fax No (702) 385-3001
maﬂ ‘ason @macelaw.com
Local Counsel
! Attorneys for Defendant
Jason Lofthouse
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO. C-15-307937-1
DEPT. NO. XX
Plaintiff,
DEFENDANT’S MOTION IN LIMINE TO
V. PRECLUDE THE STATE FROM .
INTRODUCING OR ATTEMPTING TO ,
JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE, INTRODUCE EVIDENCE OF ANY OTHER
Defend ACTUAL OR POTENTIAL VICTIMS
efendant.

TO ALL PARTIES AND TO THEIR ATTORNEYS OF RECORD:
COMES NOW, Defendant by and through his attorneys, Dmitry Y. Gurovich and
Jason Margolis, and moves this Court to PRECLUDETHE STATE FROM

INTRODUCING OR ATTEMPTING TO INTRODUCE EVIDENSE OF ANY OTHER
ACTUAL OR POTENTIAL VICTIMS.

1l
1

DEFENDANT'S MOTION IN LIMINE TO PRECLUDE THE STATE 1
FROM INTRODUCING OR ATTEMPTING TO INTRODUCE
EVIDENSE OF ANY OTHER ACTUAL OR POTENTIAL VICTIMS
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This Motion is based on all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the attached
points and authorities iﬁ support, and oral arguments al the time of hearing.
Dafed: March 16, 2016
/s/ DmitrLY. Gurovich, Esq.

DMITRY Y. GUROVICH,
Attorney for Defendant

NOTICE QF MOTION

TO: THE STATE OF NEVADA, Plaintiff; and
TO: OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY, Attorney for Plaintiff.

YOU AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned will
bring the above and foregoing Motion on for hearing before Department XX of the above-entitléd Court

on thCSt h day of Apri | , 2016, at the hour of 8:30AM. 1y

Dated: March 16, 2016

/s/ Dmitry Y. Gurovich, Esg.
DMITRY Y. GUROVICH,
Attorney for Defendant

1. Factual Allegations:

Mr. Lofthouse has been charged with a violation of NRS 201 .540), prohibiting
_scﬁual conduct between teachers and their students, and NRS 200.310, First Degree
Kidnapping. Both statutes involve a single Victim. |

It has come to the attention of the Defense that the State may attempt to introduce

“Prior Bad Acts” evidencé of one or more than one other victims. The Defense

strenuously objects to the introduction of any such evidence.

DEFENDANT’S MO_TION IN LIMINE TO PRECLUDE THE STATE 2
FROM INTRODUCING OR ATTEMPTING TO INTRODUCE
EVIDENSE OF ANY OTHER ACTUAL OR POTENTIAL VICTIMS
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2. Argument:

NRS 48.035 states in pertinent part: ”Although relevant, evidence is nqt
admissible if its probative value is substantially outweighed by the danger of unfair
prejudice, of confusion of the issues or of misleading the jury.”

Here, not only has there been no discovery ﬁvith respebt to any other victims or
potential victims, testimony or argument involving any such allegations, very likely, will
mislead the jury and will substantially prejudice the defense.

There has been, absolutely no discovery produced by the State as to any potential
or éctual viétims, other than the Victim that is the subject of this case. Although, the
State may suspect that such individuals exist, nothing beyond mere suppositions has been
shared with the Defense. As such, any allusions, hinting at, or direct testimony about any
other victims of the Defendan.t must be forbidden by this Court,

Likewise, these questionable allegatiéns will .oniy stand to mislead the jul'y and to
prejudice Mr. Lofthouse’s defense in this case. If the jury hears that there may be other
victims, they likely will label Mr. Lofthouse, improperly, as a predator. They also will
use these allegations as defendant’s character evidence, something that should not be
allowed. Jury instructions attempting to rehabilitate the situation after the fabt, will not
be enough to undo the damage cziused by these jnadmissible allegations.

3. Conclusion:

As such, Mr. Lofthouse, 'respectfully requests that this Honorable Court order the

State not to introduce or attempt to introduce any evidence or allegations of any victims

3

DEFENDANT'S MOTION IN LIMINE TO PRECLUDE THE STATE

FROM INTRODUCING OR ATTEMPTING TO INTRODUCE

EVIDENSE OF ANY OTHER ACTUAL OR POTENTIAL VICTIMS
231
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or potential victims other than the Victim that is the subject of this case, Mr. Lofthouse
further requests that this Honorable Court order the State to instruct its witnesses not to

“inadvertently blurt out” any such allegations.

Dated; March 16, 2016

/s/ Dmitry Y. Gurovich, Esq.
DMITRY Y. GUROVICH,
Attorney for Defendant

DEFEN_DAN'["S MOTYION IN LIMINE TO PRECLUDE THE STATE 4
FROM [NTRODUC]NG OR ATTEMPTING TO INTRODUCE
EVIDENSE OF ANY OTHER ACTUAL OR POTENTIAL VICTIMS

3
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hefeby certify that service of the above and forcgoing, was made this 17" day of

March, 2016, via electronically filing to:

Stacey Kollins, Chief DDA
Stacey.kollins @clarkcountyda.com

MACE J. YAMPOLSKY, LTD.

" /s/ Theresa J. Muzgay

An employee of
MACE J. YAMPOLSKY, LTD.

DEFENDANT’S MOTION IN LIMINE TO PRECLUDE THE STATE 5
FROM INTRODUCING OR ATTEMPTING TO INTRODUCE
EVIDENSE OF ANY OTHER ACTUAL OR POTENTIAL VICTIMS
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JURL

STATE OF NEVADA
Plaintiff(s),

-yS-

JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE

: . 5"_ £ ﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁ
DISTRICT COURT %KINNER, DEPUTY |

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Secret from above

TADEPT 200JURY LISTS\ILOFTHOUSE doc

FILED iN OPEN COUR’
STEVEN D. GRIERSON
CLERK OF THE COURT

MAR 2 1 2015

CASENO C307937

Defendant(s). DEPT.NO. XX
JURY LIST
1. JERRY MORRIS 8. ROBERT MCCANN
2. TIACHA 9. NICHOLAS MOORE
3. DONNA LEWIS 10. TABITHA REYES
4. JED BRAEGGER 11. TERESA CASTELLAN OS-ZAMORA
5. CAROLINE THOMAS-JENSON 12. HOLLYWITTE
6. NICOLO SANTABRIGIDA 13. DAVID LONGORIA
7. LISETTE BRIONES - 14. CHERRY CASTANAGA
ALTERNATES

¢- 163070371
JURL

Jury List

4533118

-

BTN
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FILED IN OPEN COURT
STEVEN D. GRIERSON

CLERK OF THE COURT
JURL MAR 2 4 2016
DISTRICT COURT +INDA SKINNER, DEPUTY
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA -
. CASENO. (307937
Plaintiff(s),
- DEPT.NO. XX
_VS..
JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE
Defendant(s).
AMENDED JURY LIST
1. JERRY MORRIS 7. LISETTE BRIONES
2. TIA CHAI 8. ROBERT MCCANN
3. DONNA LEWIS 9. NICHOLAS MOORE
4. JED BRAEGGER | 10. TABITHA REYES
5. CAROLINE THOMAS-JENSON 11. TERESA CASTELLAN OS-ZAMORA
6. NICOLO SANTABRIGIDA 12. HOLLYWITTE

1. DAVID LONGORIA

ALTERNATES
2. CHERRY CASTANAGA

¢~ 15-307937 -1

AJ
amendad Jury Lis

i

i

TADEPT 20\URY LISTSW.OFTHOUSEZ.doc/3/24/2018

1
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FILED !N OPEN COURT

| STEVEN D. GRIERSON
INST | | CLERK OF THE COURT

MAR 25 2016

: . TNOA SKINNER, DEPUTY /34 A

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
v | CASENO:  C-15-307937-1
JASON RICHARD LOFTHOUSE, DEPTNO: XX
Defendant,

INSTRUCTIONS TO THE JURY (INSTRUCTION NO. [)
MEMBERS OF THE JURY:

It is now my duty as judge to instruct you in the jaw that applics to this case. It is

your duty as jurors to follow these instruCtibns and to apply the rules of law to the facts as
you find them from the evidence.

You must not be concerned with the wisdom of any rule of law stated in these
instructions. Regardless of any opinion you may have as to what the law ought to be, it

would be a violation of your vath to base a verdict upon any other view of the law than that

given in the instructions of the Court.

i

il
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- INSTRUCTION NO. 2

—

If, in these instructions, any rule, direction or idea is repeated or stated in different
ways, no emphasis thereon is intended by me and none may be inferred by you. For that
reason, you are not to single out any certain sentence or any individual point or instruction

and ignore the others, but you are to consider all the instructions as a whole and regard each

in the light of all the others.

The order in which the instructions are given has no significance as to their relative

importance.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 3

Information is but a formal method of accusing a person of a crime and is not of itself

any evidence of his guilt.
In this case, it is charged in an Information that on or between May 6, 2015 and May

28, 2015, at and within the County of Clark, State of Nevada,‘contrary to the form, force and

~ effect of statutes in such cases made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the

State of Nevada,
COUNT 1- SEXUAL C_ONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or between May 6, 2015 and May 19, 2015, then and there, wi}lfully,
unlawfully and feloniously, while employed or volunteering or haviﬁg been previously
employed or volunteering in a position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a
teacher, at Rancho High School, Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age,
engage in fellatio, with M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was
enrolled in or attending the school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed

or volunteering.

COUNT 2 - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING

did, on or about May 20, 2015, willfully, unlawfully and feloniously, lead, take,
entice, carry away or kidnap M.T., a minor, with the intent to keep, imprison, or confine said
M.T., from her parents, guardians, or other person of persons having lawful custody of M.T.,
or with the intent to hold M.T. to unlawful service, or to perpetrate upon the person of M. T,
any untawful act, to- wit: by Defendant engagmg in sexual acts with the said M.T which
consutute Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers of School and Pup11

to-wit: sexual intercourse and/or fellatio and/or cunnilingus. .

COUNT 3 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there, willfully, unfawfully, and feloniously,

while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
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position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teacher, at Rancho High School,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in cunnilingus, with M.T,,
who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at
which Defendant was or previously had been e:ﬁp]oyed or volunteering.
COUNT 4 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,'

while employed or volunteering or héving been previously employed or volunteering in a

position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teacher, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in fellatio, with M. T, who

was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who- was enrolled in or attending the school at

~ which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.

COUNT 5 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,'
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school' to-wit: a teacher, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the

schoo! at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
COUNT 6 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND FUPIL .
did, on or about May 20, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,

while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a

position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teacher, at Rancho High School,

Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with

M T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the

schoot at which Defendant was or previously h_a_d been employed or volunteering.
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COUNT 7- SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL |
did, on or between May 21, 2015 and May 27, 2015, then and there wilifully,
unlawfully, and feloniously, while employed or v.olunteering or having been previously
employed or volunteering in a position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a
teach, at Rancho High School, , Clark Coimty, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age,
engage in fellatio,r with M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and-who was

enrolled in or attending the school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed

- or volunteering.

COUNT 8 - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING
did, on or about May 28, 2015, willfully, unlawfully and feloniously, lead, take,

entice, carry away or kidnap M.T., a minor, with the intent to keep, imprison, or confine said

-M.T., from her parents, guardians, or other persofi or persons having lawful custody of M.T.,

or with the intent to hold M.T. to unfawful service, or to perpetrate upon the person of M.T.
any unlawﬁJI act, to-wit: by Defendant engagmg in sexual acts with the said M.T which
constitute Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers of School and Pupil,
to-wit: sexual intercourse and/or feliatlo and/or cunnilingus.
COUNT ‘9 . SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

d1d on or about May 28, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and felomously,

while employed or volunieering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a

pomtnon of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teacher, at Rancho High School, ,

' Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in fellatio, with M.T., who

was 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at

which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.

COUNT 10 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL
did, on or about May 28, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
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while employed or volunteering or having been previously erhployed or volunteering in a

position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teacher, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in cunnilingus, with M.T,,
who wa§ 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the school at -|
which Defendant was or previously had been-employed or volunteering.
CQUNT 11 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR
VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did, on or about May 28, 2015, then and thérc willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit:" a teacher, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 years of .age at the time, and who was enrolled in or atfending the
school at wﬁich Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.
COUNT 12 - SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OR

VOLUNTEERS OF SCHOOL AND PUPIL

did, on or about May 28, 2015, then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously,
while employed or volunteering or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school, to-wit: a teacher, at Rancho High School, ,
Clark County, Nevada, and who is over 21 years of age, engage in sexual intercourse, with
M.T., who was 16 or 17 yeafs of age at the time, and who was enrolled in or attending the
school at which Defendant was or previously had been employed or volunteering.

It is the duty of the jury to apply the rules of law contained in these instructions to the

facts of the case and determine whether or not the Defendant is guilty of one or more of the

offenses charged.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 4

To constitute the crime charged, there must exist a union or joint operation of an act

forbidden by law and an intent to do the act.
- The intent with which an act is done is shown by the facts and circumstances

surrounding the case.

Do not confuse intent with motive. Motive is what prompts a person to act, Intent
refers only to the state of mind with which the act is done.

Motive is not an element of the crime charged and the State is not required to prove a
motive on the part of the Defendant in order to convict. However, you may consider

gvidence of motive or lack of motive as a circumstance in the case.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 5

The Defendant is presﬁmed innocent until thf: contrary is proved. This presumption
places upon the State the burden of proving beyond a reasonable doubt every element of the
crime charged and that the Defendant is the person who committed the offense.

A reasonable doubt is one based on reason. It is not mere possible doubt but is such a
doubt as would govern or control a person in the more weighty affairs of life. If the minds of
the jurors, after the entire comparison and consideration of all the evidence, are in such a
condition that they can say they feel an abiding conviction of the truth of the charge, there is

not a reasonable doubt. Doubt to be reasonable must be actual, not mere possibility or

speculation.

If you have a reasonable doubt as to the guilt of the Defendant, he is entitled to a

verdict of not guilty.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 6

You are here to determine the guilt or innocence of the Defendant from the evidence
in the case. You are not called upon to return a verdict as to the guilt or innocence of any
other person. So, if the evidence in the case convinces you beyond a reasonable doubt of the

guilt of the Defendant, you should so find, even though you may believe one or more persons

are also guilty.
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each count separately. Your verdict on one count should not control y

other count,

INSTRUCTION NO. 7

A separate crime is charged against the Defendant in each count. You must decide

our verdict on any
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INSTRUCTION NO. 8

~ The evidence which you are to consider in this case consists of the testimony of the
witnesses, the exhibits, and any facts édzﬁi_tted or a.greed to. by counsel.

There are two types of evidence; direct and circumstantial. Direct evidence is the
testimony of a person who claims to have personal knowledge of the commission of the
crime which has been charged, such as an eyewitness. Circumstantial evidence is the proof
of a chain of facts and circumstances which tend to show whether the Defendant is guilty or
not guilty. The law makes no distinction between the weights to be given either direct or
circumstantiél cvidence. Therefore, all of the evidence in the case, including the
circumstantial evidencé, should be considered by you in arriving at your verdict..

Statements, arguments and opinions of counsel are not evidence in the case.

However, if the attorneys stipulate to the existence of a fact, you must accept the stipulation

as evidence and regard that fact as proved.
You must not speculate to be true any insinuations suggested by a question asked a

witness. A question is not evidence and may be considered only as it supplies meaning to |

the answer.

You must disregard any evidence to which an objection was sustained by the court

and any evidence ordered stricken by the court.

Anything you may have seen or heard outside the courtroom is not evidence and must

also be disregarded.
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| ] o | | INSTRUCTION NO. 9
=l 2 In deciding the facts in this case, you may have to decide which testimony to believe
7 3 || and which testimony not to believe. You may.b'elieve everything a witness says, or part of it,
E 4 | ornoneofit. | ' |
- 5 In considering the testimony of any witness, you may take into account:

: | 6 (1) The witness® opportunity and ability to see or hear or know the things testified to;
7 (2) The witness’ memory,; |
8 (3) The witness® manner while testifying;
9 (4) The witness’ iﬁterest in the outcome of the casc; if any;
10 (5) The witness bias or prejudice, if any;
11 (6) Whether other évidence contradicted the witness’ testimony;
12 (7) The reasonableness of the witness’ testimony in light of all the evidence; and
13 (8) Any factors thét bear on believability.
14 The weight of the evidence as to a fact does not necessarily depend on the number of
15 witnesseé who testify. What is important is how believable the witnesses were,.and how
16 || much weight you tlhink_their testimony deserves. |
17
.
19
N 2
21
¥ 22
‘ 23
24
25
26
| 27
28
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INSTRUCTION NO. 10

A witness who has special knowledgé, skill, experience, training or education in a
particular science, profession or occupation is an expert witness. An expert witness may
give his opinion as to any matter in which he is skilled.

You should consider such expert opinion and weigh the reasons, if any, given for it.
You are not bound, however, by such aﬁ opinion. Give it the weight to which you deem it |
entitled, whether that be great or slight, and you may reject it, if, in your judgment, the

reasons given for it are unsound.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 11

In order to return a verdict of guilty as to First chrée Kidnapping, you must find the
state has proven the following elements: -
1. Defendant lead or took or enticed or carried away or detained a minor, that is a
person under the age of 18 years, AND
2. Acted with one or more of the following intents:
a. With the intent to keep, imprison, or confine her from her parents,
guardians, or any other person having lawful custody of the minor, OR
b. With the intent to hold the minor to unlawful service, OR
c. With the intent to perpetrate upon the person of the minor any unlawful act.
It is not necessary for everyone o agreé on the particular theory of action or intent.
However, you all must agree that Defendant took at least one of the above listed .actions, that
is the Defendant lead or took or enticed or carried away or detained a minor, and that hc did
it with any one of the intents listed above.
‘Consent of a minor under the age of .18 years is not a defense to Kidnapping in the

Frist Degree. Force or threat of force is not an element of First Degree Kidnapping.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 12

Where a person is charged with the crime of First Degree Kidnapping for the purpose

of committing Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees Or Volunteers Of School And

Pupil it is not necessary to establish the Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees Or |

Volunteers Of Schoo! And Pupil was actually committed.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 13

A teacher while employeﬁ_ or having been previously employed or volunteering in a
position of authority at a public or private school who 1s over 21 year_é of age, who engages
in sexual conduct with someone who is 16 or 17 years of age at the time, and who was
enrolled in or attending the school at which the teacher was or previously had been employed
is guilty of Sexual Conduct with Certain Employees or Volunteers of School and Pupil.

Sexual Conduct means:

1. ordinary sexual intercourse,
2. fellatio, cunnilingus or other oral genital contact,
3. physical contact by a person with the unclothed genitals or pubic area of

another person for the purpose of arousing or gratifying the sexua! desire of

either person,

4. Masturbation or lewd exhibition of unclothed genitals.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 14

Consent is not a defense to Sexual Conduct with Certain Employees or Volunteers of

School and Pupil.

Force or threat of force is not required to find someone committed the crime of Sexual

Conduct with Certain Employees or Volunteers of School and Pupil.

" There is no requirement that the crime of Sexual Conduct with Certain Employees or

Volunteers of School and Pupil take place on school property.
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1 ' | - INSTRUCTION NO. 15

" There is no requirement that the testimony of a victim of a sexual conduct crime be

corroborated, and her testimony standing alone, if believed beyond a reasonable doubt, is

sufficient to sustain a verdict of guilty.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 16

Where multiple sexual acts occur as part of a single criminal encounter a Defendant

may be found guilty for each separate or different act of sexual conduct,
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INSTRUCTION NO. 17

For both Sexual Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers of School and
Pupil and First Degree Kidnapping, there is no requirement that the Defendant knew that the |

minor was under the age of 18. Proof that the mincr was under the age of 18 at the time is

sufficient.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 18

Where a sexual conduct is alleged, the State is not required prove a specific date, but

may prove a time frame within which the act took place.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 19

Although you are to consider only the evidence in the case in reaching 2 verdict, you
must bring to the consideratioﬁ of the evidence your everyday cominon sense and judgment.
as reasonable men and women. Thus, you are not limited solely to what you see and hear as
the witnesses testify. You may draw reasonable inferences from the evidence which you feel
are justified in the light of common experience, keeping in mind that such inferences should |
not be based on speculation or guess. |

A verdict may never be inﬂuenc.ed by sympathy, prejudice or public opinion. Your |

decision should be the product of sincere judgment and sound discretion in accordance with.

these rules of law.
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- INSTRUCTION NO. 20

In your deliberation you may not discuss or consider the subject of punishment, as
that is a matter which lies solely with the court. Your duty is confined to the determination

of the guilt or innocence of the Defendant.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 21

—

When you retire to consider your verdict, you must select one of your members to act

as foreperson that will preside over your deliberation and will be your spokesperson here in

court,

During your deliberation, you will have all the exhibits which were admitted into

evidence, these written instructions and forms of verdict which have been prepared for your

convenience.

Your verdict must be unanimous. As soon as you have agreed upon a verdict, have it

|
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signed and dated by your foreperson and then return with it to this room. .
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[NSTRUCTION NO. 22

If, during your deliberation, you should desire 1o be further informed on any point of
law or hear again portions of the testimony, you may stnd a note through the clerk or bailiff,
signed by any one or more of you. No .mémbcr of the jury should ever attempt to
communicate with me except by a signed writing, and I will respond to the jury concerning |
the case only in writing or here in open court. If you send out a question, I will consult with
the lawyers before answering it, which may take some time. You may continue your
deliberations while waiting for the answer to any questions. Remember that you are not to
tell anyone - including me - how the jury stands, numerically or otherwise, on ar;y question
submitted to you, including the question of the guilt of the Defendant, until after you have
reached a unanimous verdict or have been discharged.

Readbacks of testimony are time consuming and are not encouraged unless you deem
it a necessity. Should you require a readback, you must carefully describe the testimony to

be read back so that the court reporter can arrangé lier notes. Remember, the court is not at

liberty to supplement the evidence.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 23

The law does not compel a defendant in a criminal case to take the stand and testify
and no presumption may be raised and no inference of any kind may be drawn from the

failure of a defendant to testify.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 24

Now you will listen to the arguments of counsel who will endeavor to aid you to reaph a
propcf verdiét by refreshing in your minds the evidence and by showing the application
thereof to the law; but, whatever counsel may say, you will bear in mind that it is your duty
to be governed in your dehberataon by the evidence as you understand it and remember it to‘

be and by the law as given to you in these instructions, with the sole, fixed and steadfast
d the State of Nevada.

purpose of daing equal and exact justice between the Defendap
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